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Corporate Progress

« Managed Pubs and Hotels total
sales up 9% and profits' up 6%

« Tenanted Inns profits' up 18% and
average EBITDA per pub up 9%

» The Fuller's Beer Company
total sales up 4% and total beer
volumes level

- Net debt to EBITDA? 2.6 times
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ADJUSTED PROFIT?

+5%

ADJUSTED EARNINGS
£ milhon PER SHARE* Pence

+8%

12 13 09 1 11 12 13

TOTAL DIVIDEND
PER SHARE® Pence

+8%

Financial Highlights
52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
30 March 31 March
13 012 Change
£ mbon £ mdhon 2013/2012
Revenue 215 2530 +7%
Adjusted profit? 31.7 303 +5%
Profit before tax 35.2 288 +22%
EBITDA® 51.2 478 +7%
Adjusted earnings per share* 43.07p 3982 +8%
Basic earmings per share® 52.59p 4213p +25%
Total annual dvidend per share® 13.70p 12 65p +8%
Net debt’ 135.6 1382
Pro forma net debt/EBITDA? 2.6 times 2 7 umes

*Operating proft before excepuonal dems  2Pro forma net debt/EBITDA 13 adpusied 23 appropnate lor the pubs acquured or disposed of n the penod  IAdjusted profit 1s
the profit before tax excluding exceptional dems  The Directors believe that this measure provdes useful ndormation for shareholdert o5 to the internal measures of the
performance of the Group  *Caleulated using adjusted profits after 1ax and the same weighted average number of shares as for the bask: eamungs per share and using

3 40p ardinary share  SCalculated on » 40p ordinary share $Pre exceptional earrungs before enterest tax deprecuation, boss on disposal of pfant and equipment and
amortisaton  TNet debl compnses cash and shert term deposits, bank overdeatt, bank loans, debenture stock 2nd preference shares
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Chairman’s Statement

HIGHLIGHTS

I am pleased to announce a strong performance by the
Group, driven by our pub acquisivons and developments
we commenced the roll out of our new Beer Company
strategy towards the end of the year, which features many
exciting inimiatives including a new wave craft lager and
entry 1nto the prermum cider market

Revenues rose by 7% to £271 5 milon (2012 £253 0
mithon) and adjusted profit before tax grew by 5% to
£317 milhon (2012 £30 3 milfion) Our adjusted earnings
per share rose by 8% to 43 07p {2012 39 82p)
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Managed Pubs and Hotels total revenues increased by 9%

and like for like sales were up 21% Operating profits’ grew

6% despite being subject to a record number of closed

weeks as we undertook 3 substanual leve! of refurbishment

across our estate, including some of our recent
acquisiions Duning the year we purchased two prominent
freehold managed houses in the centre of Bath

Tenanted Inns operating profit’ grawth of 18% was driven
by a strong contnibution from the 2012 acquisitions,
together with like for ke profits, which were up 1% We
added a further two high quality sites to our Tenanted inns
division duning the year and average EBITDA per pub rose
by 9%

Total beer volumes in the Fuller's Beer Comparty were
level with last year, as was EBITDA However, an increased
deprectation charge in the first full year following the
significant snvestment in new tank capacity last year has
resulted i operating profits' reducing by 3%

In March we were delighted to be voted the “Company
of the Year” at the PLC Awards This accolade recognises
Fuller’s as a company that takes a long term view and
has achieved consistent success not only in the growth
of our share price, but in laying the foundations for
continued prospenty

The international spothight has been focussed on London
over the last two years, with the Royal wedding, the
Queen's Diamond jubitee and the Olympic Games These
have been wonderful events, through which the nation
has celebrated all things Bntish In particular, | would

like to congratulate the London Orgamsing Commitiee
for the Olympic Games on delivering an outstanding
success with the London 2012 Games The legacy of this
tremendous promouon of “brand London™ will benefn
us for many years to come, both in our iconic London
pubs and through our award winning ales which are now
enjoyed in some 68 countnes around the world

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends that a final dividend of 8 35p
per 40p ‘A’ and 'C’ ordinary share and 0 835p per 4p ‘B’
ordinary share be paid on 29 July 2013 to shareholders
on the share register as at 28 June 2013 This 1s a 10%
increase on last year's final dwidend The total dwdend

1Operatng profit before exceptonal items




QUALITY, SERVICE AND PRIDE

This year we brewed 215,000
barrels of award winning ale at
the Gnffin Brewery, beside the
Thames in Chuswick From here
we supply our estate, which
compnses 177 Managed Pubs
and Hotels and 209 Tenanted
Inns, as well as pubs, clubs and
supermarkets across the UK and
overseas

PLC COMPANY OF THE YEAR

Awarded the ttle of
“Company of the Year”
atthe 2012 PLC awards, in
recogmtion of our long-term
business madel and continued
share pnce growth
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Chairman’s Statement conunued

per share of 13 70p per 40p ‘A’ and 'C’ ordinary share and
1 370p per 4p "B’ ordinary share represents an 8% increase
on last year and will be covered more than three times by
adjusted earnings per share

PEOPLE

The success of the Group 1s founded upon the dedication
and enthusiasm of its many staff | would like to take this
opportunity to thank every one of them for thesr continuing
hard work, without which our good performance this year
would not have been possible

with effect from 1 July, § am delighted that Simon Emeny,
currently Group Managing Director, will assume the post
of Chief Executive of the Company Simon personifies alt
the values that have made this Company strong and he
combines this with enormous energy and clear conviction
This 1s embodsed by his viston to create and operate the
most stylish pubs and hotels whilst brewing Britain's most

q FULLER SMITH & TURNER P L € Repori 2nd Accounts 2013




Chairman’s Statement conunued

coveted premium brands for discerning customers both
at home and abroad

1 look forward to working closely wath Simon in the
future and watching Fuller's grow and prosper under
his teadership

CURRENT TRADING AND PROSPECTS

Over the nine weeks to 1 june 2013 like for like sales in our
Managed Pubs and Hotels grew 7 0%, Tenanted Inns ke
for like profits were down 1% and total beer volumes were
down 5% ltis worth noting that beer sales in week 9 last
year were up 39% as pubs stocked up heawly in advance of
the Diamond Jubilee weekend

We are well positioned to respond to the continuing
uncertainty in the economy over the coming year and
will focus our activities towards our three strategic drivers
for growth

Drstinctive Pub and Hotel Experience

« “Only at Fuller's” - creating 3 distinctive experience
through a portfolio of unique products and bespoke
menus with local ingredients, delivered with engaging
service in 3 welcoming and stylish environment

Targeted Acquisition and Development

= Acquinng and developing sites in transport hubs and the
heart of market towns and bullding our portfolio of Iconic
London pubs

» Refurbishing and repositioning pubs and hotels to achieve
their full potential
Premium Brand Portfolio

« Innovating and investing to broaden our portfolio of high
quality products with genuine craft credentials

* Growing our brands by communicating these attnbutes
to reinforce their premium positioning and extending our
distnbution withun existing sales channels

Michael Turner
Chairman /
7 June 2013 £ _’w
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Group Managing Director’s Review

I am delighted to be taking over the
leadership of the Company from
Michael at this point in the continuing
evolution and long term development
of the business | inhent a well-executed
strategy that has driven compelling
results The fundamentals of the
business are very good, we have a
strong balance sheet, a igh quality,
well invested freehold property base, a
long term focus and a passionate and
engaged team | want to not only retain
these core strengths, but also to build
on them by refimng the vision that has
delivered us to where we are today,
while develaping key drivers for our
continued future growth

FULLER’'S INNS
The Fuller’s Inns business comprises
two divisions Managed Pubs and Hotels

are operated by Fuller's employees
and inctude 177 pubs and hotels The
Tenanted Inns dwiston has 209 pubs,

where the individual pubs are run by self-

employed entrepreneurs, who work 1n
partnership with us, seling our beer and
operating under the Fuller’s brand

Acquisitions and Development

Our acquisitions are carefully targeted
towards pnme locatons in market

towns with our target demographics,
high foatfall locations w transport hubs
and rconic pubs In our home city of
London We seek out opportunities
where we believe there 15 potental for
growth and where adding the distinctive
Fuller’s character and badge of operating
excellence to the business will deliver
that potential We make significant
investrments both in our new acquisitions
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and within our existing estate where we
have identified a site which will benefit
from refurbishment and repositioning

In the current year, two of the pubs
acquired from Enterpnse Inns in March
2012 have received a transformatonat
refurtnshment At The Horse and Groom
in Alresford, through careful restoration
we have repositioned the pub to be

i keeping with 1ts surroundings and
become the premium destination m its
locality The Ox Row, a 16th century pub
on the market square in the medieval
cathedral city of Salisbury, underwent

a sumilar renovation in March 2013,
retawning its onginal features with a
refined fiish, and creating a stylish
dinmng room on the first floor which can
accommodate 48 covers Both pubs have
now reopened as managed houses and
are trading well

We also invest in refurbishment projects
that will deliver further growth in our
existing estate The Duke of Kent in Ealing
was refurbished and reposittoned as a
premium dining destination in October
2012 Careful zoning of the pub and a
major kitchen investment have helped to
increase food sales by 70% at this site

in March 2012 we opened the doors to
The Parcel Yard, a newly constructed
pub 1n a classic Grade | histed building
set across two floors in the sinking

new King's Cross station concourse

The Parcel Yard has Uaded ahead of
expectabions and 1s now the largest
retailer of cask ale in our estate In
addition, we are debghted to have recently
signed an agreement with Heathrow
Airport for a prominent airsige pub in the
new Terminal 2 to open in June 2014
This development 1s a natural evolution
for the Company to capitalise upon our
existng expertise trading in transport




hubs such as Landon's Waterloo, King's
Cross and Paddington stations Located
just erght miles from the brewery,
“London's Pnde” will showcase the story
of Fuller's hentage i a modern seting
within one of the world's busiest airports
At this exciing addition 1o our estate,
passengers from home and abroad will
be able to sample our array of beers and
freshly prepared food or choose a plane
pienic from our “Grab & Fly” range

Managed Pubs and Hotels

Acqguisitions and devefopments
completed in the previous year
contributed a full year of sales, increasing
lotal revenues for Managed Pubs and
Hotels by 9% to £170 1 million (2012
£155 7 midhon) Like for hke sales in our
Managed Pubs and Hotels grew 2 1%,
led by accommodation up 8 2% which
recenved a one-off benefit from the
Olympic Games Like for bke drinks sales
up 0 9% were most strongly impacted by
the wettest summer and coldest March
for a generation Like for like food sales
proved to be more resilient wath an
ncrease of 3 9%

Operating profit before exceptional

items increased 6% to £19 4 miflion
(2012 £18 3 mition) Operating margins
decreased from 11 8% to 11 4%, due

to inflaton 1n utihies and business rates
in excess of sales growth and the impact
of closing and refurbishing a relatvely
hugh number of pubs dunng the year,
atotal of 73 closed weeks compares to

THE FULLER'S VISION

We will create and operate
the most stylish pubs and
hotels whilst brewing Bntain's
most coveted premium
brands for discerning
customers both
at home and abroad

60 in the pror year Further progress
was achieved on payroll costs following
the implementation of labour scheduling
software in the last financial year and the
benefits of this are expected to continue
into 2014

Synon Emeny Group Managing Oweclor

“Only at Fuller's”
Our strategy 15 to offer our customers a
distinctive expenence that makes a wisit
to a Fuller's pub a special and memorable
occasion, setting us apart from our
competitors We do this by offening
our unmvalled portfclio of brands, and
freshily cooked food delivered in a stylish
envircnment with engaging service

Our pubs offer an unparalleled range of
Fuller's own beers and other premum
brands Our handpicked selection of
wines boasts many of which are exclusive
to Fuller's 1n the UK We have our own
coffee brand “Brewer Street”, served

In eye catching crockery, with a coffee
menu offenng all the popular vananis and
indulgent snacks, such as our delictous
nch chocolate browme

We endeavour to source local ingredients
for all our dishes Our beef and poultry
have been excluswvely British for over four
years We are taking this a step further
by broadering our partnership wath our
Hampshire butcher, Owtons, to source

al} beef for aur byrgers from 40 named
farms, with meat traceable back to an
indrdual ammal When you breakfast in
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“ONLY AT FULLER'S™

Delvenng pubs’ full
potential through the
dishncuve expenence

af premium brands,

unique dishes, inspinng
design and engaging
service, avallable
“Only at Fuller's”
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Group Managing Director’s Review contmued

a Fuller's hotel, your black pudding will
be Fuller's own, made for us by an award
winning producer i Hampshire The pigs
that go mnto our urique pork and HSB
sausages will be fed on the spent grain
from our Brewery in Cluswick Classte
pub dishes are always avalable on our
menus, execuled consistently and to a
tugh standard By keeping flexibility in our
supply chain to source fresh, seasonal
and local produce, our chefs are able to
exercise creative flar through indrvidual
menus tailored to the customers of each
of our pubs

Taking inspiration from our own beer
collectron we are excited Lo offer
custorners a number of appetsing beer
and food collaborations avallable only at
Fuller's Following on from the success
of London Porter smoked salmaon, a

hot smoked version was introduced in
May 2013 In November we launched
Fuller's Black Cab Chnstmas pudding
and the latest treat to grace the Fuller's
table is the Fuller's Vinlage Ale, date and
molasses sticky loffee pudding Over
the coming summer Wild River smoked
halibut and bread made from Fuller’s own
yeast will jon this range

People

Delivening our premium food offer 1s
supported by continual training and
development both in our kitchens and
through supplementary traimng Dunng
the year the first twenty-one Junior chefs
passed the Brtish Institute of innkeeping
Awarding Body ("BIIAB") accredited
scholarship programme to become

sous chefs or head chefs Our team of
classically trained Executive Chefs coach
and adwise individual chefs within the
Company to set ngorous skill and food
standards withirs our kitchens

We place great importance on recruiting
the nght people, with 2 passton for
providing good service and traning lhem
to equip them with Lhe skills they need

to excel and develop therr careers within
Fuller's We are investing more than

ever before 1n attracting and developing
talent to our pubs through our praduate
hospitality scheme and management
trainee programme Now in our third year
of traiming staff on the Wine and Spints
Education Trust foundation programme,
we have seen wine sales grow by 13%
since we commenced this programme

In December we launched a new
e-learning platform to defver certified
training in health and safety, food
hypene, hcensing and the Dysability
Discnmination Act Since then, over
1,400 courses have been comgleted
This approach provides an efficient way
to delver information appropnate to Job
roles to a wide audience

Connecting with Customers

In May 2012 we launched new mobile-
optimised websites for all pubs Nearly
one third of all wisits to our websiles are
currently made from a mobile device and
visits are increasingly driven by referrals
from social networks

A key objective of the new websites 1s

to generate onhne bookings 23% of
online room sales are now made through
Fuller's websites rather than agency
websites Online 1able bookings, avarlable
on the websites of around 60 selected
pubs, also continue to grow, with enline
table bookings in March 2013 exceeding
those taken in the peak trading month

of December

By the end of the year, the pub websites
were receming 42% maore unique visiters

FULLER SMITH & TURNERP L C

MANAGED PUBS AND HOTELS
LIKE FOR LIKE SALES GROWTH %

2013 2 1%
2012 4 7%
2011 3%
2010 2 7%
2009 3 0%
GROUP CAPITAL EXPENDITURE £ million
2013 127 129 55 311
2012 171 544 48 763
2011 120 - - 120
2010 135 o2 - 441
2009 140 102 - 242

than when first launched, and 24% more
ume was spent on each visit Dwell tme
has been increased by the addition of
Google Business Photos, to allow the
vser to ke a virtual tour inside the pub,
{urther promotng online bookings These
virtual tours are also avalable directly
through the Google Strectview website
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Group Managing Director’s Review continued

and the Gnffin Brewery in Chiswick

has become the first brewery in the UK
through which you can take a virtual tour
on Goople Streetview

Tenanted Inns

Onven by the first full year of benefit from
the 17 acquisibons in the prior year, the
Tenanted Inns business grew revenues
by 12% to £30 8 mffiion (2012 £275
million) Like for like profits were up 1%
and average EBITDA per pub increased
9%, culmmating, in operating, profit
before exceptional items 18% higher
than last year at £42 2 million (2012
£10 3 midlion)

We are proud to provide what we believe
to be one of the best packages in the
marketplace, a statement which s borne
oul by the average tenure of our tenants
exceeding six years — among the highest
in the industry Leading our affer1s our
premium portfoho of carefully crafted
beer brands and hand-picked selection
of wines Tenants have access to food

at group purchasing pnces and free
membership of the Bntish Institute of
innkeeping (“BlI") Cur expenenced and
BIIAB certfied Business Development
Managers provide adwvice to tenants on
how to grow their business and we offer
a number of training courses focussed on
different aspects of running a successful
pub We are continually strving to
smprove the support we provide in all
aspects of operations and compliance

TENANTED INNS PROFITS £ million

011 1212
2012 103
20m 99
2010 99
2009 102

1% FULLER SMITH & TURNER P L C

Qur tenanted service agreement was
launched in March 2012, providing a
complete property comphance package
at group purchasing pnces We targeted
to sign up 100 tenants i the first year,
but demand has exceeded this and

123 tenants are now paricipating in
this scheme which helps our tenants

to simphfy some of their legal and
regulatory obhigations

Report and Accounts 2013




MANAGED PUBS AND HOTELS

A one off benefit from the
Olympics drove accommodation
like for like sales growth of 8 2%

FULLER SMITH & TURNERP L C  Report and Accounts 2013 "
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TENANTED INNS

We offer our tenants a variety of
tools and services to help them
grow therr business, now including
a bespoke website, full property
compliance and free WiFiI  Average
EBITDA per pub rose by 9%

FULLER SMITH & TURNER PLC  Report and Accounts 2013




Group Managing Director’'s Review continved

In Aprl 2013 we launched an extranel
for our tenants, a one-stop shop to

help them manage their business From
this website Fuller’s tenants can access
comphance documents, financial and
stock reports, menu and poster designs
and a vanety of useful nforrnation The
content design for the website was
tenant-led and a number of forums were
held with tenants to shape and inform
the process The initial launch has met
the vasl majonity of their requirements
and we are working to develop and
enhance the site in order to meet the
remaining needs

Three years ago we were the first pub
group 1o offer free WiFt to customers

in our managed houses This proved

so popular that we have since had to
increase the bandwidth to meet demand
Dunng the year we were able to negotiate
free WiFI for our tenants from O2, our
group prowider As a result, all Fuller’s
pubs, managed and tenanted, now

offer free Wik This 1s an important

part of our overall package that aflows
our tenants to run a great pub and a
competitve business

THE FULLER'S BEER COMPANY

Total beer volumes were level with

last year in the context of an ongoing
challenging UK market for On Trade beer
sales Own beer volumes reduced 1%
and foreign beer volumes increased 3%
Revenues increased by 4% to £113 6
million (2012 £109 1 milion) EBITDA
was level with last year at £11 7 million,
but operaung profit before exceptional
items was 3% lower than last year at £8 7
milkon (2012 £9 0 mithon} due to the
increased depreciation charge from the
significant investment in additional tank
capacity in 2012

This investment was made to suppor
high growth in the Off Trade and Export
areas, which together now account for
two in every five barrels sold Expont
volumes in particular have grown 97%
over the last five years We focus on
growing our core markets, but we also
continue to explore new opportunities
and now expart to 68 countries around
the world

We welcome the recent abolition of

the duty escalator on beer, however,
successive duty nses above the raie of
inflauon over many years have taken

a lasting toll on our industry Beer
volumes nationally are in decline under
the burden of duty and we hope that the
Chanceldlor will give further beer duty
reductons to help the Bntish Brewers,
together with the British farmers who
supply the Barley and the Hops, and
the Briish pub mndustry of which we are
all so proud Collectively our industry
employs almost a million people, and
we contnbute over £11 billion to

the exchequer

Beer Company Strategy

The UK and worldwide dnnks markets
are undergoing a perod of change The
consurmer 1 Increasingly interested In
craft products, with local provenance,
quality and authenticity Sccial media
and digital technologies are tipping
the competitive landscape towards
these producers and away from the
mass market pants Fuller's s, and
always has been, a craft producer

and our strategy, which we began to
rallout towards the end of the year, 15
to leverage this compentive advantage
to grow our existing brands, develop
new ones and expand into other

craft segments

THE FULLER'S BEER COMPANY

As London's longest standing,
craft brewer, we continually
brng new products to market
whilst proudly brewing the
UK's No 1 Premium ale, London
Pnde

Growmg Brands

Duning 2013 we have been laying
foundations for future growth through
ncreasing brand equity and extending
our portfoho  in Apnl 2013 we began
packagng beer into our newly designed
bottles The first redesign of the bottle
for 19 years 1s elegant and distinctive
and will enable us to stand out from the
competiton on shelves both at home
and abroad We have also redesigned
every label to complement the new shape
and to give all of our beer brands a more
contemporary appeal

Qur new advertising campaign - “Made of
London” wall appear in newspapers and on
websites and poster sites around London
untl July and again in September "Made
of London" engages consumers by telling
the fascinating true stones of London
Pride and the unique provenance, history
and relanonship our flagship beer brand
has with London Weaving the past and
the present together allows consumers

1o discover the nch hentage of London’s
longest standing craft beer

Developing New Brands

Qur most excitting innovation Is the
launch of Frontier, 2 new wave craft
lager Pushing the traditonal boundanes
of lager brewing, this cutbing edge

beer has been hand-crafted over 42
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Group Managing Director’s Review contnued

days to explore new temntones in taste
From the imagination of a passionate
brewing team, drawing on over 160
years of brewing expenence we have
created a unique lager with a distinctive
flavour We combine old world malts
with new world hops and carefully
lager the beer for five weeks for a more
memorable taste, with citrus and spicy
notes Fronuer is served unpasteunsed
for additional freshness and so the
consumer can enjoy the full flavour in
its original splendour This small batch
craft lager will appeal to premium lager
dnnkers who are interested in 2 lager
with real taste and authenticity Initially
Frontier will be seeded into 50 pubs
around the country, allowing consumers
to seek it out, before distnbution

15 extended

We proactively develop our portfolio
of beers, providing vanety and interest
for consumers We produce a large
scale seasonal ale every month,

FULLER'S BEER BARRELS 000s

Qwn beer Foreign beer Towal

brewed destnbuyted
2013 2145 175 3320
2012 274 114 3 7z
2011 2155 108 63
2010 2200 104 7 3247
2009 2156 1036 392

*2011 barretage figures are pro fated 1o 52 weeks

TOTAL BEER BARRELS

Free On Trade %
Fuller s Managed Pubs & Hotels 22%
Fuller s Tenanted Inns 12%
Off Trade 13%
Exports 12%

reaching over 100 pubs Seasonal cask
ale volumes are growing 359 year

©On year, as our customers seek out
something new and interesting This
spnng we brewed “Brit Hop™ featunng
eight different British hops, including
the award winning Admiral 2012, used
for the first ime by Fuller’s Seasonal
beers that show greatest potentia are
extended into more permanent beers,
with Wild River following the success of
Bengal Lancer to become a permanent
part of the bottled range

Expanding into Other Craft Segments
- World Beer

In response to the Increasing consumer
demand for interesting beers with a
genune history and hentage, we are
developing a portfohio of world class
beers from around the globe exclusive to
Fuller's as UK distnbutars These beers
are carefully sourced from brewers who
share Fuller's passton for brewing and
uncompromising quality and the beers are
imported from thes home brewery, not
brewed under license

The first beer in this range was Veluns,

a Pisner lager, brewed to the German
punity law from 1516 and served in
tradittonal Germanic handled glassware
Launched to market in July 2012, Velins
15 on target to sell 2,000 barrels in its first
year, from a growng distnbution base
On 13 May 2013 we launched Chimay
Gold draughl, from the Chimay Abbey 1n
Belgium, with over 150 years of hentage
This 1s an authentic Trappist beer, served
tn traditional two-thirds of a pint goblets,
to be savoured and explored This

year 1s the first ime this unfiltered and
unpasteunsed 4 8% keg beer has been
avalable outside of Chimay Abbey and
we are the exclusive UK importer
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= Premium Cider

On 4 June 2013 we purchased 100%

of the share capital of Cormish Orchards

Limited for £3 8 millon The consideration
compnsed £2 4 million of cash, £0 5

million of assumed habilties and £0 9

million contingent consideration payable |
at a fulure date Established in 1999, I
Cormsh Orchards produces premium
cider with genuine provenance, hand
crafted from freshly pressed apples The
production faciliies 1n Duloe, Cornwall

are wellinvested with potential for further
expansion on the site The flagship

brand, Cornish Gold 1s a refreshing, and
truly delicious cider of uncompromising
quahity, makmng it 3 perfect fit with Fuller's
outstanding ales The premium cider
market s a strong growth area, with
healthy margins and the full award winning
range of ciders and artrsan soft dnnks are
ideal for our portfolio, and will prowvide

the opportumity 10 dnve incremental sales
through our existng sales channels

These unique addiions to our portfolio
allow us lo offer a more extensive
repertore of dnnks o our consupfprs

Simon Emeny i
Group Managing Director

7 June 2013




Corporate Social Responsibility

HERITAGE

Fuller's place in the industnal and cultural
hustory of London 15 well-documented, and
it 1s our careful preservation of this hentage
at the brewery and in our pubs which today
sees the Company held in hugh regard n
each commuruty it serves Brewing has
taken place on our Gnffin Brewery site n
Chiswick, West London, since at least the
17th century and some of our pubs have
been in the Company's ownership for over
150 years Many of our pubs pre date the
Brewery, as we have become custodians of
histonic sites through selected acquisitions

Some of our most recent pub acquisitions
and developments, i bustling towns such
as Reigate and Bath, and developments bke
The Parcel Yard in London's King's Cross
have further enhanced the Company's

reputation Tired, under-invested sites
which we have acquired, or blank canvases
such as that at King's Cross, have been
transformed tnto stunning venues for the
public to socialise n a comfortable and safe
environment The way we approach these
wnvestments 15 sympathetic to the location,
but also to the wider area as in all cases we
endeavour to use the herage of the site as
anntegral aspect of the design

As well 3s preserving and hughlighting the
tustory and hentage of our praperties,

we are also keen to re-establish hustorie
links wherever possible We are currently
creatinga wonderful new pub on the banks
of the River Cam, near Fareham, which will
be the recreation of a former udal mdl which
saton the site
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Al our brewery, we continue to detve Into
our nch brewing history with recreations

of beers from our brewing books, which
stretch back for two centunes Following

on from beers made to recipes from the
1890s and the 1930s, the next edihonin our
acclaimed Past Masters senes will be from
the more recent 1960s

COMMUNITY

fuller's has been a fixture of the Chiswack
and wider London community for many
centunes We are commitled lo continuing,
the close relauenship between our business
and the communites in which we operate,
including those in the wcinity of our growing
estate of pubs and hotels

In the last couple of years we have
established a presence in towns such as
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Stratford upon Avan, Bath, Reigate and
Alresford and as wath ali our businesses,
we actively encourage our managers and
tenants in these new areas (o support
local community programmes and events
as much as possible For example at The
Market Stores, a Resgate pub that we have
restored to be the “heart of the town”
since purchasmg itin 2012, we provided

support for 3 loca) chanty called Love Works

by providing free stock and assisting with
staffing thesr bar at the Diamond jubilee
celebravons

We continue to support local and nationai
charties through events run at our head
office as well as at indmdual pubs and
hotels raising over £230,000 tn direct
sponsorship Most notably, our pub
teams and brewery staff came out in
force once again dunng “Movember”,
raising almaost £20,000 for men's health
chantes, specifically prostrate cancer
Fuller's excellent support was rewarded by
the arganisers with a trophy presented in
eary 2013

Fuller's also continues to support many
causes, chantes and organisations in the
local area surrounding the Company's
Griffin Brewery, many of which are bound
by a simple “gentleman’s agreement’ made
many years ago Two examples of this are
the Thames Towpath Ten race alongside

the river Thames every Apnl and the Head
of the River Fours rowing race dunng the
autumn Both events have been able to
survive and thrive as a result of Fuller's
continued support

Other local interest groups which recene
financeal or in-kind support from the
Company nclude the Chiswick Prer Trust,
StMary's Convent & Nursing Home and
Chiswick House & Gardens, where we also
support the orgarsation of an annuat open-
air opera event, designed to raise further
funds for one of the hidden gems of the
West London area

Dunng this year we have also reached a
landrmark figure tn our fundraising for the
manttme chanty Seafarers UK, through
sales of our Seafarers Ale Fuller's donates
&5 per brewer’s barrel and the total raised
now stands at £100,000 Fuller's also
conbnues to support the work of Cancer
Research UK at the nearby Hammersmith
Hospital through suppont of the annual
London Pride Walk for Cancer Research UK,
(whch has raised over £1 million since the
first walk tn 1996) and 1s proud to continue
is high profile sponsarshup of the Virgin
London Marathon

RESPONSIBLE RETAILING

The Fuller's Beer Company continues to
pnde itself on the quality of beers that it
brews The premium postioring of our
brands is supported by advertising and
promotional actmty where the emphasis

15 on moderate consumption and taking
tme to appreciate a great beer that's
worth savounng. Our strategy continues to
promote quality rather than quantity

Alcahol misuse and the attendant 1ssues of
uvnderage dnnking, poor health and other
soc1al problems are matters of legumate
concem In the UK today We take these
ssues senousty and are committed to
playtng a leading role m responsible retaling
to reduce thewr impact.

We are active members of the BBPA
(“Bnush Beer and Pub Association”) and the
Bil (“Brush Institute of Inn keeping”), as well
as supporsng Dnnkaware, the govemment
sponsored trust which aims to promote
responsible dnnking and help reduce
aslcohol misuse and alcohal-related harm

We have always believed that a well-
managed pub offenng a relaxed and safe
emaronment, catenng for all ages 1s central
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to a community’s socsal cohesion and this
plays a wita! role in Bntain's sccial life in
our managed pubs we focus pnmanly on
food-led occasions where alcohol is drunk
as an accompaniment to the meal When
we do promaote dnnks we focus on quality
dnnks to savour rather than inibatives that
encourage or lead to excessive drinking,
such as "Happy Hours”

We aim to tailor our pubs’ offer to the needs
of the communities they serve This may
tnvolve encouraging families to visit through
our new children’s menu or encouragng

our managers to contnbute {o local
Pubwatch schemes Cur pub managers and
staff operate the “Challenge 217 proof of
age scheme Thus policy s audited through
unannounced test purchases

PEOPLE

The Fuller’s family ethos remarns strong and
is stll very ewdent threughout the business
Many employees stay with Fuller's for much
of their working life as demonstrated every
year by the numerous reciprents of our long
service awards

Qur graduate programmes go from strength
to strength, increasingly Fuller’s 1s being
viewed as a place for t2lented graduates to
develop into the leaders of the future Our
General Manager development programme
continues to develop the best assistant
managers Iinto new leaders for our Pub
estate Our Menitor programme has been
increased in size and scope, utilising the
skills and expenence of our semor managers
to support the development of our future
leaders

The Company has continued to strengthen
its commitment to health and safety ssues
both at the Brewery and in the retal estate,
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updating ocur approach through a "Safety
First” project. “Safety First” has entailed 3
complete revision of manuals, processes
and procedures and the implementation
of a new health and safety portal across
the estate The portal has made tasks
easier and has provded more effective
montonng and compliance

We recognise and reward excellence
throughout the business, whether through
promaton or a number of internal awards
We value loyalty very highly and offer a
range of benefits to encourage employees
1o take a stake in the Company’s long-term
success, such as the Save As You Eam
Scheme and Share Incentive Plan

ENVIRONMENT

2012 saw another penod of extreme
weather staring with hose-pipe bans and
ending as the second wettest year on
record We have to accept this 1s a natural
efiect of chmate change and continue

1o do everything we can to adjust our
operalions to MINIMISE Qur IMpact on

our emaronment.

Dunng the last financial year we
conunued to extend our use of LED
lighting, most recently in the Brewery
where replacement floodhighting in our
cask racking area has reduced energy
consumpbon by 85% and annual carbon
emissions by 38 tonnes

Less than 24% of our waste 15 now sent (o
landfill and we have continued to extend
the use of waterless unnals in our pubs
and hotels

Sub-metenng has been installed in seven
houses and detaled analysis of the data has
enabled us to significantly improve energy
consumption and reduce annual carbon
emissions by 110 tonnes Further savings
are expected over the coming months
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We are continually looksng for new ways to
tmprove our environmental performance
and have recently begun tnals on voltage
opbmusaton technology and sophisticated
controls to reduce gas consumption on
ballers The imual results of both of these
mitiatives look promising and a decision
on therr wder deployment will be taken
later this year

Thus year we have also introduced

a programme designed to change

our employees’ approach to energy
consumpton After sx weeks of the pilot
project, all but two of the 16 pubs have
made significant steps towards achieving
our brgeted reduction ff successful we will
extend the programme 1o the remamder of
our managed house estate later this year

tn Aprd 2013 we launched a redesigned,
hghter bottle for London Pnde These
bottles are 21% lighter than the previous
design and we anticipate thss will further
reduce gur annual CO, errussions by over
40 tonnes (equivalent to an average family
car drving around the world 10 tmes) This
15 the second time we have reduced the
weight of our bottles in the past three years

Our decision to implement 3 greener car
policy 4 years ago continues to delver
improved envronmental performance

The CO, emissions of our exssting fleet are
almost 25% less than the natonal average
for all cars and new cars joining our fleet
also have lower erissions than the national
New Car average

SUPPLIERS

We recognise that our actvtees have a
broad impact and that our responsibiliies
extend beyond our own operatons to those
of our supplers We understand we have a
responsibility to the envronment to ensure
that the products we source are sustanable

We constantly review our suppliers and am
to forge long-term partnerships which allow
both them and us to plan for the future
with some degree of stabiity For example
we enter into forward contracts with our
hop and barley farmers not only to secure
our own supply but also to guaraniee
orders from Fuller's gving our farmers the
confidence to tnvest in their harvests for
future years

Qur suppliers’ performance on human
nghts, health & safety and other ethical
1ssues form a key part of our buying
deasions We reguire all of our pnmary
supplers to provide us with their CSR pokcy
and we aim to ensure that al suppliers
adopt simiar values to Fuller's

Our menus reflect the seasons wherever
passible and 100% of our chips come
from Bnush Farmers All of our fresh meat
15 sourced from within the UK from our
trusted butcher’s thal camy certificaton of
all aspects of food safety and traceability
All of our eggs are from Bntish farms
meeting the Lion Qualty standards and
camying the Lion Quality symbal All

our fish for frying 1s sustainably sourced
and our two nomenated fishmongers are
accredited with the Manne Stewardship

Counall, who advise which breeds may be
at nsk ensunng we continue to develop our
menus responsibly

We understand that our customers want
locally seurced food and we want to support
local farmers We selectively source to give
all our menus a distincty local character
and have particularly strong links with food
supptlers in the South of England through
our support of umbrella orgamsations such
as Hampshire Fare and the New Forest
Marque We encourage the transportation
of local food on exsting vehicles to reduce
food miles All our bottled water comes
from New Forest Spnng water with the

New Forest marque, a symbol of quality and
local provenance

We show our commutment to sustainable
and ethical sourang by ensunng all our
coffee s Farr Trade We work hard with

our suppliers to reduce packaging and are
proud to s3y that 95% of the matenals we
use to package our beer are recyclable We
will contnue workang with our suppliers with
the aim of pushing thus up to 100%
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The Board of Directors as at 7 june 2013

Machael Tumer'

Executive Directors

Michael Tumer'

Chairman

Aged 61 Jomedin 1978 A Chartered
Accountant with mtemananal
expenence Inmally ran the Wine
Drasion as Wine Director Apponted
Marketing Directorin 1988,
Managing Director i 1992, Chief
Executive in 2002 and Charrman in
2007 Charman of the Baush Beer
and Pub Associabon 2008 2010
Master of the Worshipful Company
of vintners 2011-2012 Charrman of
the Nomunations Committee

Simon Emeny
Group Managirig Director

Aged 47 Joinedin 1996 from Bass
plc where he held a vaniety of semor
operauanal and strategic planning
roles Appointed a Director in May
1998 Non Executive Director of
Dunelm Group plc An Economics
graduate and alumm of Harvard
Business School

Jemes Douglas

Finance Director

Aged 47 Appowntedin 2007 from
LSE-Uisted telecoms operator Fibernet
Group ple, where he was Finance
Drrector Spent esght years with
Deutsche Bank as an mvestment
banker Qualfied as a prze winning
Chartered Accountant with
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Simen Emeny

PrcewaterhouseCoopers Holds a

first degree in Physics and a Masters
degree n Economics

Richard Fuller

Sales and Personnel Director
Aged 53 Joined the Company

In 1984 Appomted 2 Dmsional
Director with responsitality for
Sales i 1992, and additonially for
Personnel:n 2005 Appointedto
the Board m December 2009 Also
responsible for Public Relatons
AGMP graduate of Harvard
Busmness School

fan Bray

Managing Director of

The Fuller's Beer Company

Aged 49 Appontedin 2011
Previously European Marketing
Drrector of Bunge S A 3 Switzerland
based globd foods and agncultural
busmess Has held FMCG marketing
and serior management roles al
bothimemational and damestic
level, workang with comparues

such as Wngley, Muller and
Smrhkline Beecham A Business
Swdees graduate

jonathon Swaine

Managing Director of Fuller's Inns
Aged 42 Appointed to the Board

1 2012 Jomned the Company n
2005 and appoinied as Operations
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James Douglas

John Dunsmore™ '

Director for Fullers inns i 2007 Has
previously held postions at Carlton
Commurncatans and Molson Coors
An Asts graduate with 2 Masters
degree 1n Marketing and an alummn
of Columbxa Business School

Independent

Non-Executrve Directors

John Dunsmore™*

Aged 54 Appainted m 2009 Senior
Mon Executive Director Deputy
Charman of Genwus Foods Ltd ,
Founder and CEQ of The Hothouse
Investment Cub Former Cruef
Executive of C&C Group ple and
former Chvef Executive: of Scolbsh &
Newcastie plc pnor to its takeover by
Heineken and Carlsberg in 2008

Lynn Fordham®™*

Aged 50 Apponted m 2011
Chairman of the Audrt Commuttee

Richard Futler

Lynn fordham’™"

Chief Executrve of SVG Capial
Previous appomiments include CFC
SVG Capual, Deputy CFO at BAA ple,
Drrector of Audit and Risk at Boots
Group ple and Finance Director

of ED & F Man Sugar in addition,

she spent 10 years at Mobil Odina
number of financial and operational
roles predeminantly mternatonally A
graduate and Chartered Accountant

Alastarr Kerr™

Aged 63 Appontedin 2011
Charman of the Remuneration
Committee Non Executive Director
of bugh street clothing retader White
Stuff Ltd, Non Executive Director
and Chairman of the Rermuneration
Committee at Havelock Europa

PLC, Senuor Independent Director
and Charman of the Remuneration
Commuttee at Allance Trust PLC and
Charman of prvate holding company




Lan Bray

Aastar Kerr™

OnllanLtd He has previously held
semor roles at Mothercare and
Kwik-Fit, and was Managmg Director
of Europe, Middle East and Afnca
for The Body Shop and Managing
Drrector Europe for Virgn

Non-Executive Directors

Sur James Fuller Bt

Aged 42 Appomnted 02010 Served
in The Life Guards 1991 1998
Employed by the Company from
1998 2003, workng m the ted and
managed house estate and has snce
been nunming his own business

* mMember of the Remuneraton Commitiee
* Member of the Audi Commtize
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Financial Review

Financial Performance
The Charman's Statement and Group Managing Director’s Review on pages 2 to 15 cover 2 comprehensive review of the headline
financial resulls for the year just ended

Business Review
The key issues facing the Group are covered in the Chairman’s Statement and Group Managing Director s Review The key performance
indicators (KP1s) which the Group uses to monitor its overall financial posiion can be summansed as follows

2013 2012
EBITDA ___&512milllon __ £47 8 milkon
Pro forma net deby/EBITDA T T T i umes 27 tmes
f\djusled— p;'—ollis;_— B ) ~ _£317 milon £30 3 milhon
Adjusted eamings per share increase _ R _T%
ManageEl Pubs and Hotels i - o
Managed Pubs and Hotels invested like for ke sales growth . _ ) +21% _+4 2%
Wak;for Ike sales grc’)wth_ . o o L . 9% +4 0%
Food like for hke sales growth } _+3% _+45%
Accommodation ke for hke sales growth - _ S +8 2% _ +74%
Tenanted Inns B o ] ) T
Tenanted Inns like for ike profits o ) 1% +2%%
Like for ke barrels sold . _ _ e -5% 4%
Average EBITDA per pub _ ) L o +9 0% +4 2%
The Fuller's Beer Company - S "—~
Own Beer barrels sold . - . 1% %
Foregn Beer' b-agas sold i ) +3% +3%
Total Beer barrels sold level +2%

Tl defirmions of these financeal KPIs can be found i the Glossary and 3 commentary on them can be found in the Chaiman s Statement and Group Managing Daector s
Review Pro forma net debt/EBITOA 1$ adjusted (0 refiect the positon as if acqusitrons and desposals that took place dunag the year had occurred on the first day of the year

The principal non-financial metncs monrared by senior management are

Managed Pubs and Hotels
Mystery shopper programme “traffic hght” ratmg of pub stock and business auddts, cellar inspections, level of customer complaints,
uilty sndices, and health and safety incidents

Tenzanted Inns
Cellar inspecuons, Own Beer stocking, Tenant traning, number of tenancies at will, retention of tenants, and number of enants on cash
wath order

The Fuller's Beer Company
Production indices, utity indices, beer losses in producton, packaging line efficiency, warehousing and logistics volumes, health and
salety incudents, and beer quality

Our Operating Results

We have grown revenue by 7% on the prior year The majonty of the growth comes from the full year impact of pub acquisitions made in
the previous year supplemented by duty-dnven pnce nses Our operstng profits before exceptional items grew by 69 to £37 0 mifhon
{2012 £34 9 milkon), wath the largest contnbution to growth comng from the Tenanted Inns dmsion EBITDA alse increased by 7% to
£51 2 milbon (2012 £47 8 milhion) We acquired 4 pubs dunng the pened and disposed of one Tenanted pub which no langer mel our
critena as well as 3 number of unlicensed properties
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Financial Review contnued

Finance Costs

Net finance cosls before excepuonal items mcreased to £5 3 million from £4 € mithon as we incurred higher mterest costs of £5 5 milhan
on loans and debentures, compared ta £4 6 midhior i the pror year, from a full year of higher borrowang levels following the significant
levels of acquisiions made in the previous year This increase was partially offset by an increase i the novonal net finance income on
our pension scheme of £0 6 milkon compared to £0 3 ulkon in the prior year

Group net debt decreased marginally from £138 2 milkon at the start of the year to £135 6 million as we re-invested cash generated
from operations back inio the business

Qur blended cost of barrowings remained constant at 4 1% due to the lack of significant changes in our barrowing levels and ftat interest
rates on the vanable rate portion of our debt We expect this blended rate of interest to increase marguwally to 4 2% in the coming year
as we continue to pay down our cheaper vanable rate borrowings

Exceptional ltems

Net excepuonal profits before tax of £3 5 milion compnsed £5 0 milfion profit on property dispesals offset by £0 5 million of acquisibon
costs expensed ang property impairment charges net of reversals of £1 0 million After exceptional items, profit before tax was therefore
£35 2 million (2012 £28 8 mithion) We further benefitied from an exceprional deferred tLax credit of £1 8 mullion, pnmarly 2 credit of
£1 2 mullion relating to the reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 24% to 23% which came intoeffect on 1 Aprd 2013, with the
balance ansing on property disposals and mpairments The total impact of these items meant that basic earnings per share was greater
than the adjusted figure at 52 59p (2012 42 13p}

In the prior year the basic earnmgs per share were also impacted by exceptionat items, with exceptional profits after tax of £1 3 millon
These compnsed £3 0 mition of acquisition costs, a net £0 9 million onerows lease charge, £0 2 million of non-cash losses in relatian
to financial instruments which are not effective for hedge accounting purposes, £0 6 mullion profit on property disposal, net reversal of
property impairments of £2 0 milion and an exceptional deferred tax credit of £2 8 mullon mostly relating 1o the reduction of the UK
Corpaoration tax rate from 26% to 24%

Tax

A full analysis of the tax charge for the year 1s set outin note 8 1o the accounts Tax has been provided for at an effectve rate of 24 3%
(2012 26 1%) on adjusted profits The Group's overall effective tax rate of 16 8% was boosted by the deferred tax effect of the reduction
n UK corporatron tax rates from 24% to 23% from 1 Apnl 2013 (2012 17 7% aiter the corresponding effect of the reduction 1 rates
from 26% to 24% from 1 Apnl 2012)

Capital Spending, Disposals and Asset Impairment

Our capital spending of £29 € rithon included the acquisiion of four new pubs (exctusive of acquistian fees and stamp duty) - The Windmil,
Waterloo and The Grand Central, Bnghton i September 2012 and later in November, The Crystal Palace and Huntsman, two grade [l bsted
properues in the centre of Bath We mnvested substantially in the redevelopment of a number of our existng sites most natably, the Hand
and Flower, located in Lhe heart of Hammersmith, the Duke of Kent, Ealing, and the Turk’s Head, St Margaret's, all benefited from extensive
renovations Lo transform their offenngs to our customers At the sian of the year we completed the remodelling of the Tokenhouse, on
Moorgate, as well as our investment in the White Swan, Stratford upon-Avon, which now provides 3 41 mom boubque hotel The Ox Row
and the Horse and Groom, both addibons 10 our tenanted estate 1n 2012, receved substantial renovatons and were brought into cur managed
estale Capital expenditure tast year was signficantly higher at £74 7 mithon due 10 the acquisibon of 30 siew pubs and the substanual
investment i a number of these ses Targeted capital expenditure for the cormeng year of £31 5 millon includes £8 4 milhon of commutted
pub acquisinon costs and £2 9 million of committed corporate acquisitons Uncommitted acquisitons are not mcluded in this figure

Assel disposals rased 3 total of £9 5 million and we recorded an exceptional gawn on disposal of £5 0 multon which was largely attnbutable
to the sale of vanous unkicensed properties Qur annual comprehensive impairment review resulted n 3 nel imparrment charge of
£1 0 mullron i respect of our property assets {2012 net wnte-back of pnor impairments of £2 0 illion}

Pensions

The zccounting dedicit for defined benefit pensions has decreased by £5 1 milion to £13 0 milion {2012 £19 1 mullien) This was drven
poncipally by the increase i the fair value of the plans’ assets from £79 1 milhon to £88 9 mullion lagely driven by the greater than
expected retums on Equity wvestments and Corporate Bonds These gans were offset partially by an increase i the calculated present
value of pension obhgations from £98 2 milion 1o £101 9 millon as the assumptions of long term inflalion and salary growth increased
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Financial Review contnued

from 3 2% to 3 3% and from 3 7% 1o 3 8% respectfully Defict recovery payments of £0 7 milion were made dunng the year These
payments will be reviewed in July 2013 at the next tnenmal valuation

Sharehelders’ Return

Adjusted eamings per share was 8% hsgher than last year st 43 07p (2012 39 82p) The proposed final dwdend of 8 35p per 40p “A’
ordinary share, together with the intenm dradend of 5 35p per share already paid makes a total of 13 70p and compares with a total
dividend of 12 65p last year The total dvidend per share has grown by 8% and will be covered 3 1 times by adjusted eamings per share,
compared with 3 1 umes in the previous year Shareholders equity at the year end was £259 4 mithon

Dunng the period 411,393 *A” ardinary 40p shares were repurchased into treasury for £2 9 milion {2012 1 096,154 for £7 7 mullion)
In addison 86,500 A’ ordinary 40p shares, 696,752 B’ ordinary 4p shares and 4,935 'C ordinary 40p shares were purchased for
£1 1 mihon by or on behalf of the Trustees of the Share Incentive Plan and the LTIP Trustees to cover future issuance {2012 86,009 ‘A’
shares and 338.614 ‘B’ shares for £0 8 muthon) The average pnce paid was 717p per A’ ordinary 40p share The muddle-market quotation
of the Company’s ordinary shares at the end of the financial year was 820p The tughest pnce dunng the year was 820p, while the lowest
was 700p The Company's market capitalisation at 30 March 2013 was £457 4 million (2012 £398 9 million}

Cash Flow

Cash generated from operating actvities was £39 2 million (2012 £42 0 mullion) The £2 8 milhon reduction was largely due to negative
working capiial flows. due to the timing of payments to our supphers around the year end, which were offset by an increased EBITDA
Our capiial expenditure w the penod at £29 6 million (2012 £74 7 milfion) was much lower than last year which included the acquisition
of 30 pubs and 18 mayor refurtishments The net cash cutflow from investing actmties, after net income from disposals of £9 5 milhon
(2012 £1 9 million), was £20 1 mullron (2012 £72 8 miflion) Net debi decreased margwnally fram £138 2 mullion at the stari of the
year to £135 6 milhon as we re-invested cash generated from operations back into the business EBITDA increased by 7% lo £51 2
milfion (2012 £47 8 milhon), brnging our pro forma net debt to EBITDA ratio to 2 6 times (2012 2 7tmes) This level of debt allows
us continued fexibility to invest in future opportunities as they anse

financial Position - Bank facilities

Our total commutted bank facilites remained at £150 0 mullion at the year end of which £113 0 million was drawn (2012 £115 5 mulkon)
and £37 0 million was available (2012 £34 5 million) We utiised cash generated duning the year to fund the acquisiion of four pubs
as well as our annual capiial expenditure programme whilst maintaimng headroom at an appropnate level We matntamed our level of
hedged bank barrawings at £85 0 mdlion of which £65 0 milhon 1s swapped at a blended mierest rate of 1 8% (excluding bank margins)
and £20 ¢ miikon 1s subject 1o a cap of 4 0% In December 2012 we entered into 2 further interest rate swap agreement for £20 0 million
a1 2 3% The swap, due to commence in 2015, will allow vs 10 continue to borrow at 3 fixed interest rate untd 2022

Financial Position - Other Sources of Funding

The Group's financing 15 a mix of debentures, cumulative preference shares, overdraft, cash and short term deposits as disclosed in notes
22,24 and 26 Other financial assets and habilites such 3s irade receivables and payables anse through the Group's operating actvities
Denwvative instruments as detailled below are used to manage interest rate and foreign exchange nsk The Group does not trade n
financial instruments

The Group had £37 0 milion of undrawn comrmutted loan facihties at the year end with no repayment obligations for more than twe years
The table below analyses avalable and undrawn borrowing faciities at the balance sheet date

Total avaitable Amoum undrawn

Matunty Date £ mellion £ midbon

Uncommitted overdraft _ 2013 75 75
Commitied bank facility B 2015 1500 370
Debenture stock _ . ) 2023 2028 2538 T
Preference shares none 16 T -
Total 1849 445

The Group 15 able to aperate with negative working capital - trade and other payables were £12 5 milion greater than the aggregate of
inventanes and trade and other receivables at the year end (2012 £18 4 million greater)
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Financial Review continued

Financeal Risks and Treasury Pohcies

The Group Treasury Team consists of the finance Director and the Group Financial Controller The objectives of the Treasury Team are
10 manage the Group s financial ask, to secure cost effective funding for the Group's operations and to minimise the adverse effects of
fluctuabons in the financial markets on the value of the Group's financial assets and habihities, on reported profitabilty and on the cash
flows of the Group

The Group Treasury Team monilars the overall level of financial geanng weekly with our short and medwm-term forecasts showing
undertying levels of peanng which remain within our targets

Interest Rate Risk

li1s Group pohcy to hedge the interest rate nsk of at least 50% of our gross borrowings by esther the underying instrument being at a fixed
rate, or by taking out interest products to fix or cap the interesi rate Al the Balance Sheet date 80% of the Group 5 gross borrowings were
atfixed or capped rates and the fixed rates ranged between 1 2% and 2 5% (excluding bank margn) on bank borrowtngs and then between
6 0% and 10 7% on preference shares and debentures

Total drawn  Amount fued/hedged Fred/hedged

£ milion £ milhon »

Commutied bank lacility (net of arrangement fees) ) _ 1124 850 76%
Debenture stock e .. 258 258 100%
Preference shares 16 16 100%
Total borrowings 1398 112 4 80%

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group has seme foreign currency nsk as it both imports wines denominaied in Euro, US dollars and Australian dollars and exports
beer tn US dollars There 1s some natural hedge of US doilars and the net currency nsks may be covered by entenng into forward foreign
exchange contracls

Risks and Uncertainties Facing the Group

We report i detall the nsks and uncertamues facing the Group on pages 26 and 27 In summary we identify three different genenc types
of nsk and uncenainty Regulatory nsks encompass the nsks to our business of increased regulation of the sale of alcohol, health and
safety in the workplace and pensions Economic and market condiens inctude the nisk o the business due to the strength or otherwise
of the economy, cost pressures including the increase in the mimimum wage, the nisk of assigned leases reverung to the Group and
changes in consumer trends Operatienal nsks include damage to our property, brands or reputation and our reliance on information
systems to operate efficiently on a dally basis

Going Concern Statement

The Group's business actvities, together wth the factors likely to affect its {uture development, perfarmance and position have been sel out
in the Chairman's Statement and Group Managing Director’s Review an pages 2 to 15 and in this Finanaial Review The financial position of
the Group including the vanous sources of finance available and nts cash flows have been descnbed herein tn addition, note 26 of the financial
statements mncludes detailed disclosure on the Group's obyectives, policies and processes for managing s capital, its financial nsk
management objectrves, detatls of its financaal instruments and hedging actvities, and s exposures to credit and Iiquidny nsk

The Group s vertically integrated, s diversified across a wide range of sales channels and 1s strongly cash generatve We have performed well
throughout the recent economic cycles We believe our financial position 15 strong and we have always borowed prudently We continue to
be well placed going forward and have £150 0 milhon of bank faciives in place unt! May 2015 of whech more than £30 0 million 1s not drawn

On the basis of current financial prejections and hawing considered the faciliies available the Directors 2re confident that the Group and
Company have adequate resources to continue m operational existence for the foreseeable future and, accordingly, consider that it 1s
appropnate to continue to adopt the poing concern basis of accounting In prepaning the financial statements

James Douglas
Finance Director M l/Ldj——""'
7 June 2013

FULLER SMITH & TURNER PL C  Repon and Accounis 2013

25

BUSINESS REVIEW

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION




26

Risks and Uncertainties

In the course of its normal business, the Group continually assesses and takes action to mitigate the vanous nsks encountered that could
impact the achievement of its obyectives As detaded in the Corporate Governance Report, there are systems and processes in place lo
enable the Board 10 momtor and control the Group's management of nsk The Audit Commultee regularly reviews the effectiveness of
this process and seeks to ensure that management's response is adapted appropriately to the changing environment

The following sets out what the Board considers to be the pnncipal nsks which affect the Group al present, afthough it 15 not intended
to be a comprehensive analysis of all the nsks that the business may face In addition, the key financial nsks to the Group are detarled in
note 26¢ to the financiat statements

Regulatory Risks

Regulation of the Sale of Alcohol Within our industry there s stways the nisk that the Govemnmenl may change legislation n a manner
that may adversely affect us Notably, in the past five years UK alcohol excise dutes have been increzsed by more than 45% In the
recent budgel the Chancellor announced the abaliion of the duty esczlator on beer Whilst this was 3 positive step we recogruse that
this remains 2 widely debated topic and an area that is open o future revision of government policy In 3ddition duty on other alechol
continues (o nse annually at 2% above inflabon There is a nsk that continued inflation busting duty ncreases may depress sales or further
reduce margins in our industry

In March 2013 the government also announced Lhat it intends to miroduce laws to set a minimum pnce per unit of alcohol by 2014 a5
well as a ban on Supermarkets from offerning ‘mult-buy’ discounts Simitar attempts lo introduce pricing measures in Scotland have so
far been unsuccessiul

Beer Tie Whilst the Eurapean Union has renewed the block exemption with regard to the Beer Tie untl 2022, the Beer Tie continues to
be the subject of much debate and scrutiny in the UK In Apnl 2013 the Business Secrelary announced a consultation for a mandatory
code ol practice for the industry as well as the appontment of an independent adjudicator The adjudicator will oversee praclices within
the industry with a view 1o transfernng £100 aullion 2 year of value from puly companies to tenants Currently the industry maintains a
voluntary code of practice which 1s regulady reviewed and updated in consultation with numerous pub company's and industry groups
To ensure the transparency and openness of our Tied agreements, our own Tenanted Code of Practice, which 15 accredited by the Bntish
Institute of Innkeeping, 1s cerrently being aligned 10 the most recent industry code

Current proposals are for the new mandatory code of practice to apply only to comparies with over 500 pubs however there remains
the nsk that this threshold wall be revised and may be imposed upon us Such events would have a significant impact for a number of
our customers and affect the profitability of our business There continues to remain the fisk that eventually the authonties will further
interfere with the exasting arrangements resultng sn the abohiion of the Beer Tie This would necessitate changes to our business model,
with hugher property rents and lower pnces for the supply of dnnks bemng charged

Health and Safely The health and safety of the Group’s employees and customers 15 3 key concem lo us We reporst and invesugate
both aceidents and near misses In order to reduce the nsk of kitchen fires in our Managed Pubs and Hotels we have automalic fire
suppression systems in every kitchen A Health and Safety Commuttee 1s in place in order to oversee the operation of the Group’s health
and safety policies and procedures, and to regularly update ils training programme lo ensure that all nsks are identfied and prapery
assessed and that relevant regutation s adhered to

Penstons The Group operates several pension schemes mcluding a defined benefit pension scheme and management cantinue Lo closely
monuor developments in relaton to pension scheme funding Although the defined benefit scheme 1s now closed to new entrants there
remains a significant pension hability of £13 milhon on the Balance Sheet There 1s therefore a nsk 1o the Group that a change in legislation
cauld impact cash flow by setting 2 muumum funding level that 1s above the Group’s current coninbutions or by requiring higher
contnbuytions by a change lo the basis of calculating the scheme defict The Group has a programme mn place to reduce the deficit and
made an addiuonal contrtbution of £0 7 milion in the penod ended 30 March 2013 The Group has agreed with the trustees to review
this additional contnbution in July 2013 and 11 1s expecled that the value of the payment will increase

Ecanomic and Market Conditions

Strength of the Economy We are expaosed to the overall strength of the UK economy and its influence on consumer spending The
Group constantly invests tn its key brands and ensures 1t 1akes advantage of the opportuniiies presenied Lo encourage customers inlo
its pubs The weak economic recovery 1s being affected by high inflation, unemployment atits lughest level since the early 1990°s, and
in real terms pay reductons Combined, these factors are likety to reduce total UK cansumer spending i the short term Nonetheless,
the outlook 1s better than the deep recession the UK has just endured and the Group traded well through thai difficult penod

FULLER SMITH & TURNER PL C Report and Accounts 2013




Risks and Uncertainties conunued

The Group mantains a high quahty of cperation and product in order to maintain its competitve posilon However, the Group's pubs
compete for consumers with 3 wide vanety of other branded and non branded pubs and restaurants as well 3s off-licences, supermarkels
and other leisure outlels We constantly review the position of our pubs i the market and consider that our differentiators and brands
pul the Group i the best possible position for the current marketplace

Assigned Leases The Group has in the past assigned a number of property leases to third partes The Group no longer operates these
properties and does not account for the rents due under the leases There is a nsk that, in the event of default on the sental payments
by an assignee, the landlord would seek to recover the unpard rents from the Group The Group manitors the credn worthiness of the
assignees, but ulumately the nsk we face 15 a result of the third parties’ perfarmance, nself fargely influenced by the economy

Supply Chain Farlure Whilst we brew our own beer in Chiswack, our production process and our pubs rely on @ number of third parties
to provide continuity of supply The quality and avallability of these supplies are integraf to our ability to operate Suppliers are carefully
selected with significant consideration given to the source and quality of the produce The majonty of our food 15 provided fresh and
sourced from within the UK We maintain close relationships with all our suppliers and where appropnate put in place long term supply
contracts Qur foad 15 delivered by 3 number of supphers which avoids concentration in a sole supply amangement However, the weak
economic chimate increases the nsk of a supplier fatlure, and therefore we monitor the credit worthiness of all our suppliers as well as
continually review contingency plans in the event of a falure tn supply

Cost Increases Utiities and agncultural produce such as hops, makt and barley, as well gs food produce ate significant inputs for the Group
and have been subject lo considerable pnce increases in recent years Further input costincreases could impact the Group's profitability
Management has in place arrangements with some of its key suppliers to secure supply and pnces for the medwm term (thereby also
enzbling the business ta plan effectvely), but such measures can do no more than delay cost increases should they be sustained

Consumer Trends (n the UK, consumption of alcahol contrues to be the subject of considerable secial and pelitical attention Increasing
public concem over alcohol related somial problems, including underage danking and health consequences associated with the misuse
of alcoho!, has conlnbuted to declming sales of beer in the UK The Group lakes these 1ssues senously and continues to support the
industry's campaigns and to market its products as premium beverages to be drunk 1In moderation in 3 social environment More generally,
management frequently carries oul research amongst Ils customer groups to ensure It reacts to changing consumer preferences
Accommaodauen and food sales are an area of focus and are an increasing proportion of total sales, prowding diversification protecuon
against shifung consumer behaviour

Operational Risks

Gniffin Brewery Site The Group's headquarters and sole brewing facility are based at the Gnffin Brewery ste in Chiswick A disaster at
this site would senously disrupt opersuons We take vanous measures to mitigate the impact of such an event For example we store
recipes and yeast off-site and have informal arrangements in place to use alternative fzcilities, but such measures cannolt fully rephicate
the Chiswick aperalions

Brands and Repulation Fuller's has a wide portiolio of brands and has estabhshed an excellent reputation in the market Principally,
there 15 a nsk that the Group's beer could become contaminated at source or cullet, which could damage the reputation of the brand
and deter customers The Group reduces product contamination asks to an acceptable level by ensunng that the business is operated
to the highest standards by maintaining long term relationstups with supphers and by stgruficant mvestment in secunty. quality control
and cleansing, together with nsurance coverage for product contamunaton In addition, the Group runs an active and continuous training
programme covenng all aspects of the pub operations and prowides its pubs with onsite techmical suppont

New Competitors The entry of new compettors into our markets, 2 change i the level of marketing undertaken by them or in thew
prcing policies, consalidauon of competitors and/or the ntroduction of new competng products or brands could have a matenal adverse
impact on aur market share, sales volumes, revenue and profits We have an an-going programme of brand investment to maintamn and
enhance the market position of our products

information Technology The Group 15 increasingly reliant on its information systems to operate on 3 daly basis and trading would be
affected by any significant or prolonged failure of these systems To mimmise this nsk the IT function has a range of facihties and controls
n place to ensure that in the event of an 1ssue normal operation would be restored quickly These inchide 3 formal Disaster Recovery
Plan, on-hne rephication of systems and data to a third party recovery facihty and external support for hardware and software
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Directors’ Report

The Directars present ther annual report together with the audited financial statements for the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 The
narrative pages throughaut the report consutute the Company’s management report as required undec the FCA's rules

A) BUSINESS ACTIVITIES AND DEVELOPMENT

The Chairman's Slatement and Group Managing Director's Review on pages 2 to 15 and the Financial Review on pages 22 to 25 include
wformation about the Group’s principal actmties, the business and financial performance dunng the year and tndications of hikely future
developments and collectively provide a business review

Dividends

The Company paid an intenm dridend of 5 35 pence on the 40p "A’ and C' ordinary shares and 0 535 pence on the 4p B’ ordnary
shares on 2 January 2013 The Drrectors now recommend 2 final dvidend of 8 35 pence on the 40p ‘A’ and 'C’ ordinary shares and
0 835 pence on the 4p ‘B’ ordinary shares This makes 3 total of 13 76 pence on the 40p 'A' and C' ordinary shares and 1 37 pence
on the 4p 'B’ ordinary shares for the year

The total proposed final dvidend en ordinary shares will be £4,651,000 which together with the 2013 imenm dividend paid of
£2,982,000 and the £120,000 of cumutative preference dnvidends paid will make total dividends of £7,753,000

Market Value of Land and Buildings

On 27 March 1999 the freehold properties, with the exception of unlicensed premuses and the Brewery buldings, were partally revalued
on an open market “for existing use” basis, based on a one fifth representative sample, by a firm of professional valuers From 1%59
onwards, assets have been retained at the values a1 27 March 1999, and have not been revalued further

Since 1999 the Directors have had a senes of informal and sample valuatiens and are confident tha the market value of the Group's
estate 15 significantly agher than thal recorded as book value

8) DIRECTORS

Alist of current serving Directors and therr biographies 1s given on pages 20 and 21 Simon Emeny, Lynn Forgham and Sir James Fuller
retre by rotauon at the Annual General Meeting and offer themselves for re-election Simon Emeny 15 an Executive Durector and has a
roling service contract of 12 months durauon Lynn Fordham and Sir James Fuller are Non-Executive Directors who do not have service
contracts but have been invited to stay on the Board until January 2015 and May 2016 respectively

Directors’ Interests

Detads of Directors’ interests 11 the share capital of the Company up 10 28 May 2013 are given overleaf Detalls of Directors share
options and allocations under the Long Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP*) up to 28 May 2013 are gwven in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on pages 41 to 51

The Remuneration Committee put share retention guidelines in place for Executive Directors some years ago and these state that all
Executives should, within ten years of joining the Company, hold shares worth at least their annual salary Itis expected that the Company’s
share schemes should enable all Executives who do not already meet this target to do so withun the ten year mit However these
guidehnes are currently under review and it 1s expected that they will be updated within the next few months

Related Party Transactions
Details of related party transactions invohing Directors are given in note 30 to the financial staiements
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Directors’ Report conunued

30 March 2013 and 28 May 2012 31 March 2012
{or leaving date) {or appomntmens date)
Durectors” Shareholdings Share class Benelcaal  Non Beneficial Benefind  Non Beneficial
Michae) Turner ____'Aordinary 40p 251,158 - 389338 139,880
) B’ ardinary 4p 2,775,750 - 4675652 3,490,974
L . 'C’ ordinary 40p 624,260 - 1016570 750,517
2nd preference £ Al - 22,993 40,192
Simon Emeny __ . __Aordinary 40p 93,93% - 88,732 -
'8’ ordinary 4p 623,951 - 526,655 -
James Douglas. A’ ordinary 40p 40,19 - 27.856 -
B’ ordinary 4p 84,090 - 13.440 -
Richard Fuller A’ orchnary 40p 7,720 500,000 9.698 500,000
L ‘B ordinary 4p 3322540 10935015 3,398,576 10935015
e o G OMnEtyd0p 25900 N - 1.
2nd preference £1 303 303 -
lan Bray ‘A ordinary 40p 1,647 - 1,250 -
Jonathon Swame ‘A’ ordinary 40p i 12,753 - 8635 -
‘8" ordinary 4p 41,804 - 18,789 -
John Dunsmore ‘A’ ordinary 40p 2,328 - 2,328 -
Sir James Fuller ) ‘A’ ardinary 40p 88,942 - 88,942 -
) . ‘B’ ordinary 4p 9,143,952 - 9143952 -
‘C' ordinary 40p 2,691,313 - 2,691,313 -
Lynn Fordham ‘A_ordinary 40p 3,182 - 3.182 -
Alastarr Kerr ‘A’ ordinary 40p 2,941 - 2,941 -
Nigel Atkinson’ A’ ordinary 40p 2,750 - 2750 -
1Rewred 18 july 2012

Indemnity Provisions

The Company's Artcles of Associauen provide the Directors wath indemnities in relation (o their duties as Orrectors, including qualifying third
party indemnnty provisions {within the meanung of the Compames Acts) All of the Executive Directors’ contracts contain a clause which
states “the Executive shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Comparvy against any labifity mcurred by him as a Director or ather officer
of the Company in defending any proceedings (whether el or crimunal) in which judgement is given in his [avour or in whuch he s acquitied
oc in connection with any application under the Companies Acts in which relief from habiity 1s granted te him by the court from hability for
neghgence default, breach of duty or breach af trust he may be guilty of n relaton to the affars of the Company * The Company purchases
nsurance caver for Trustees of the Company’s defined benefit pension scheme james Douglas 15 3 Trustee of the scheme
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Directors’ Report contnued

€) CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
The Group's acbvives dunng the year in the areas of Hentage, Community, Responsible Retaling People, the Environment, and Suppliers
are discussed in detail in the separate Corporate Social Responsibilty Statement on pages 16 to 19

Employees

The Group continues to attach a high pronty to further improving its communications with all employees (and pensioners), thus
encouraging a common awareness of the financial and economic factors affecting the Group Increasingly, the Company’s intranet and
e-mail systems faciitate this, and we will continue 1o search for ways to exploit these media to bes! effect Twice a year all Brewery based
employees are mvited to a results presentaton led by the Group Managing Director Regular newsletters are also generated for both The
Fuller's Beer Company and Fuller's Inns employees and ad hoc news 1s regutarly communicated via bath traditional notice boards and
e-mail distnbutions The communications pohcy, which 15 1n operation throughout the business, Is designed to ensure the successiul
cascading of snformation A structure of Consultation Committees both at Dmsional and Corporate levelis n place 1o facilitate a dialogue
between the Group and representatves of all employees including urmon members Taken together, these communications have allowed
the Group to engage successfully with all our employees, wherever they are employed

The Group's recrutment policy 1s designed to ensure that all applications for employment, including those made by disabled persons,
are given full and far consideration, in light of the apphicants’ particular aptitudes and abilities The Group also has an equal opportunity
pehcy which 1s designied to ensure that all employees are treated equally in terms of traning, career development and promotion Where
employees develop a disatility dunng their employment by the Group, every effort will be made to continue their employment and arrange
for appropnate traning, career development and promotion as far as 15 reasonably pracucable Development and training of our employees
a1 all levels has always been a prionity at Fuller's

The Company conunues to offer qualifying staff a Savings Related Share Opuon Scheme, a Share Incentive Plan and a vanety of
performance related bonus arrangements, which serve to encourage slafl interest m the Group's performance Staff throughout the
Group afso benefit from a staff discount scheme

Polmical and Charitable Donatrons

The Company does nat make poliucat donations The Company makes donatsans to charities in order to support the communities that
it operates 1n and the chamtable actvities of its staff and other stakeholders Cash contributions made by the Company for chantable
purposes amounted to £103,000 {2012 £95,000) These figures exclude goods supplied by the Brewery as gifis to charitable
orgamisations and fund raisng undertaken by the Group’s staff members Managed pubs and Tenanted pubs, 2s descnbed n the Corporate
Socta! Responsibibity Statement on pages 16 to 19

Supplier Payment Policy

The Group agrees ts payment pracbce with its suppliers in advance The Group generally pays UK trade suppliers at the month end following
the month of nvaice Overseas suppliers (mostly of wine) are paid between two and three months after the month of invoice, depending
on delivery tmes from the country of ongin The average amount of credit taken from suppliers as at 30 March 2013 for the Group and
Company was 34 days (31 March 2012 46 days)

D) KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS {“KPis™)

Oetails of the Group's KPIs can be found in the Financial Review on page 22 In addition a definimion of the key terms used s included n
the Glossary on page 104

E) FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND TREASURY POLICIES
The Group Treasury and Financial Management policies are discussed in the Financial Review on page 25 The main nsks associated with
the Group's financial assets and habilities are set out 1 note 26 to the financial statements

F) RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Details of the pnncipal nsks and uncenainues that the Group s exposed to can be found in the Risks and Uncertainties statement on
pages 26 and 27
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Directors’ Report contnued

G) SHARE INTERESTS
The followmng disclosable nterests of shareholders (other than Direclors} have been noufied to the Company

% ‘A’ ordmary shares of 40p exch % ‘B ondnary shares of 4p each %°C ardinary sheres of 40p each
As at As st As at 30 March 2013 As a1 30 March 2013
30March 28 May and and
Name 2013 2013 28 May 2013 25 May 2013
Black Rock. Inc 882 900 SIrjHF Messrs AF SirJHF, Messrs AF
Aberdeen Asset and E F Fuller 16 26 and E F Fuller 3061
Management PLC J F Russefl-Smuth Mr T ) M Tumer 612
and dts subsidhanes 780 780 Chaniable Trust 766 Mr H D Willams 597
Amenpnse Financial, tnc 666 6838 Mr A GF Fuller 572 Mrs ] Fuller 424
Kames Cadpltal and . . A B Earle Chantable Trust 462 Fuller Family Members Trust 196
associated ennties 44 44
MrsS B Stuan 459 piss SMTumner 502
Dunarden Limited 304 304 Dunarden Limited 360
Mr R D Inveranty 152
Mr G F lnveranty 348
Mr H D Williams 22
Miss S M Turner 322
H) SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

Special Business at this Year's Annual General Meeung
Detalls of the items requinng explanation at this year's Annual General Meeting are included 1n the circular to shareholders dated 27 june
2013, at the back of which 1s the Notice of Meeling

Purchase of Own Shares

Al the Annual General Meeung of the Company held on 18 July 2012 the Company was given authonty to purchase up to 4,833,753
‘A ordinary shares Thus authonty will expire at the Annua) General Meeting and shareholders will be asked to give a similar authonty to
purchase shares up to 15% of the ‘A’ ordinary capital 3l that date The Company’s maximum issued ardinary share capual dunng the
year was £22,793 726, which included £13,369,642 40p ‘A’ ordinary share capnal

Dunng the year the Company purchased a tolal of 411,393 40p ‘A ordinary shares at 3 total cost of £2,932.000 Of these 260,289
shares, with avalue of £1,742,700, were transferred to the Company’s Long Term fncentve Plan (“LTIP") Trustee on 20 July 2012 These
share purchases represented 0 724 of the maxmum ssued ordinary share capital (1 23% of the Company s issved ‘A’ ordinary share
capral} Taking into account all the buybacks since December 2001, 18 40% of the Company’s issued ordinary share capitat (3137%
of the Company's 1ssued ‘A’ ordinary share capitat) has now been purchased

In additon the Company employee share ownershup trusts purchased atotal of 86,500 40p ‘A’ ortinary shares at 3 total cost of £615,020
for the SIP and 696,752 4p ‘B ordinary shares at a tota! cost of £521 101 and 4,935 'C’ ordmary shares at » total cost of £35.811 for
the LTIP

Dunng the year 144,172 of the 40p ‘A’ shares held by the Comparty as treasury shares were resssued in connection with the Savings
Related Share Option Scheme, the Executive Share Option Scheme and the Seruor Execulive Share Opton Scheme, generating nel cash
proceeds of £593 898 Atolal of 1,205,644 40p 'A’ ordinary shares at 28 May 2013 are currently held as treasury shares
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Directors’ Report continued

1} SHARE CAPITAL AND ARTICLES
Information on the Company's capital structure and related restnctions is given in note 27 to the financial statements Detads of significant
shareholdings are given n Section G) above

Computershare Trustees Limited holds 1 47% of the ssued share capital of 40p A’ ordinary shares on behalf of employees of the
Company who are partkipants in its Share Incentive Plan In respect of the shares that have been allocated, Computershare Trustees
Limited exercises voting nghts in relauon to those shares, having consulted with the participants about their vating, intentions

The cufrent Articles of Association state that the Board may appoint Directors and that at the subsequent Annual General Meetng,
shareholders may elect any such Director Alternatively the Company may direcily appoint a Director The Articles also cantan the power
for the Company {0 remove any Direclor by special resolution and appoint someone in his place by ordinary resoluton There are vanous
other circumstances under the Artcles which would mean that the office of a Director would be vacated including if he resigns, becomes
of unsound mind or bankrupt

At every Annual General Meeting one-third of the Directors who are subject to retirement by rotation or, if their number 1 not three or
any multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one third shall retire from office but, if there 15 only one Director
who is subject to retirement by rotauen, he shall retire tn addition, if any Director has at the start of the Annual General Meetng been
in office for more than three years since tis last apponiment or re appaintiment he shall retire at thas Aanual Geaeral Meeting

The Arcles do not centan any specific provisions about amendments to the Articles which are therefore governed by the relevant
Comparues Act requirements which state that the Articles may only be amended by Special Resolution

Subject to the Company’s Memorandum and Artictes of Association and UK legslation, the business of the Company 1s managed by the
Board which may exercise all the powers of the Company The Articles of the Comparry have 3 section entitied “Powers and Duties of
the Board™ whuch seis out powers such as the nghts to establish local boards, to appont agents, to delegate and to appoint persons with
the destgnation “director” without implying that the person 1s a Director of the Company There are fusther sections of the Articles entitled
“Allotment of Shares" settng out the Board's power to 1ssue shares and purchase the Company’s own shares, and entitled "Borrowing
Powers™ setung out the provisions concerning the Company's power to borrow and give secunty The Directors have been authonsed
to allot and issue ordinary shares These powers are exercised under authonty of resolutions of the Company passed at its Annual
General Meeting

The Group has entered into a number of agreements with the major brewers operating in the UK under which 1t both buys and sells beers
and these agreements may be terminated by the other party should the Group undergo a change of control

In the event of 2 change of control the Company s abhged 10 noufy its main bank Lenders of such The Lenders shall not be obhged 1o
fund any new borrowing requests and the facdites will lapse after 30 days from the change ef control if terms an winch they can continue
have not been agreed All borrowmgs induding accrued interest will become repayable wathin ten days of such a lapse

By order of the Board

Mﬁ\ragz. FOIS Fuller Smith & Tumer PLC

Company Secretary Gnffin Brewery
7 June 2013 Chiswick Lane South
Chuswick, London W4 2QB

Registered number 241832
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Directors’ Statements

Statement of Directors’ Responsibibtzes in Respect of the Financial Statements
The Drrectors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Repon and the Group and Company financial stalements, in accordance with
apphicable Uited Kingdom law and those International Financial Reporuing Standards (“IFRSs®) as adopted by the European Umion

Under Company Law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are sausfied that they fairty present the financial
positian, financial performance and cash flows of the Company and of the Group for the financial year In preparing the Group and
Company financsal statements, the Directors are required 1o

-

select suitable accounting policres in accordance with 1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emors and then
apply them consistently,

» presend informauon, inchuding accounting policies i a manner that provdes relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information,
- provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requicements in IFRSs 1s insufficient to enable users to understand the
wnpact of paricular ransactions, other events and conditons on the Group and Company s financial poson and financial performance,

state that the Group and Company have comphed with IFRSs, subject o any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements and

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficent to show and explain the Group s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial posiion of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Comparues Act 2006 and applicable regulations, including the requirements of the Lisung Rules
and the Disclosure and Transparency Rules and in the case of the Group financial statements, with Articte 4 of the IAS Regulation They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevenuon and detection of
fraud and ather wregulanties

Statement as to Preparation of Financia! Statements
The Directors confirm, 1o the best of their knowledge

+ that these financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopled by the European Unian, give a true and fair view of the
assets, habiines, financial position and proiit of the Group and Company taken as a whole and

+ that the Diregtors Report, the Chairman's Statemem, the Group Managing Director s Review and the Financial Review, include a fair
review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Group and Company taken as 3 whole together
with a descnption of the pnngipal nsks and uncenamntes that they face

The Directors of Fuller, Smith & Tumer PL C are hsted on pages 20 and 21

Directors’ Statement as to Disclosure of Infarmaton to Auditors
The Directars who were members of the Board at the ume of approving the Darectors’ Report are hsted on pages 20 and 21 Having
made enquiries of fellow Directors and of the Company's auditors, each of these Directors confirms that

« to the best of each Drrector's knowledge and belief, there 15 no information retevant to the preparation of (his report of which the
Company’s auditors are unaware, and

» each Director has taken al) the steps a Director rmight reasonably be expected to have Laken to be aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that informaticn

On behalf of the Board

Michael Turner James Douglas
Chairman Finance Director
7 June 2013 7 june 2013

WL pq (b
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Corporate Governance Report

Comment fraom the Chairman Michael Turner

*| am pleased to confirm that | see it as the Charman's respons:bibty to lead the Board and make sure it s workang effectvely Whlst the
detan of our compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code 1s set out below, there are several matters that | wanted to comment
on The first s the issue of successton planming This is 3 complex topic for a business that has very low turnover amongst its senior
management and 1s st very much a famuly concern whilst also being a listed public company However succession plans continue Lo be
discussed both at Executive Commiltee and Board level and we announced in Apnl that Simon Emeny will become Chief Executive in
July and | will continue as Chairman but in a Non Executive capaaity These changes are very much part of our long term succession plan

Throughout the rest of the business successton plans are in place al departmental leve) and are reviewed regufarly by the relevant directors
in comuncton with their personnel advisers Furthermore, all department plans are compiled into a Company succession plan which
prowides effective review of cross departmental promotion and opportunives

In terms of Board balance, | chair the Nominations Commuttee and am personally involved in 21l Board level recruitment so | am able to
ensure that we continue 1o have a good balance of skills, expenence, independence and knowledge on our Board and our Board
committees | am satisfied that our Board 1s compnsed of the nght sndwiduals who have the skills required to run this type of business
and o respond to the challenges presented by the connuatly changing environment in which we operate

We beheve that you can only have an effectve Board when all members understand what 1s required of them and when they all have
time to conduct their duties All of our Directors have detaled appomntment letiers or contracis which set out their duties and last year
we ook the apportunity to clanfy whal 1s nvolved with the role of Seruor tndependent Director We confimn that appointment letters for
Non-Executive Directors set aut the expected time commutment required We also have a policy that the Directors can only take on
addional roles with Board approval In ing with the new Code, the terms of appotment for 2l our Non Executives speciically state
that the role of the Non Executrve Directors is to challenge and help develop strategy

Finally } would like shareholders to understand that } am in charge of our annual Board evaluaton process | am aware that larger PLCs
are required to seek external assistance with this process but do not believe that such a process would be likely to add extra value as
long as our own process 1s robust | behieve that we have that robusiness and that the process encourages a healthy debate on things
that could be improved ~

A) INTRODUCTION AND COMPUIANCE

The Board of Directors 1s commutted 1o the highest standards of carporate governance and befieves that such standards are cnical to
overall business megnty and performance  This report explains how the Company apphes the panciples of the UK Carporate Governance
Code (“the Code™)

The Company has comphed with the requirements of the Code, as apphicable to a smaller quoted company, throughout the financial year
with one exception The Company now has three independent Non-Executive Directors on its Remuneration and Audit Committees but
shareholders will note that Nigel Atkinson, who was not an independent Non Executive Director, also sal on those Commitiees unt! July
2012 and in this respect the Company may be considered nol to have comphed with the independence requirement for both of these
Committees (Code provisions C 3 1 and D 2 1) for that part of the financial year Having considered ths matter carefully, the Board 1s
sausfied that the deliberations of both Commatiees remained independent dunng that peniod Shareholders should note thal Nigel
Atunson, although nol defined as being independent under the Code, never worked for the Company as 3 full ume employee. being the
former Managing Director of Gales, which the Company acquired 10 2005 He was valued for his independent character and judgement
and it 15 the Directors’ opion that his presence 2t both Committees added considerable value Nigel retired after the AGMinJuly 2012

The infprmation that 1s required by Code prowisien C 1 2 on the business modet and the stralegy for delvening the Company's objectives
can be found in the Business Review section on pages & 10 15 The information relating to the share capital of the Company that s
required by DTR 7 2 6R, can be found within the Directors’ Report, sections H and ! on pages 31 and 32
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Corporate Governance Report continued

B) THE BOARD

The Board’s Role

The Board of Directors «s collectively responsible to the shareholders for the performance and long term success of the Group lts role
includes the establishment, review and monitonng of strategic objectves, approval of major acquisiions drsposals and capital expenditure,
ownership of the corporate values, overseeing the Group s systems of internal control, governance and nsk management and ensunng
that the appropnate resources are in place to deliver these and fulfil the Company’s obligahons to its stakeholders

How the 8oard Works

The Board governs through 1ts execulive management, and formally via its other clearly mandated commuttees Each standing Board
Commiftee has specific wntten terms of reference which are reviewed by the Board 2nnually and there 1s a formal list of Matters Reserved
for the Board (which 15 also reviewed annually) This distinginshes between matters reserved for the Board and Executive Comamutiee
decisions  The terms of reference of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominauon Commuttees are avadable on the Company’s website All
Committee Chairmen report orally on the proceedings of ther Commuttees at the next meeting of the Board, and the minutes of the
meetings of all Board Committees (with some excephians on remuneration matters) are provided to Board members The Chairman
ensures that the Executive Directors provide accurate and timely information for Board meetings which 1s then open to debate and
challenge by all Meetings enjoy open dialogue and constructve challenge on all issues 1s encouraged With a good informaton flow
between and pror to Board meetings, decisions are made in a imely manner after appropnate questions are dealt with The Board has
adapted a procedure, in accordance with the Company’s Articles, to consider and. if it sees fit to authense situations where a Director
has an interest that conflicts, or may possibly conflict, wath the interests of the Company

Board Meetings

The Board meets formally at least six times a year with papers circulated a week in advance and the agenda and papers for these meetings
are subject 10 the scrutiny of the Chairman and the Company Secretary However the Board regularly considers matters on an ad hoc
basis between scheduled meetings The Executive Committee meets formally at least eleven umes a yearand also meets informatly most
weeks There is thus 3 regular flow of information at Board and Executive Commutiee level

At Board meetings the agendas cover strategy, analysis of the market in which the Group operates and performance Each of the Executive
Directors and the Company Secretary update the Board at each meeting on matters for which they are responsible The Board 1s
respansible for approving the annual budget and the annual and half year results The Board also meets away from the Gnffin Brewery
every year for an in depth review of corporate strategy, and other agenda items might include an update on the economy and a review
of the Group's competitors The Non Executive Directors from ume to tme meet with members of the senior management team at the
Brewery and also spend days out in the trade with indnadual members of that team  This helps to keep the Non Executive Dicectors up
to date with the operations of the Group and also prowides the Executive Directors with valuzble feedback about the Company’s people
and its operations

Al Executive Committee meetings the focus is on the detall of the Group’s performance, and the Finance Director leads 3 review of the
Group s management accounts Each Executive Ourector and the Company Secretary update their colleagues on the key issues facing
their part of the business and there 15 a good level of consultabon and debate at these meetings The list of Matters Reserved for the
Board sets out which matters need Board approval and which decisions can be made at Executive Committee level Most sigmificant
business decisions are made by the Board, but matters such as health and safety poticy and approving major contracts are taken at
Executve Committee level Members of the management team regularly join these Executive Committee meetings and three umes a year
all of the dwisional directors and financial controliers join together with the Executive Commuttee to conduct a detailed review of the half
year and full year accounts, and the construction of the annual budget, before these are debated at Board level From july 2013 the
Executive Commutiee wil be Chaired by Simon Emeny rather than Michael Turner
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Corporate Governance Report contnued

As well as the dialogue within the boardroom, the Non-Executive Directors meet privately, under the leadership of the Senior Independent
Director, without the Executive Directors present They also meet with the Chairman and Group Managing Director on a regular basis
These meeungs allow for the review of 1ssues faced by the business, the continuation of dizlogue on stralegic (ssues, the discussion of
Boand apponiments when appropnate, succession planning, and the prowision of support to the Chairman and Group Managing Director
in therr roles

Attendance at Board 2nd Commuttee Meetings
The table below gives details of attendance at Board and Committee meetings dunng the year

Board and Commuttee

Mezting Attendance Man Board  Executive Board Audit Remuneration

for 2012/2013 Meetngs Meztmgs Committes Commuttee

Total Number of Formal Meetings 6 11 4 4
Commitiee Main Board  Executrve Board Audit Remuneration

Executive Directors _ Memberships Meeungs Meeungs  Commmiter Commutiee

Michael Turner Nom 6/6 10/1

Stmon Emeny 6/6 11/Mm ) )

James Douglas 6/6 11/1

Rchard Fuller &6 11/ o

lan Bray ) ) 6/6 1111

Jonathon Swane? ] 5/6 10/11

Non-Executive Directors ) _ . i i

John Dunsmore Aud, Rem, Nom 6/6 o 44 4/4

Sir James Fuller 6/6

Lynn Fordham Aud, Rem, Nom 6/6 4/4 4/4

Alastair Kerr o ) _ Aud, Rem 6/6 R 4/4 4/

Nigel Adenson? Aud, Rem 2/2 1/1 2/2

Missed meetmgs wivis! attending Semor Executive Programme 3t Columbia Business School  Retired 18 puty 2012

The Board beleves that all of ds members have sufficient ume to discharge their duties effectively All Directors are required to seek permission
before accepting any extemal appointments therefore Board members are kept fully aware of their colleagues’ other commitments

Composition and 8alance of the Board

The Board 1s chaired by Michael Turner who 15 responsible for leading ot and ensunng s effectiveness and openness, and for ensunng
that commusications with shareholders are valuable The Chairman does not have any commitments which constrain his ability to fulfil
his rote In the past year Michael Turner has been supported by Siman Emeny who was responsible for all operational aspects of the
Group, in his role as Group Managing Director With eftect from 1 July 2013 Simon Emeny will become Chief Executive and Michael
Turner will continue as Chairman but in 2 Non Executwe capacity A new schedule of responsibiities for the Chawman and the Chiel
Executive which will come into operation from 1 July 2013 has been presented to and approved by the Board Apart from this and Nigel
Atkinson's relirement after kast year's AGM there have been no changes to the Board
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Corporate Governance Report continved

Currently the Comparty has four Non Executive Directors, one of whom (Sir James Fuller} is a family member This representation 1s very
important in 38 Company with a high proportion of famiy shareholders The other three Non-Executive Directors, all of whom are deemed
independent under the Code, are expenenced business leaders and 2il of the Non Executves bing a wide range of skills and expenences
to the Board The Directors consider that the Board is 2 well balanced one that has the nght number of members for the size of the
Group and the Directors agree that no one indnvidual dominates discussions and that each makes 3 full and postive contribution The
Directors’ biograptues are on pages 20 and 21 john Dunsmore is the Semior Independent Director and an industry expert who brings
knowledge, supporl and adwice to the Chairman and all the other Board members, he is 1n regular dialogue with all Board members
outside of Board meetngs and co-ordinates the views of the Non Executive Directors as and when required All of the independent Non
Executive Directors are determined by the Board to be independent in character and judgement and there are no relauonships or
orcumstances which could alfect or appear to affect their judgement, all are appointed for specified termis  The detads of the Non-
Execulive Directors’ respective arrangements are as set outin the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 43 and 51 and are avalable
for inspection at the Company's registered office

Adwvice for the Board

There 1s in place a procedure under whnch Directors can obtain ndependent professional adwice The Directors also have access to the
advice and sevces of the Company Secrelary who 1s responsible to the Board for ensunng that Board procedures are comphed with
The Divectors are saushied that any concerns they rase at Board meetings are recorded in the minutes The Company maintains
appropnale insurance cover i respect of legal action aganst its Drectors and Ofiicers

Professional Development

All Directors attend training courses, Industry forums, and specialhist briefings retevant to their role throughout the year Occasionally
speciahsts such as the Company s actuary or corporate lawyer join 3 Board meetng to bref the Board on a particular topic Both the
Board and the Executive Committee visit Group pubs and hotels as part of the Board meeting programme On these and other occasions
Board meetings may be held in the Group's pubs, wath the aim of keeping the Directors famikiar with the Group's estate Executive
Directors are permitted to hold one other pad directorship, vath the Board's consent, as the Board believes that expenence of how other
boards work enhances the Directors’ contnbution to Fuller s Simon Emeny currently holds such a Directorship at Dunelm Group plc

Board Evaluation

The Cha:rman conducts an annual evaluation of the Board, where all Board members are asked to rate the Board's work across a number
of different topics, with constructive cnticism encouraged, via the medwm of 2 questionnaire Where necessary the Chairman seeks
clanficauon on the responses given, he then consohdates the responses and reports back to the Board, hightighting sigruficant
improvements and detenorations in any particular area by companng resulis with prewious years’ outputs and agreeing actions to tackle
any areas requinng improvement Unattnbuted comments of sigmificance are shared with all This year the results were almoslt idengcal
to last year's high scores and there were no individual scores that were below average The resulls did pronde some insight into areas
that could still be improved further and therefore these were the Charman's focus in tesms of lollow up The Audil and Remuneration
Committees conduct simitar assessments and thewr work ss also commented upon 1n the evaluation conducted by the Charrman The
Senipr Non Executive Director annually apprases the Charman's performance, having first consufied with the other Non-Executrve
Directors and also the Executve team The appraisal of the ather Executive Directors and the Company Secretary i1s conducted annually
by the Chairman or Group Managing Director and, as pan of the appraisal process, ndividual tranng and development needs are
discussed The annual appraisal of the Non Executive Directors 1s conducted by the Chairman, foliowing consultation with the
Executive team

Board Re-glection
The Articles of Assotizuon of the Company ensure that all Dwectars are subject to election by shareholders at the first Annual General
Meetng {(*AGM") after thew appointment and to re-election at three yearly intervals
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Corporate Governance Report conunued

C) BOARD COMMITTEES

The Nominations Commuttee

The Nominations Commuitee consists of John Dunsmore, Lynn Fordham and Michael Turner, who s Chairman It s responsible for
nomnating candidates for appointment as Drectors, for approval by the Board although the full Board will also typically informally discuss
Board appointments The Comnnittee did not meel dunng the year as no appomntments were made

The Remuneration Committee
Information about the Remuneration Commuttee and remunerauon pohicy is given in the Direclors’ Remuneration Report

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board 15 chaired by Lynn Fordham, Chuef Executive of SVG Capital and a Chartered Accountant whose previous
appointments include Director of Audit and Risk at Bools Group plc and Finance Owector of ED & F Man Sugar Lynn thus brings recent
and relevant financial expenence to the Cammittee The Chairman, the Finance Dwrector and members of the finance team usually jomn the
meeungs as do the external Audit Pariner and Audii Manager The Chairman of the Audit Committee encourages comprehensive debate
and close scrutiny of management's and auditors' reports by Commuittee members The Chairman of the Audit Comemittee meets with the
manager responsible for internal audits, the extemnal Audit Partner and the Finance Director outside of Audit Commuttee meetings to grve
them the opportunity to raise any concerns they may have about their work or therr roles and to provide advice and support 2s required

There 15 1n place a whistle-blowing pohcy. which 1s overseen by the Audit Commitiee, and which allows staff to raise any concerns in
confidence, directly with the Charman of the Audit Committee Posters reminding, staff about the existence of the policy and how 1t may
be used are resssued annually in order to maintain a good awareness of the whustle blowang arrangements throughout the Company

The Audi Cammmttee’s terms of reference include all those matters required by the Code  The Commmities has a meeting planner which
seis out the basic tems to be covered at i1s regular meetings At the june meetng the Commuttee reviews the preliminary announcement
and the report and accounts [n September the key items are 8 review of all aspecis of the performance of the external auditors, including
the chance to assess whether they continue to show the required level of independence. agreeing the scope for the aext external audii,
the audit plan and related fees and a report from the Company’s Retail Audit Manager A report on intemal audit 1s receved, and one on
whustle blowing and the Commitiee reviews its own effectiveness At the November meeting the focus 15 on reviewing the half year report
At the January meetng the key items are nsk management, internal audit and a review of new developments m accounting and Juditing
The Chawrman of the Committee also encourages debate and discussion of topical issues outside of the rovtine agenda items

D) ACCOUNTABILITY

Audttors

The Commultee 15 happy for the Board to recommend to shareholders that Ernst & Young LLP be re elected, having reviewed therr
performance and nol found any tssues of concern

The Group s auditors do from ime lo ime provide non audit services to the Company This year the auditors have adwised the Company
i relation to routine tax comphance and have provided services in relation to iXBRL accounts and the zmount spent on these sences
was £22,000 The Commmee believes thai this 15 insignificant and not at such a level that auditor objectwity and mdependence are
compromised The Commuttee imposes an upper i of £50,000 per annum on the amount that the finance team can spend with the
audiors for non-audit ilems wathout specific approval from the Commuttee It 1s Group policy 1o seek quotavons from muluple partes for
significant non audnt services and only to appaint the party {(which could then be the auditars) that affers the best combination of pnce
and experuse
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Corporate Governance Report continued

Internal Control and Risk Management
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system of ntemnal control and management of nsks and reviewing its effectiveness
The system 15 designed to prowide reasonable but not absolute assurance of

» the mitigation of nsks which mught cause the failure of business objectives,
« no matenal misstatements or losses,
» the safeguarding of assets agamst unauthonsed use or disposition,

- the maintenance of proper accounbing records and the reliability of financial infarmation used within the business or for pubhcaton,
and

« comphance with applcable laws and regulations
The business maintains business continunty plans, and exercises these plans on an annyal basis

Management within the Finance Department are responsible for ensunng the mamtenance of financial records and processes that ensure
that all financial information 15 refevant, reliable, in accordance wath the applicable laws and regulations, and distnbuted both internally
and externally in 2 umely manner A review of the financial statements 1s completed by management to ensure that the financial positon
and results of the Group are appropnately reflected All financial information published by the Group s subject to the review of the
Audit Commitiee

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control which has also been discussed in detail by the Audit
Committee, mncluding taking account of matenal developments since the year end The review covers all matenal contrals including
financial and operational comrols, compliance and nsk management systems Where weaknesses are identified, actions to address them

are agreed

The Board has procedures in place necessary to follaw the Tumbull Guidance {"Intemal Control Guidance for Directors on the Combined
Code™) for the full financial year The Group Risk Manager co-ordinates this process by leading regular nsk assessment workshops 1n
whuch new nisks are identified and added to the nsk register and existing nsks re evaluated by the nsk owners Regular meetings chawred
by the Executive Directors are held in additon to the workshops In arder to assess the effecuveness of the controfs that are in place,
wentify new nsks and review existing nsk matigation plans

Key elements of the system of internal central designed to address significant nsks and uncertainties as documented on pages 26 and
27 nclude

« clearly defined levels of responsibiity and delegation throughout the Group, together with well-structured reporting hnes up to
the Board,

« the preparation of comprehensive annual budgets for each dwision including commentary on key business opportunities and nsks,
approved by the Executve Directors and further reviewed by the Board on a consakdated basis,

» an Executive Commuttee review of actual monthiy results against budget, logether with commentary on significant vanances and updates
of both profit and cash flow expectations for the year,

- 3 detalled investment approval pracess requinng Board authonsation for all major projects

detaled post implementauon appraisals of major capital expenditure projects,

regular reporung of legal and accounting developments to the Board,

regular review of the Group's nsk regster and discussion of significant nsks by the Board and Audit Committee, which among other
thungs 1akes account of the sigmificance of environmental, social and governance matters to the business,

monitonng of accident statisucs and the results of health and salety audus, and

maintenance of an IS0 9001 certfied quality control system
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Corporate Governance Report continued

The Group does not have 3 formal internal audit funclion and, after a review by the Audit Committee and the Board, the Board has
confirmed that it believes that the existing arrangements for internal audit are appropnate Management may from time to tme augment
the internal resource for these audits with speciahst external resources The Group cames outinternal audits on financial areas according
to a programme agreed between the Audhit Comimitiee and the finance Director and wath, as appropnate, nput from the other Executive
Directors and the extemnal auditors The audits are coordinated by an expenenced semior member of the finance team and are undertaken
by olher members of the finance team, i each case the person undertaking the audil 1s iIndependent of the area which is the subject of
the audit The internal audit reports, the management responses and the recommended actions are presented in summary form to the
Audit Commuttee on a regular basis There are also in place precedures to ensure recommended actions are tmplemented Dunng the
ftnancial year audits were performed on all purchase order and payment systems, two of which had recently been implemented To
ensure the robustness of the audits performed, management enfisted the support of an external specialist Among the other areas reviewed
and audited were procedures surrounding tax compliance, the Bnbery Act and head office cash reconciliations

In addwicn, the Group employs a team of retad business auditors who do not have a direct report nto the Audit Commuttee but who
monitor the controls in place in the Managed Pub estate, in particular those over stock and cash Thus team reports directly to the Fullee's
Inns Financial Controller

E) RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has an ongoing programme of indiadual meetings with stitutional shareholders, allowing the Company to update
shareholders on the performance of the business and the strategy for the future. and to give shareholders an opportunity to discuss
corporate governance malters The Company's brokers contact key shareholders to establish if they would like to see the Chairman,
Group Managing Director and Finance Director in the days lollowing their presentation to the City on the preiminary and half year results
The Chairman, Richard Fuller and Sir James Fuller are the key contacts with the Company’s family shareholders and Sir James Fuller has
a specific role to keep in touch with those sharehalders The Semor Independent Director and the other Non Executive Drrectors are all
willing to attend meeungs with shareholders or be contacted by shareholders should they have any concerns which have not been
resolved through the normal channels The Non Executive Directors have had no such requests duning the last financial year All Board
members receve copies of feedback reports from the City presentations and meetings with shareholders, thus keeping them in touch
with shareholder optinion

The Board supports the use of the AGM to communicate, n particular, with private investors, and the Chairman routinely makes a detaded
presentation lo shareholders vpdatng them on the Company’s performance and progress The Public Relations team also altends the
AGM and prowdes further information to shareholders about the Company through photo boards featunng pub and product information
The Board 1s keen to encourage institutional investors to attend the meeting as well, 1n kne with the dutes set out in the Stewardship
Code for institutional shareholders published n July 2010, especially if they have concems over any 1ssues being voted upon at the AGM,
s0 thai they can meet all the Directors and discuss them in person, and particulary if they have declined an invitation for an indwidual
meeting The Chairman arranges for the Chairman of each of the Company s Board Commiltees 1o answer relevant questions at the
meeting and encourages all Directors to be present

WM Board

Manie Gracie, FQIS Gnfiin Brewery
Company Secretary Chiswick Lane Scuth
7 June 2013 Chiswick, London W4 2QB
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

The pncipal purpose of this report for the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 1s to nform shareholders of the Group s policy on Directors’
Remuneration, as recommended by the Remuneratian Committee The report has been approved and adepted by the Board and has
been prepared in accordance wath the requirements of the Compames Act 2006, Schedule 8 to the Large and Medium-Sized Companies
and Graups (Accounts and Reperts) Regulations 2008, the Lising Rules and the Code The infarmation contained in the tables on pages
43 and 45 to 50 and 1n the descnption of non cash emaluments in section B} and 1n the information about options and the Long Term
Incentive Plan (“LTIP") outhined in sections E) and F}, 15 subject (o audit

An ordinary resclution wil be put to shareholders at the AGM on 25 July 2013 inwiting them to consider and approve this report

Remuneration Committee

The Remunerauon Commitize members are currently Alastair Kerr (Chairman), John Dunsmore and Lynn Fordham The work of the
Commitiee 15 set oul in its terms of reference which are avaitable on the Company’s website In bnef these state that the Commuttee 15
responsible for determiming the 1013l remuneration package {(including pensions, service agreements and termnation payments) of the
Execulive Directors and commenting on the remuneration of the Company's divisional directors Members of the Commuttee have no
personal financial nterest in the Company, other than as shareholders and Directors Details of the payments made to Non-Executve
Directars are set out on page 43

The Commuitee 15 pronded with independent advice from extemnal consultants Xafiruty Consulting Limited provided the Committee and
the Company with advice on matters relaung to pensions BDO LLF prowided the Commuttee and the Company with advice in connection
with the Company’s LTIP and share option schemes Both of these consultants have been providing advice to the Company for some
years and were not specifically appointed by the Commutiee Dunng the year the Commuttee met with 2 number of potential remuneration
adwisers and selected New Bndge Sireet 10 adwise the Committee None of these adwisors have any other connection with the Company
New Bridge Street have conducted a review of (he incentive schemes on offer to the Executve team which has included a review of the
more significant share option schemes As a result it is not intended 1o renew the Senior Executve Share Option Scheme when it
expires later this year, and it 1s proposed to recommend same changes to the LTIP scheme to shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting

The Chairman of the Company, Michae! Turner, may be invited to attend Committee meetings and adwse. as appropnate, on the
remuneration and performance of the other Execistve Directors and related matters and as from 1 July 2013 Simon Emeny may also be
wwited 1o attend the Commitiee meetings for the same purpese The Committee 15 adwvised intemally by the Company Secretary, Mane
Gracie who also acts as Secretary to the Committee

Remuneration Policy

Itis the poticy of the Remuneration Commiliee 1o prowde compebtive packages for the Executive Oirectors, which reflect the Group s
performance against financia) objectives, reward above average perfarmance and which are designed to atiract, retain and motivate high
calibre execulives The Commultee seeks 1o structure tolzl benefit packages wiich align the interests of shareholders and Executive
Directors To this end, the Committee behieves Lthat it 1s appropnale to have a significant proportion of Executive Directors’ packages
made up of performance related elements and this 1s reflected in the use made of the Campany s bonus scheme LTIP and share option
schemes In addition, Executve Direclors’ packages tnclude pension benefits, as discussed n section D) below When setung the
remuneration of Executive Directars the Committee takes account of the Group's performance on emvironmental, social and governance
matiers The Commuttee does not believe that the existing incentive structure raises any environmental governance or social nsks by
inadvertently motivating imesponsible behaviour

The Committee has again gven considerauon 1o whether in the event of musstatement or misconduct, there should be ctawback prowisions
wathin the rules of the LTIP and bonus ptan Clawback prowsions are currently being considered by the Committee The Commitiee’s aim
remains to ensure that the Executive team are rewarded where long term growth and success are achieved

FULLER SMITH & TURNERPLC Report and Accounts 2013

4

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GOVERNANCE BUSINESS REVIEW

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION




41

Directors’ Remuneration Report conunued

Risk 1n relatton to Remuneration

The Commutiee beheves that the Company's remuneraton policy 1s consistent with its nsk management policy, in that exisung
remunerabion structures do not encourage Management to take nappropnate nsks to achweve targets |k is felt that there 1s 3 very low
nsk of short term decisions dmang annual bonus payouts and the focus 15 very much based on along term remuneration model, delivenng
value through the Company's vanous share plans

The vanous elements of executive remunerauon and underlying policy are as follows

A) SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company's policy on the duraion of Directors’ contracts is that Executive Directors should have roling service contracts tenmimnable
on no more than one year's notce served by the Company or Director lan Bray and Jonathon Swaine are entitled on earty termmation of
their contracts to a payment equal to the salary due lor the snexpired penod of their notice This 15 payable n monthly instalments and for
the penod of their notice the Execubives are expecled to seek aliematve income, and if they are successful, that mncome must be notfied
1o the Company and will be set off against the remaining instalments The contracts of the other Executives state that they are enlitfed to
a payment equal 1o salary and the value of all benefits for the unexpired penod of their notice, without any reduction for mitgation The
Committee has considered whether they should attempt to negobate a change to the contracts of the other Executives but do not believe
that this 1s currently appropniate

Service Contract Table

Date of contract Nobce penvod
Michael Turner _ _ 1June 1997 Contract ends 30 june 2013
Smon Emeny } _ L 13 January 1999 12 months
james Douglas ~ _© _ T suya0er 12 months
Richard Fuller o ) . 8 December 2009 . 12 months
lan Bray _ S 7 12 December 2011 ~_12months
Jonathon Swame B 20 March 2012 12 months

Non-Executive Directors’ Arrangements

Date of lerer of sgppointment

of reappantment Term expires

Michael Turner 4 Apnl 2013 Appointment starts on 1 july 2013
) _ _ _and expires In June 2016

j_éhn Dunsmore _ : 15 November 2011 __ January 2015
Sitjames Fuller _ T 1june2010 ~ May 2016
Lynn Fordham o 15 November 2011_ ___ January2015
Alastar Kerr 19 July 2011 August 2015
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8) DIRECTORS' EMCLUMENTS AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO CURRENT AND FORMER DIRECTORS
The followang table shows a breakdown of the remuneration of indvdual Directors who setved in all of pant of the year

Audited Dcfined

contnbutien

Basic Car Fees & Benefits Total Penpion’ Tatal pension

silary  allowance Consuhancy  inband Bonws 2013 013 2012 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 4000 £000

Michael Turner 399 22 - 315 549 _ - __ 51 -

Simon Emeny o i 9 - 3 104 458 34 478 33

james Douglas 264 19 - 3 B3 389 46 387 a2

Richard Fuller A 3 2 - 266 -

lanBray 204 19 - 1 8 262 35 106 M
Jonathon Swaine 175 19 - 3 52 249 33 57 }

John Dunsmore - - 53 - - 53 - 5 -

Si Jomes Fuller N - - 4 1 - 42 @ - 11 -

Lynn Forgham A - - _ 54 A - 8 - 51 -

Alastair Keer N - - 51 1 - 52 - an -

Nigel Atkonson? - - 20 3 - 23~ - 48 -

Total 1,541 117 219 22 434 2333 148 2,095 90

1Tus includes aft payments 13 sel ool o0 page 44 i section D) INigel Atlenson retwed on 13 July 2012

Sinon's Emeny's basic satary will increase to £375,000 per annum on 1 july 2013 when he becomes Chief Executve Michael Tumer s
basic salary will reduce to £250,000 per annum when he moves from Executive to Non Executve status on 1 July 2013

Anthony Fuller, former Chairman and now President, recerves an annual royalty of £15,000 which 15 pad in recogrition of the fact that
Mr Fuller has gven the Company on-going exclusive permission to use his name and signature on any Company product

The Commutiee seis the base satary for each Executive Director by reference to ndmdual and corporale perforrnance, competitive markel
practice and independent salary survey information Last year base pay was increased by approxmalely 3% for all Directors This was in
line wath the median of increases pad 1o head office staff A car allowance 1s paid to Execunve Directors to allow them to purchase and
maintain cars at their own expense - s 1s a non-pensionable amount The Executrve Directors are also rembursed for busimess related
ruleage Other non cash benefits to Executve Directors include private heatthcare and product allowances These benefits are also extended
to some other employees

Simon Emeny 15 a Non Executive Director of Dunetm Group plc He retains fees of £30,000 per annum in respect of this position

The Commuttee are kepl appraised of the pay reviews awarded o employees and any changes in thewr terms and conditians, so that these
can be taken into account when determuning Directors’ remuneration for the relevant financial year
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C) BONUSES

Executrve Directors and semior management parucipate in the Company's performance related bonus scheme by imatation All payments
under the scheme are discretonary and non pensionable The scheme includes a provise that where bonuses are due to be pad in a
year m which prefits have dechned Lo a speahied degree the Committee will assess the performance of the Group relative to a peer
group of compantes which they have selected They will only authonse payments where the Group has performed better than the average
of this peer group and where the Commutiee also believes the Group's performance represants outperformance

1an Bray and Richard Fuller earn 2 bonus in part by achieving a profit target for The Fuller's Beer Company and in part where the Group
achieves 3 growth target in pre-lax pre exceptional earnings per share Jonathon Swaine’s bonus 1s based partly on profit targets for
fuller's Inns and partly on 2 Group target The other Executives have Group bonus targets The target for the bonus, which s setin March
each vear for the following year, includes the cost of the banus tself The 2012/2013 scheme for Executive Directors prowided a bonus
opportunity of amaximum of 75% of base salary - this has not been increased during the year The Committee approves the new bonus
scales every year to ensure that they include suitably stretching targets

For the year under review, Michael Turner, Simon Emeny and James Douglas each eamed a bonus of 314 of salary, lan Bray and Richard
fuller each eamed a bonus of 19% of salary and Jonathon Swaine eamed a bonus of 30% of salary

D) PENSIONS

Michaet Tumer 15 a pensioner of the defined benefit Company pension plan, under the Directors’ section Richard Fulter s a member of
the defined benefit Company pension plan, under the Oirectors’ section, on a non contnbutory basis Simon Emeny 1s 2 member of the
defined benefit Campany pension plan, under the Main section on a non cantnbutery basis In addition, a salary supplement of 17 5%
of the excess of his base salary over the earmings cap was paid to um for investing as part of bus pension planring

James Douglas 1s a member of the defined contbution Company pensian plan, but made no contnbution duning the financial year He
is paid a contribution of 17 5% of his salary by the Company which he 15 required 1o use 23 part of his overall reurement planming He is
also required to contnbute 8% of hus net salary to ks pension or another investment vehicle

The Company makes 2 contnbution of 17 5% of salary to lan Bray and jonathon Swaine's nominated penston schemes They are also
required to make net contnbutions of 8% themselves

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, Directors’ pension entitlements under defined benefit plans are shown overleal
The Comparues Act 2006 requires the disclesure of similar infarmation but in a different format and not adjusting for iInflauon, while the
Lisung Rules requirement makes allowance for inflavon

The following tables provide the information required on both bases The additonal notes are to help shareholders understand the
difference between the two Michael Turner withdrew from the Directors’ section of the defined benefit Company pension plan on
5 Apnl 2006 Immediately before he left the plan the Company augmented his accrued entitiement so that he would recerve hus promised
pension at age 60 Michael Turner 1s now in receipt of that pension and so accrues no further benefit
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Listing Rules Requirement

Audited Transfer value
Increase in of increase
accrued pension Tota! sccrued peason (ne1 of member

(akownng for inflaton)’ o1 end of penod? rontnbutionsy
E [ 4 £
Simon Emeny . _ . o 2%8 47 55397
Richard Fuller 3,034 91,544 105,463

Hacrease m acorued pensson [alowmg for miblon] - ths 13 the acerued pension at the year end less the accrved pension at the start of ihe year adursted for nflzuon over
the year I folal accried pension 3t end of yesr of retwement age date ff earher - this 1s what the Duector 15 entitied to recenve 25 a0 anvul pension based on sevice to
dite ransfer value of ncrease (net of member contnbutions) - this is the transfer value of the accrued pension at the end of the year less the transfer vakue of the
accrued pension af the start of the year adusted for miflaion caleulated by reference o transfer valire factors o the year end The transler values are cakculated using the
basis w1 force at the end of the year Therefore there s na distortion taused by changes in monetary conditons or changes lo the transler basis

The above table 15 mtended to show the real increase in accrued pension and the real increase in transfer value dunng the year These
figures therefore exclude the rmpact of inflabon dunng the year

Companies Act 2006 Requirement
The table below is intended to show the actual increase in accrued pension dunng the year and the actual mcrease in transfer value dunng,
the year These figures are not adjusted for inflation dunng the year

Audited Transfer value
equwalent of inkrease
increase in Total accrued pension Transfer value Transfer value {net of member

accrued penuon’ 1 end of penod” #t start of penod’® at end of penod* contnbubons )
£ £ [ £ £
Simon Emeny 3,551 o 23147 . __2B2346 31238 93,892
Rechard Fuller 5,430 91,544 1,502,538 1.784 818 282,280

Yincrease m accrued pension = Uus 13 he accrued pension at the yesr end less the accrved pension at the start of the year (a5 discioted last year} without adusiment
for nfiatbon  ? Toial accrued pension at end of year or retrement age date o earker - s 13 the same figue as the Lrsung Rufes requaement 3 franster value af stast of
year - this 18 the wnsfer vitue of the accrued pension st the start of the year (s disclosed bstyear) * Transter value of end of year - this 15 the transfer vahse of the
sctrued pension at the end of the year 3 Transfer value equvalent of wcrease (net of member contnbutons) - this 15 the difference between the two transfer vatues less
a1y member coninbutions m the year Unlike the Listng Rules requrement this shows the diiference between the transier value as publshed last year and the transfer
vaee at the yearend The ransler value thes year end will reflect penssonable satary mcreases snce st year the addiuon of another year s accrudd of benefit and market
movements it equiies and gots aver the year 1o whuch transier valves are referenced
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E) LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN ("LTIP")

The aim of the LTIP 15 to align the efforts of Directors and semor managers with the Company's objecive of creating shareholder value
and increasmg earmings per share n the longer term The performance condibons for the LTIP were chosen accordingly and all subsisung
LTIP awards have a performance conditon wholly based on growth in Adpusted EPS as defined in sectron F) The EPS based measure
ensures that awards only become exercisable against a background of a sustained real ncrease i the financial performance of the Group
The Remuneration Commiltee has reviewed this scheme and the other incentive schemes in hight of the UX Corporate Governance Code
and at present does not feel it 15 appropnale to intreduce any non financial metncs Mo any of the schemes

To assess the awards the average growth n Adjusted EPS 1s compared with the growth in nflation over the performance period The
performance perod covers three financial years starung from the start of the financial year in which the grantis made No vesting occurs
if the Adjusted EPS prowth [adls to exceed the RPI by at least 9% over the penod 40% of the award vestsf the target is hrt, and there is
a shding scale above that point For a 100% award of shares to be made, growth n Adjusted EPS would need 1o exceed the growthin
RPI by 24% or more over the penod The Remuneration Commuttee feel that in a low growth industry withundertying long-term freehold
property growih not bewng wcluded in the calculaton, 9% over inflation 1s a testing target, and one that merits a 40% vesung The
Remuneration Committee further bebeves that the 40% vesting threshold at 9% in excess of inflation is tnggenng LTIPs at a value thatis
stil below the level being employed by many other compames and that it«s the value of the vesting that should be considered and not
the percentage The Remuneration Commutice determunes whether the Adjusted EPS perfermance condibon has been met using the
earnings per share information which 15 published in the Group’s Annual Report and Accounts BDO LLP confirm the level of vesung of
awards based on earmings per share calculations prownided by the Group

As explaned earher, 1t 15 proposed to amend the LTIP rules to increase the potential maximum LTIP allocations from 100% of salary to
110% of salary, recogmsing that the Seruor Share Option Scheme will not be renewed  This requires a rule change to be put (o
shareholders at the forthcoming AGM

Under the LTIP, the rules allow for discretonary annual awards of ‘A" {Iisted), ‘8 {unhsted) and ‘C” (unbisied, converuble to ‘A’) ordinary
shares up to a value representing 100% of a parucipant's salary in any one year Detalls of the awards made dunng the year to Directors
are given in the followeng tables

tn all cases the LTIP grants were calculated by reference to the middle market quotauon as at the followng dates

Audited A ordnary shares B’ ordinary shares
Date £ £
17 July 2006 ] 498 050
5July2009 - 480 048
12 July 2010 B N 578 058
30 November 2010 ) ) 630 063
20July 2011 o _Jos. on
12 July 2012 705 071

Inall cases shares will vest, subject to performance cntena being attained, within 72 days of the pubhication of results for the last financial
year in the performance penod
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Directors’ Long Term Incentive Plan Allocations

Audited Onginal  Matching Monetary
Towl hetd a1 Granied awards Jwards Lapsed Totstheldat  vale of vest’

11 Maich 2012 dunng year vested vesied cnngyedr 30 March 2013 E£000

Michael Turner ‘A’ ordinary 40p 155,781 45390 (47,533) (8,031) (4,733)___ 141474 393
B’ ordinary 4p 389,458 113,475 (118,833) (20080) (10,333} 353,687 98

Siman Emeny ‘N'ordinary 40p 120,690 37,787 (36.493) (64250 (3,173} __ 112,386 303
B’ ordinary 4p 301,727 94468 (91,233} {16,063) (7.933) 280,966 76

James Douglas ‘A’ ordinary 40p 97.835 30070 (317400 - (2.760) 93,405 224
‘B' ordinary 4p 244,590 75177 (79,350) - (6,900} 233,517 56

Richard Fuller ‘A’ ordinary 40p 48.155 14,297 (10,035) (2.650)  (8V3) 48,894 90
8’ ordinary 4p 120,389 35744 (25088) (6.626) (2,182) 122,237 22

lan Bray ‘A ordinaryd40p - 17276 - - - 17,276 -
B’ ordinary 4p - 4377 - - - 43,11 -

Janathon Swaine ‘A" ordinary 40p 24,749 14,893 (7.817) (2,248)  (680) 28897 n
‘B’ ordinary 4p 61.875 37,234 (19.544) (5621} (1,699) 72,245 18

* The markel poce of ‘A shares on 19 july 2012 for the LTIP 12 awards vesied was £7 05 Thus we assume 3 “market”™ pnce for B sheres of £0 705 The market price of
A shares an 26 July 2012 for the LITP9 Matelung awards vested was £7 15 Thus we assume 3 “market” prce for B shares of £0 715 The lable above excludes vesied
shares that had been redeposited with the LTIP Trust m arder [o ablan the maicheng gran!

Directars’ LTIP Grants Held at 30 March 2013

Audited
Grant P13 P4 P15
Grant date 12 uly/30 Nov 2010 20 July 2011 12 july 2012 Total at
Stan of performance penod Apnl 2010 Apnl 2011 Apnl 2012 30 March
End of performance penod March 2013 March 2014 March 2015 2013
Michael Turner ‘A ordinary 40p 51,966 448 45,390 __ 141,474
‘B’ ordinary 4p 129916 110,296 113,475 353,687
S:mmon Emeny ‘Alordwarydlp _ 38041 36,558 32.787 112,386
‘B’ ordinary dp 95,102 9139%6 94,468 280.966
James Douglas ‘A’ ordinary 40p . 34,224 29,111 30,070 93,405
‘B’ ordinary 4p 85,562 72,778 75,177 233,577
Richard Fuller ‘A’ ordinary 40p 20,761 13.836 14,297 48,894
‘B ordinary 4p 51,903 34,590 35,744 122,237
lan Bray ‘A’ ordinary 40p - - 17,276 17,276
‘B’ ordinary 4p - - 43,191 43,191
Jonathan Swamne ‘A" ordinary 40p 7612 6.392 14.893 28,897
B' ordinary 4p 15,031 15,980 37.234 72,245
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f) SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SIP
The Company encourages Executive Directors, Servor management and qualfying employees to acqurre and hold Fuller's shares, and believes
that equity based reward programmes ahgn the interests of Directors, and employees in general, with those of sharehaolders

1) Executive and Semor Executive Share Option Schemes

The Company has an HMRC approved Execulive Share Option Scheme (the “Approved Scheme™) which incorparates performance
targets and restncions Under this scheme, senior executives and other staff may be 1ssued share opions up to the HMRC maximum
value of £30,000 at any one me For options 10 vest. growth in earmings per share adusied pnncipally lo exclude exceptional stems
{“Adyusted EPS®) must exceed growth in the Retail Pace Index ("RPI") by at least 9% over the three year vestng penod  Adjusted EPS
will normally be consistent with the post-tax eamings per share excluding exceptonal tems as presented m the financial statements
However, the Remuneration Commutiee are authonsed to make appropnate adjustments 1o Adjsted EPS as apphed to option and LTIP
schemes Once the opuons have vested they must be exercised wathin the followng seven years The performance targets and restnctions
are considered to be a realisic lest of management performance and were chosen because they are consistent with corporate profit
growth objectives and ensure thal options only become exercisable aganst the background of a sustaned real mcrease in the financial
performance of the Group

The Company also has a Senior Executive Share Option Scheme (the “Senior Scheme®) The mamum benefit granted under the Senior
Scheme equates to 20% of salary per annum subject to the discretion of the Remuneration Commuttee Currently the only parucipants
in the Senior Scheme are Executive Directors For options to vest under the Seniar Scheme, growth in Adusted EPS must exceed growth
in RPI by at least 9% aver a three year penod If this 1s achieved 40% of the award will vest If Adjusted EPS exceeds RP| by more than
21%, 100% of the award will vesi The pedformance targets and restrictions are constdered to be a reahstic lest of management
performance and were chosen because they are consistent with corporate profit growth objectives and ensure that the options only
become exercisable against the background of a sustained real increase n the financial performance of the Group Once the options
have vested they must be exeraised wathun the foliowing seven years This scheme expires in 2013 and it 1s not ntended to be renewed
although a final grant 1s proposed in earty July 2013 The Commutiee feels that a simpler approach to Executive remuneration can be
achieved by dispensing wath the scheme and raising the level of LTIP allocations accordingly from 2014 Further details of the proposals
are given i the circular to shareholders

For both the Approved Scheme and the Sentor Scheme the assessment as to whether the performance conditons have been met 1s
relatively straightforward i that the Remuneration Committee determines this using the eamungs per share information which 1s published
in the Group's Annual Report and Accounts However, the level of vesting 1s confirmed by BDO LLP, based on earmings per share
calculations provided by the Group

u) Savings Related Share Option Scheme (the “SAYE Scheme”)

The Company also operates a SAYE Scheme, winch 1s available Lo alf Company employees with at least one year's service Under Ihe
SAYE Scheme, options are granted over the Company s 40p ‘A’ ordinary shares al a discount of 20% on the prevaling market price al
the ume of the grant Eligible employees may agree 1o save up to £250 per month over 3 penod of three or five years and then purchase
shares within six months of the end of the term The aim of the SAYE Scheme is to encourage share ownership at all levels of the Company
Performance conditions are not applied to the SAYE Scheme

m) Share Incentive Plan (*S1P")

Al} Campany employees with not less than five months service in Novermber in any year are eligible to recewe free 40p ‘A’ ordinary
shares in December of that year through an HMRC approved SIP The shares are held by the Trustees of the scheme for a mimmum of
three years and a maximum of five years before being avaitable 1o be passed to partcipants The amaunt of shares awarded 15 based on
tength of service and base satary The maxamum value of the shares allowable under the SIP to any mdwdual in any one year 1s £3,000
Performance conditions are not apphed to the SIP

Details of all apuons granted to Executive Cirectors are given in the table on pages 49 and 50 and detals of all optrons granted are in
note 28
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Drrectors’ Share Opuions

Audited

Cost of opions ~ Price 2l Nouona!

At Exercise Date from under SAYE  exerase  gan on
A; 31 March 30 March  pnce Date of whech Expiry schemes date  exerase
2012 Exercised  Lapsed Issued 2013 £ granl exertisable date Type £ L £
Michael Turner 14150 (141500 - - - 212 25/6/03 25/6/06 24/6/13 A _ - 712 70750
o 11660 - - -TH1g60 367 19/7/0s 19/7/08 875 U - - -
10,040 - T = - 10040 498 18/7/06 18/1/09 18/116 U _ - - -
; _5e89 - - - 5589 751 18/7007 8/730 11f7/17 U - -
) 1301 - - - 13011 405 15/7/08 15/7M 187118 U - - -
B 1966 - -7 T - 1966 331 1/9/08 /93 1/3/14 S 6507 - -
C 12916 - = 129% 480 16/7/05 16/7712 16/149 U - - -
_ N5 - - C 11245 578 12/170 12/TA3 12/1/20 U - - -
) 1997 - - - 1997 464 /9A0 _1/9NS /316 S 9.266 - -
o 1,746 - - - 1746 630 30/1A030/MA3 30/1/20 ¥ - - -
T e - - mp2e 709 20/1h1 200204 1947721 U - - -
UL T T34 341 705 2f1h2 2fihs_1i/2 v - - -

95349 (14.150) - 11347 92546
Simon Emeny 9,700 - - - 9,100 367 19/7/05 19/7/08 18/71/75 U - - -
o 12007 - - - 2007 498 18/2/06 18/7/05 /16 U _ - - -
) - 4,285 - - = 4285 781 18/7/07 18/770 17/1/17 U - - -
B 9.950 - = - 99%0 405 15/7/0B 15/7A1 15478 U - - -
) 180 - - - 1180 331 1/9/08 1/9M3 1/3/14 53906 - -
T Teme - T - 9916 480 16/7/09 16/7712 161719 U - - -
8650 - - - 8650 578 12/710 12713 12/1/20 U - - -
12530 - - ~ 2530 464 1/9M0 1/9A5 1/3/16 5 11739 -
859 - - 859 63030/MA03/MAIIM/20 U_ - - -
T 939 - - - 9139 709 20/7/M 20/7714 /2% W - - -
- - - 9446 9446 705 12/712 12/1h5 1122 U - - -

57,656 - - 9,446 67,102
James Douglas ~ 2.391 - - - 2,391 405 15/7/08 15/7A1% 15/718 U ___ - - -
) 8625 - - — 8625 480 18/7/09 16/7A2 16/119 U - - -
. 1s08 - - - 7508 578 12/7/10 12/713 12/1/20 U - - -
) 1,939 - T T - 1939 464 19M0 19A3 a4 S 8997 - -
1047 - - - 1047 630 30/11/10 30/11/13 30/11/20_ U - - -
7217 - - 7271 709 20/7M1 20744 YN U - - -
- - - 1517 1517705 /112 12/71hs W/1/22 U - - -

28,787 - - 1517 36304

A Approved Executve Share Option Scheme S Savings Relited Share Option Scheme U Unapproved Seror Executve Share Opuon Scheme
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Directors’ Share Options contnued

Auvdited Costofoptions  Pncest  Novonal
Al Exercise Date Irom wder SAYE  exercise  ganon
AL 31 March 30 March  pice Date of which Expury schemes date  exercise
2012 exercsed  Lapsed  Granted 013 i grant exerasable date Type £ L K
Richard Fuller 9,532 - 9532 262 5/1/04 S/107 S(1714 A - - -
1566 . 1366 331 1/9/08 1943 3A4 S €507 _ - -
801 - B01 388 1/9/09 1914 /315 S 3108 - -
) A - 43 578 12/7/10 12/7h3 12/7/20 U - - -
) ] 869 - 869 578 127710 1YIN3 12/7/20 A - - -
DT Tk - &5 46t /90 1PAS 316 s 3Be - -
_LAsz _ -, 4e2 709 071 Wppa M N - - -
) 563 _ -7 7563 547 10911 /0914 /0315 S 3080 - -
- 4765 4765 70512/07/1212/07/15 N/01/2 U - - -
23329 4,765 28,094
kan Bray s - 1503 1,503 70512/07/1212/0705 1/07/22 U - _ - -
- - 4255 4,255 70512/07/1212/07/15 11/07/22 A - - -
- 5758 5758
Jonathon Swamne 1,649 - 1649 547 1/09/1101/0914 1/03/15 S 9.020 - -
o - 709 703 70512/074212/07A5 107/22 U - - -
- 4255 4255 70512/07M12 12/07115 11/07/22 A - - -
1,649 4964 6,613
Total 206,770 (14,150) - 43797 236417
A Approved Executive Share Ophion Scheme 5 Sawngs Related Share Opuon Scheme U Unapproved Semvor Exeeuve Share Opbron Scheme
Directors’ Options Analysed by Exercise Price (£}
Avdited At 30 March AU3T March
Exzrcise Prce {£) 2013 2012
212 - 14,150
262 9532 9532
367 _ o B 20,760 20.760
498 12,047 12,047
751 o . 9874 98N
331 ] o $,112 5112
405 ~ _ . 25392 2539
480 - - 31,457 31,457
388 j L ) 801 801
578 _ ] . sesm 32593
464 . 7131 7131
630 _ - — 3652 3652
709 . ) o 32,057 32,057
547 ) . w2 2212
705 43,797 I
Total 236,417 206,770

The market price of the shares at Thursday 28 March 2013 was £8 20 and the range durmg the year was from £7 00 to £8 20
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Directors’ Remuneration Report conunved

G) REMUNERATION POLICY FOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Non Executive Directors 1s determined by the Executive Commiitee The policy s to ensure in all cases that the
fees paid are not out of hne with the market and go some way towards rewarding the Non-Executives for the ime they comnut to their
vanous roles Accordingly all Non-Executive Directors receive 3 basic lee The Semor Independent Director receves a fee for that role
and there are addiuonal fees for channg and being a member of the Audit and Remuneration Commttees Sir James Fuller receves a
consultancy fee for his work in Lizising with famity sharehalders 1t 15 the Company's policy that Non Executive Directors shoutd not
parucipate in benus schemes, share opuons or long term mcentive plans None of the Non-Executve Directars afe members ol any
Group pension scheme, with the exception of Nigel Atkinson (who retired in July 2012), who 1s a deferred member of the Gales section
of the defined benefit Company pension plan, accrued when he was Managing Director of Gales

Non-Executive Directors receive 3 product allowance and are reimbursed for travel and other busmess related expenses None of the
Non Executive Directors have service contracts and ther appomiments are reviewed at between one and three yearly intervals They are
renewable as shown on page 42

H) PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The graph below shows a companson of the Total Shareholder Return (“TSR") for the Company's hsted *A’ ordinary shares for the last
five financial years against the TSR for the compares in the FTSE Travel & Leisure tndex The Company 15 a constituent of this index and
therefore it 1s an appropnate choice for this report

Total Sharehokler Return
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SOURCE THOMSON DATASTREAM

On behalf of the Board

Alastair Kerr
Chairman, Remunerabon Committee

7 June 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report
lo the Members of Fuller, Smith & Tumner PL C

We have audited the financial statements of Fuller, Srith & Tumer PL C for the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 which compnse the Group
Income Statement, the Group and Company Statements of Comprehensive Income, the Group and Company Balance Sheets, the Group
and Company Statements of Changes i Equity, the Group and Company Cash Flow Statements and the related notes 1 to 31 The financial
reporting framework that has been apphed i their preparation 1s applicable law and Intemational Financisl Reporting Standards (iFRSs) as
adopted by the European Umon and, as repards the Parent Company financial statements, as applied in accerdance wath the provisions of
the Compames Act 2006

Thus report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companues Act 2006 Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we mught state to the Company s members those matters we are required to state to them v an
auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent perrmitted by law, we do not accepl or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Company and the Company s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the epinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibililes Statement set out on page 33, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the hinancial statements and for being sausfied that they gve a true and fair iew Our responstbility s to audit and express an opinion
on the inancial statements in accordance with apphcable taw and ntemational Standards on Audiing (UK and treland) Those standards
require us 10 comply with the Auditng Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDYT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audil involves oblaining ewidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financiz! statements sufficient 1o give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This Includes an assessment of
whether Lhe accounting policies are appropnate 1o the Group's and the Parent Company's circumstances and have been consistently
apphied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting esumates made by the Directors, and the averafl
presentaucn of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non financiel nformation n the Report and Accounts
to dentify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements 1f we become aware of any apparent matenal rmisstatements or
inconsisiencies we consider the smphcations for our report

OPINION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In cur opinion

« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 30 March 2013
and of the Group's profit for the 52 weeks then ended,

« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared i accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the European Union,

- the Parent Company financial staternents have been propery prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Unton
and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and

« the financial staterments have been prepared i accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In our opinion

« the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited has been property prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

« the mformation given in the Directors’ Repont for the financial year for which the financial stalements are prepared 15 consistent wath the
financial statements, and

« the wiormation gven in the Corporate Governance Report set out on pages 34 to 40 with respect to intemal control and nsk rmanagement
systems in relation to financial reporting processes and about share capital structures 15 consistent with the financea! statements

FULLER $MITH & TURNER PL C Report and Accounts 2013




Independent Auditors’ Report contnued
to the Members of Fuller, Smith & Turner PLC

MATTERS GN WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION
We have nothing to report in respect of the following
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required 10 report to you if, in our opinion

« adequate accouniing records have not been kept by the Parent Comparry, or rewms adequate for our audit have not been receved
from branches not visited by us, or

= the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audiied are not in agreement with
the accounting records and returns, or

« certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
+ we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or
- a Corporate Governance Statement! has not been prepared by the Company

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review
« the Directors’ statement set out on page 25, in relation 10 gong concerm,

= the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company's comphance with the nine provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified for our review, and

= cenan elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on Directors’ remungration

Nk o 4
Eamonn McGrath (Sentor Statutory Audit

for and on behalf of Ecnst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

7 june 2013
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Group Income Statement
for the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013

52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 52 weeks ended 31 March 7012
Before  Excepuons! Belore  Excepuonal
exceptiona! temy tems Total excepbonal items nems Total
Nate £Em £m Lm £m £m £m
Revenue . 3 ms 0 - Ms /830 - 253 ¢
QOperating costs 45 (234 5) {15} {236 0) (218 1) (19 (220 0)
Operating profit 370 (15) 355 349 (19) 330
Profit on disposal of properties 5 - 50 50 - 06 06
Finance revenue 3 06 - 06 03 - 03
Finance costs 7 (59 - (59) (4 9} 02 51
Profitbefore tax _ 317 35 352 _ 303 (9 288
Taxation SE 7 18 (59) (79 28 51
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity
shareholders of the Parent Company 240 53 293 224 13 237
2013 2013 2012 2012
Earmings per share per 40p ‘A’ and ‘C’ ordinary share  Pence Pence Pence Pence
Basic . _ . 5259 . 4213
Dduted . 3 o 52 09 o 4162
Adusted s _a307 3982
Diluted adjusted 9 42 67 39 34
2013 2013 2012 012
Earmings per share per 4p '8’ ordinary share Pence Pence Pence Pence
Basic _ 9 526 42
Diuted _ ) ] 521 . 416
Adjusted ) 9 a4 398
Diuted adjusted 9 427 393
The results and eamings per share measures sbove are all s respect of continang operations of the Group
Group and Company Statements of Comprehensive income
for the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013
S2weeksended 52 weeks ended
30 March 3% March
2013 2042
Group £m £m
Profit for the year 293 237 :
Net losses on valuation of fmam:ual assets and hablhses (note 26) L Q_?_) (3 9)
Nelacluanal galns/(losses) on pension scheme (note 23) . S0 _ (39
Tax on componenxs of other comprehensive income (note 8) (12) 37
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 29 (12 8)
Toral comprehensive incame for the year, net of tax, attnbutable to equity shareholders of the Parent Company 32 2 109
Company £m £m
Profit for the year 264 215
Net losses on valuaton of financial assets and habilibes {note 26) . (0_9) (2 6) |
Net actwanal gamsl(iosses) on pension scheme eme (note 23) L 50 139 |
Tax on components of other compnehenswe income (12 a7
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year, net of tax 29 (128
Total comprehensive income for the year, nel of tax, attnbutable to equity shareholders of the Parent Company 293 87
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Group and Company Balance Sheets

30 March 2013

Group Group Campany Company

2013 2012 2013 012

Note £m £m £m £&m

h_lon~current assets _
Intangsble assets I T 'Y S T T
Property. plant and equipment _ ) ___ 2 __‘ 4148 4005 i 414 8 4005
Investment propecties . m 42 T as _ Y 49
Gther non-current assets 15 04 03 04 03
Investments in subsidianes 15 - - 918 918
Deferred axassets T s &1 18 60 15
Total non-current assets 4556 4441 5214 5117
Current assets _ s e —
wentones 0w __ 31 10§ 101 105
Trade and other recetvables . v 183 183 183 1813
Cash and short term deposits 2 43 19 43 39
Total current assets 327 327 327 327
Assets classified as held for sale 20 06 53 06 -
Current habitities
Trade and other payables 7 TTe09 0 472 1332 1323
Comeattacpayable T T T T3y T3y 38 39
Provisions 5 10 7705 7 10 05
Total current liabiiies 457 816 1380 1367
Non-current hiabilities _
Borrowings - 2w 1399 1421 1399 1421
@m} financial habihties ) T__ " 24 14 24 Y
Retremenibencitoblgatons _  ___ _ m 130 191 130 __ 191
Deferred tax hiabilties 2% 2617 301 267 289
Prowvisions 25 18 25 18 25
Total non-current habilities 183 8 1952 1838 194 0
Net assets 2594 2353 2349 2137
Coptalandreserves = — S
Sharecapmal g 228 228 228 228
Share premium account L i _ 27 48 438 48 43
Capdatredemptonreserve . n 3 3 31 i
Ownshores _  _ _  _ _ _ __ _w_ _ _ _@n B8y @67 | (83)
Hedgingreserve L 27 a8 a1 0y (11)
Retaned earmngs 2192 2140 2147 192 4
Total shareholders’ equity 2594 2351 2349 2137

Approved by the Board and signed on 7 June 2013

M ) Turner, Fca
Chairman

N (N
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Group and Company Statements of Changes in Equity

for the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013

Share Share Capital Qwn
capital premwm  cedemplon shares Hedging Retaned

[note 27) accaunt reserve (note 27) reserve camings Total
Group £m £m £m Em Em £m £m
At 2 Apn! 2011 228 48 31 (31) 09 2077 2362
Profit for the year _ - - - - - _ . 237 237
Other comprehensive loss for the year ) - - T - {2 0) (108 (12 8)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year - - - - (200 129 109
Shares purchased to be held in ESOT or s treasury - - - sy - - (85)
Shares released from ESOT and reasury - - - 33 - 23 10
Dwidends (note 10) - - - - - (6 8) (6 8)
Share-based payment charges - - - - - 19 19
Tax credited directly to equity (note 8) - - - - - 06 06
A1 31 March 2012 228 48 31 (83) {11) 2140 2353
Profit for the year ) ) - - - - - 293 293
Other comprehensive {loss)/income for the year - - - - (07) 36 29
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year - - - - _{07) 29 322
Shares purchased (o be heid i ESOT or as treasury - - - (40) - - (40)
Shares released from ESOT and treasury - - - 36 - 31 05
Dmdends (note 10} - - - - - 72 (72
Share based payment charges - - - - - 19 19
Tax credited directly to equity (note 8) - - = - - 07 07
At 30 March 2013 228 48 31 {87) (18) 23% 2 2594
Company Em Em £m £m £Em £m £m
At 2 Apnl 2011 228 48 3 (31) 09 188 3 2168
Profit for the year - - - - - 25 NS
Other comprehensve loss for the year - - - - (20) {10 8} (128
Total comprehensive (loss}/income for the year - - - - o 107 87
Shares purchased to be held i ESOT of as treasury - = - (85) - " (85
Shares refeased from ESOT and treasury - - - 33 - 23 10
I')M;d-enas-(nole 100 __ _- ) o - - - - - 68  (68)
Share-based payment charges i N _— - - Co- = - 19 19
Tax credited directly to equity o - - - - - 0é 06
At 31 March 2012 228 438 31 (83) (1) 1924 137
T e VY B Y
Other comprehensive {loss)/income for the year - - - - 07 36 29
Total comprehensive (loss)/ncome for the year - - - =l 300 293
Shares purchasedto be held N ESOV orastreasury - - - {40) - (40)
Shares released from ESOT and treasury - = - 36 B (3 1) 0s
Dvdendsfote10) "~ - T - - - -Gy _ @2
gh_a_re-based payment charges e - __ 19 _—E
Tax credited directly to equity - - - - - 07 07
At 30 March 2013 228 48 31 (87) (1 8) 214 7 2349
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Group and Company Cash Flow Statements
for the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013

Group Group Company Company

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended

30 March 31 March 30 March 31 March

2013 2012 2013 2012

Note £m im £m £m

Profit before tax 52 88 326 261
Net finance costs before excepuunal Ems__ o T ‘53 ___ 48 84 73
Exceptional items s (35) 15 (4 0) 15
Oepreciabon and gmortisation 4 142 128 142 128
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 01 - 01
512 478 512 47 8
Difference between pension charge and cash paid L {os) (09 {03 09)
Share-based payment charges _n 19 19 19 19
Changem trade and other recenahles (02} 07 (02 07
Change in inventones o — 0a (7 04 GE)
Changem :rade and otherpayables L _: o a4y a9 @ _ 49
Cash impact 1 of ¢ operatng exceptional tems ’ 5 {15) {20 (15) {20}
Cash generated from operations — 473 s07 473 807
Tax pawd (81} (87 (81) (87)
Cash generated from operating actrvities 392 420 392 42 0
Cash flow fram investing actviies ; L o o . o
B_l._IS_IIES_S_C(_mell:BlOI_'IS__ . _ o AL (114 (528 (14 (52 8)
Purchase of property. plant and cqu:prnem o 182y (9 (82 (219)
Sale of property, plant and equrpment 95 19 95 19
Net cash outflow from investing activities (201) (72 8) (201) (72 8)

Cash flow from financing activities _ ) o L X

Purchase of own shares T . n 4 (8 5) (40) 85)
Receipis on release of own shares (o opion schemes 06 10 06 10
interestpad T 53 a9 5 @9
Preferencedwdendspad T T T T w T W T @m0 6D
Equity dvidends paid 10 72 ) (72) (6 8)
Drawdown of bank loans o : : - 500 :_E 500
Repayment of bank loans L n 2s) - 23 . LT
Cost of refinancing and associated hedging (02) (02 {02 (02)
Net cash {outllow}/inflow from financing actvities (187) 310 187) o
Net mavement in cash and cash equivalents . 04 02 04 02
Cash and cash equivalents at the stan of the year 2 39 37 39 37
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2 43 39 43 39

There were na sigreficant non cash transachions dunng ether year
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Authonsation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies

AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH IFRSs

The financiat statements of Fuller, Smith & Turer PLC and its subsidianes (the "Group™) for the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 were
authansed for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 june 2013 and the Balance Sheet was signed on the Board's behall by M | Turner

Fuller, Smuth & Tumer PL C s a pubke limited company incorporated and domeciled in England and Wales The Company’s ordinary "A’
shares are traded on the London Stock Exchange

The Group's and Company s financial statements have been prepared in accardance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") as adopted for use in the European Union and applied to the financial statements of the Group and the Company for the 52 weeks
ended 30 March 2013, in accerdance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

The pnncpal accaunting policies adopied by the Group and by the Company are set out in the accounting policies below

Profit attnbutable to members of the Parent Company

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 a separate Income Stalement for the Parent Company has not been prepared
The profit attnbutable te ordinary shareholders and included in the financial stalements of the Parent Company was £26 4 million (2012
£21 5 million) There was no dwidend from subsidiary companies dunng the current year (2012 nif}

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation
The accounting pohicies which follow set out those policies which apply in prepanng the financial statements for the 52 weeks ended
30 March 2013

The Group and Company financial statements are presented in Stering and all vatues are shown in millons of pounds (£m) rounded to the
nearest hundred thousand, except when otherwise indhcated

Adoption of New Standards and Interpretations
The following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations are effectve for the Group's penod commencing ¥ April 2012

+1AS 12 Income Taxes - Recovery of Underlying Assets 1 January 2012
« IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosure (amendments) ¥ July 2011

These new Standards have not had a significant )impact on the accounting policies, financial positien or perfarmance of the Group

Basis of Consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of Fuller, Smith & Tumer PL C and the entities 1t controls {its subsidianes)
drawn up for the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 {2012 52 weeks ended 31 March 2012)

Subsidianes are consohdaled from the date of their acquisiuon, being the date on which the Group obtans control, and continue to be
consohdated until the date that such control ceases Control comprises the power to govem the financial and operatng poheies of the
investee so as to obtatn benefil from its actvities and 1s achieved through direct or indwect ownership of voling nghts, currently exercisable
or convertible potential vobng nghts, or by way of contractual agreement The financial statements of subsidianes are prepared for the
same reporung year as the Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies All intercompany balances and transactions inclucing
unreahsed profits ansing from them, are ehminated

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are camed at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses Intangible assels acquired separately from a
business are camed mnitally at cost Anintangible asset acquired as pan of 2 business combination is recognised outside goodwill if the asset
15 separable or anses from contractual or other legal nghts and ils fair value can be measured rebably Payments made (o acquire operating
leases from third parues are classified as intangible assets and amortised over the expected life of the lease and recogmised n the
Income Statement
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Notes to the Financial Statements contnued

1 Authonsation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies contnued

Goodwill

Business combinations on or after 28 March 2004 are accounted for under IFRS 3 using the purchase method No goodwill has arisen from
acquisitons made pror to 28 March 2004 Any excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, habihties and conungent babihtres 15 recogmised in the Balance Sheet as gaodwll and 15 not amorused To the
extent that the net fair value of the acquired entity's Wentifisble assets, hiabilises and contingent habilites is greater than the cost of the
investment, 2 gain is recogmsed immediately in the Incame Statement

After inimal recognition, goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, with the carying value being reviewed for
impaimment, at least annually and whenever events or changes i circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impared Any
imparment of goodwll made cannot be reversed if circumstances subsequently change

For the purpose of inpairment testing, goodwll s allocated to the related cash-generating units (or group of cash generating units) momtored
by management Where the recoverable amount of the cash generating un 15 less than ds carrying amount including goodwill, an
impairmertt loss Is recogrised in the Income Statement

The carmying amount of goodwill allacated to a cash-generating unit is taken into account when deterniming the gain or loss on disposal of
the ynit, or of an operation within 1t

Property Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment 15 stated a1 cost or deemed cost less accumulated depreciaion and any impairment i value Depreciation
is calculated on a straight-line basis down to the estimated residual value over the expected useful lfe of the asset as follows

Freehold buldings - Hotel sccommodation and offices - Up to 50 years

Freehold buildings - Licensed retaill property, unhicensed property and brewery - 50 to 100 years
Leasehald impravements - The lerm of the lease

Roofs - From 10 to 50 years

Plant, machinery and vehicles, containers, fidures and fitungs - From three years up to 25 years

As required under IAS 16 Property Plant and Equipment, expected uselul Iives and residual values are reviewed every year Land is
not depreciated

Investment Propersty

The Group owns properties that are not used for the production of goods or services but are held for capital appreciation or rental
purposes These properties are classified as mvestment properties and thew carmying values are based oncost Depreciation is calculated
on a straight line basis down to the estimated residual value over the expected useful hie of the asset. which for invesiment properties 1s
S0 to 100 years

imparment

Carrying values are reviewed for impairment if events indicate that the carmying value of the asset may not be recoverable If such an indicator
exsts and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash generzting units are wniten down to their
recoverable amounts An asset's recoverable amount is the greater of the farr value fess costs to sell, and the value iInuse In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market
assessments of the bme value of money and nsks specific to the asset For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows,
the recaverzble amaunt 1s determined for the smallest cash generating unil to which the asset belongs tmpairment losses, and any reversa)
of such losses, are recogmised in the Income Statement
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Notes to the Financial Statements conunued

1_Authonsation of Financia! Statements and Accounting Policies continued

Leases

Group 3s 2 lessee

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the nsks and beneiits of ownerstup of the asset are classified as operating leases and rentals
payable are charged in the Income Statement on a straight hne basis over the fease term Premiums pad or payable on acquinng 2 new
lease which are considered to be in consideration for a reduction in rent are spread on & straight ine basis over the term of the lease Such
premmms are classibied n the Balance Sheet as current ar non current prepayments Contingent rents are dependent on wrnover levels
and are expensed as incurred

Group as 3 lessor
Assets leased under operating leases are iIncluded in praperty, plant and equipment and depreciated over therr estimaled useful lves Rental
ncome, including the effect of lease incentives 15 recogrused on a straight ine basis over the lease term

Incentives received or recervable Lo enter into an operatng lease are spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Assets Held for Sale

Assets are classified as held for sale when the carrying amount will be recovered pnncipally through a sale transaction rather than continuing
use To be classified as such management need to have Intiated a sales plan as al the Balance Sheet date and must expect the sale to quatify
for recogmtion as a completed sale within ane year Assets held for sale are valued at the lower of the camying amount and farr value less
costs 1o sell No depreciztion 1s charged whilst assets are classilied as held {or safe

Inventories

Inventores are stated st the lower of cost and net reahsable value Cost is calculated using the First in Fist Qut method The cost of own
beer cansists of matenals with the addition of relevant overhead expenses Net reahsable value is the estmated selling pnce in the ordinary
course of business tess esumated costs of compleion and the costs to be incurved in marketng, selling and distnbution

Financiat Instruments

Financial Assets

Trade and other recenables

Trade recervables and loans Lo customers do not carry any interest and are recognised at thewr onginal invoiced amounts, less an allowance
for any amounts that are not considered to be collectible Increases to the altowance account are recognised n the Income Statement
wilhin operating costs At the point 3 irade recenvable 15 wrtten off the ledger as uncallectible, the cost is charged agamsi the allowance
account and any subsequent recovenes ol amounts previously wniten off are credited to the Income Slatement

Cash and short-term deposits
Cash and short-term deposits compnse cash at bank and in hand and shon term deposits wath an onginal matunty of three months or less

Derecognitron
A financial asset {or, where applicable 3 pan of a financial asset or part of 2 group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where the nghts
to recerve cash flows from the asset have expired

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables do not bear interest and are camed at onginal cost

Bank loans, overdrafts and debentures

Interest beanng bank loans, overdrafts and debentures are imtially recorded at the farr value of proceeds recerved. net of direct 1ssue costs,
and thereafter a1 amarused cost Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct tssue costs are
accounted for on an effectve interest rate basis in Lhe Income Statement Finance charges are added 1o the carrying amount of the instrument
ta the extent that they are not settled in the peniod in which they anse
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Notes to the Financial Statements conunued

1 Authonsation of Financial Statements and Accountng Policies continued

Derecognition

A financia! liability 1s derecogrused when the obligation under the hability 15 discharged or cancelled or expires Where an existing financial
hiability 15 replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an ewsting hability are substantally
modified, such an exchange or modification 15 treated as a derecogmtion of the onginal liabifity and the recognitron of a new hability, such
that the difference in the respective carmying amounts together with any cosis or fees incurred are recogmsed in profit or loss

Derrvauve financial instruments and hedging

In order to hedge 1ts exposure lo certain foreign exchange transaction nsks, the Group enters into forward fareign exchange contracts In
order to hedge its exposure to interest rate nsks, the Group enters into Interest rate denvative contracts The Group uses these contracls
in order to hedge known borrowings The Group does not use any dervative financial instruments for speculative purposes

Derwative financial instruments are inibially recognised at fair value on the date on which a denvative contract is entered into and are
subseguently remeasured at fair value Denvatives are carned as assets when the fair value is positive and as hiabikiies when the fair vatue
15 negatve The fair value of forward currency contracts 1s caleulated by reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts with similar
matunty profiles The lair value of interest rate swap and cap contracts are determined by reference to market values for simitar instruments

This represents a Level 2 fair value under the hierarchy in IFRS 7

For those denvatives designated as hedges and for which hedge accounting s desired, the hedging refationshsp 1s documented at its
mnception This documentation dentifies the hedging istrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the nsk being hedged and
how effectiveness will be measured throughout its duration Such hedges are expected at inceptian to be highly effective For the purpose
of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when hedging exposure to vanahility i cash flows that is either attnbutable
to a parbicutar nsk associated with a recognised asset ar liabuhty or a hughly probable forecast transaction

Imerest rate swaps are classified as cash flow hedges If they are effective hedges, then any changes in fair value are deferred n eguity until
the hedged transachion occurs, when any changes in fair value will be recycled through the Income Statement together with any changes
in the fair value of the hedged item |f the hedges are not effective hedges, then any changes in fair value are recognised i the income
Statement immediately

Il aforecast transaction is no longer expected ta occur amounts previously recogrused in equity are transferred to profit or loss 1f the hedging
instrument expires ar 1s sald, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or If its designation as 3 hedge is revoked, amounts
previously recogrised In equity remain in equity until the forecast transaction cocurs and are transferred o the Income Statement

Any gains or losses ansing from changes in the fair value of denvatives thal do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken to the Income
Statement

Classification of Shares as Debt or Equity

When shares are issued, any component that creates a inancial iability of the Company or Graup s presented as a liability in the Balance
Sheet, measured mitially at fair value net of transaction costs and thereafier at amosused costuntd extinguished on converston or redemplion

The corresponding dvidends relating to the hability component are charged as interest expense in the Income Statement The witial fair vatue
ol the haby camponent i1s determined using a markel rate for an equvalent hatelity without a conversian feature

The remainder of the proceeds on 1ssue 1s allocated to the equity compenent and included in shareholders’ equity, net of ransacbon costs
The carrying amount of the equity component is not remeasured i subsequent years

The Group's erdinary shares are classified as equiy instrurments For the purposes of the disclosures grvenin note 26, the Group considers
its capual to compnse its ordinary share capital, share premium, capial redemption reserve, hedging reserve and accumulated retaned
eamings plus 11s preference shares which are classified as a financial l1abifity in the Balance Sheet There have been no changes (o what the
Group considers o be capital since the pnor year

Preference Shares
The Group's prelerence shares are reported under non current liabilities The corresponding dwidends on preference shares are charged
as interest in the Income Statement Preference shares carry interest at fixed rates
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Notes to the Financial Statements conunved

1 Authonsation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies continued

Revenue
Revenue 1s recogmised (o the exteni that it s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and revenue can be reliably
measured It 15 measured at the fair value of consideration receved or recewvable, nel of discounts and VAT

Sales of goods are recognised when the goods are delivered and ttle has passed Renital income is recognised on 2 stranght ine basis over
the term of the lease Revenue for bedroom accommodation s recognised at the pomnt the services are rendered Amusement machine
revenue Js recognised in the accounting pertod to which the income relates

QOperating Prolit
Operating profit s revenue less operating cosis Revenue 15 as detailed above and as shown in note 3 Operating casts are all costs excluding
finance costs, costs associated with the disposal of properties and the tax charge

Finance Revenue
Finance revenue 1s recogmised as interest accrues using the effective interest method

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are generally recognised as an expense when ncumed Interest expenses direclly atnbulable to the acqustion or construction
ol an asset thal takes 3 substanual penod of ume 10 get ready for use are capitahised as part of the cost of the assets being created This s
apphed 1o development projects where the development is expected lo last in excess of six months 21 the commencement of the project

Taxation

The current tax payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year using UK tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previaus years Taxable profil differs from profits before lax as reported i the Income
Statement because it excludes items of ncome or expense that are axable or deductible in other years or are never taxable or deducuble

Tax 1s charged or crediied directly to equity if 1t relates to items that are credited or charged to equity Otherwise tax 15 recogrused in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income or the Income Statement, as apphcable

Deferred 1ax is prowvided on all temporary difierences at the Balance Sheet date between the tax bases of assets and habilues and therr
carrying amounts lor financial reporting purposes Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except where
the liabrity anises from the iitial recogmuon of goodwill or an asset or hability i a transaction that 1s not 3 business combination and, at the
ume of the transaction aifects nenther the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

Deferred 1ax 1s nol recogrised i respect of Laxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidianes where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controfled and d 15 probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future

Deferred 1ax assets are recogrised lor all deductble temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to
the extent that 1t 1s probable that taxable profu will be available against which they can be uthised except where the deferred (ax asset anses
fram the tnwial recogmuien of goodwill or an asset or liabibty In a transacton that 1s not 3 business combination and, at the ume of the
wransaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor Laxable profit or loss The carmying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date

Deferred tax assets and habibties are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates thal are expecied (o apply in the penods when
the asset s reahised or the hebility 15 settfed, based on Lax rates and laws enacted or substanirvely enacted 4t the Balance Sheet date

Foreign Currencies
Transactons denomunated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling at the dates of the transactions

Monetary assets and liabihes are translated at the year end exchange rates and the resuling exchange differences are taken lo the income
Statement, except where hedge accounting 1s applied
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 Authonsation of Financial Statements and Accounting Polictes continued

Pensions and Other Post-Employment Benefits
Defined contnbution schemes
Paymenis 10 defined contnbution retrement benefit schemes are charged to the Income Statement as they fall due

Defined benefit scheme
The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan for ehgible employees where contnbutons are made into 3 separate fund admsmistered
by truslees

The cost of providing benefits under the delined benefit plan 1s determined using the projected unil credit methed calculated by qualified
actuanes This atinbutes entitiement to benelits to the current penod (ta determine current service cost) and to the current and pnor penods
{to determemne the present value of defined benefit obligation) and s based on acluanal adwvice Past serwce costs are recogmised in the
tncome $tatement on 2 straight bne basis over the vesting penod or immedsiately If the benefits have vested

When 2 setlement (ehminaung all obligations for benelits already accrued) or a curtadment (reducing future obbgations as a result of 2
matenal reduction in the scheme membership or a reduction 0 future entitlement) occurs, the obligation and related plan assets are
remeasured usng current actuanal assumptions and the resultant gain or loss recognised in the Income Statement dunng the penod in which
the setilement or cuntalment occurs

The interest element of the defined beneht cost represents the change in present value ol scheme obligations resulung from the passage
of ume, and 15 determined by 2pplying the discount rate to the opening present vatue of the beneft oblhgauen, taking into account matenal
changes m the obkgation during the year

The expected reurn on plan asseis 1s based on an assessment made at the beginming of the year of long term market returns on scheme
assets, adjusted for the effect on the fair value of plan assets of contnbutions recerved and benefits paid during the year The difference
between the expecied return on plan assets and the interest cost 1s recogrised in the tncame Statement as other finance income or expense
Actuzanal gains and losses are recogmised in full in the Statement of Comprehensive income in the period in which they occur

The defined benefit penston asset or Lability in the Balance Sheet compnses the total of the present value of the defined benefit obligation
{using 2 chseount rate based on high quality corporate bonds), less any past service cost nol yet recogrised and less the fair vatue of plan
assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly Fair value 15 based on market pace information and in the case of quoted
secunites s the published bid pnce The value of a net pension benefit asset s cestncted 1o the sum of any unrecognised past service costs
and the present value of any amount the Group expecis to recover by way of refunds from the plan or reductions m the future contributions

Exceptional Items

The Group presents as exceplional items on the face of the Income Statement, those matenal items of income and expense which, because
of the nature and expected mirequency of the events giving nse to them merit separate presentation 1o dlow shareholders to understand
betier the elements of financial performance in the year, so as to faciMate compansan with pror penods and to better assess trends in
financial performance

Share Based Payments

The Group has an employee Share Incentive Plan, that awards shares to employees based on the reported profiis of the Group for the year,
and a Long Term Incentive Plan which awards shares 1o Direciors and semor execulives subject to specific performance critena The Group
also 1ssues equity seitled share based payments to certain employees under approved and unapproved Share Option schemes and a
Savings Related Share Option Scheme

The cost of equity settled transactions with employees is measured by relerence to the fair value al the date ai which they are granted and
15 recognised as an expense aver the vesting penod, which ends on the date on which the relevant employees become fully enttied to the
award Fair value (s determined using an appropnate pnoing model In vatuing equity settied transactionss, no account rs taken of any vesting
conditions The Group has no equity settled transactions that are Iinked to the price of the shares of the Company (market condivons}
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Notes to the Financial Statements contnued

1 Authonisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Pelicies continued

Share-Based Payments continued

No expense 15 recopnised for awards that do not ulimately vest At each Balance Sheet date before vesting, the cumulative expense 15
cakeulated, representing the extent to which the vesting penod has expired and management s best esimate of the achievement or otherwise
of non market conditions and of the nusmber of equity instruments that will utimately vest The movement in cumulative expense since the
previous Balance Sheet date 1s recognised in the income Statement, with a corresponding entry in equity

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified or a new award 1s designated as replacing 3 cancelled or settled award, the cost
based on the eriginal award terms continues to be recogrused over the aniginal vesting penod In addrtion, an expense 1s recognised over
the remainder of the new vestng penod for the incremental far value of any modificaion, based on the difference between the fair value
of the ongmal award and the far value of the modified award, both as measured on the date of the modificaton No reduction 1s recognised
if this difierence 1s negative

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled (including when a non vesting conditzon within the control of the enuity or employee is not met),
it1s treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any cost not et recognised in the Income Statement for the award is expensed
immediately Any compensation paid up (o the farr value of the award at the cancellation or settlement date 15 deducted from equity, with
any excess over fair value being treated as an expense in the Income Statement

The Group has taken advantage of the transtional prowisions of IFRS 1 1n respect of equity-settled awards so a5 to apply IFRS 2 only to those
equity settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had not vested before 1 January 2005

Own Shares
Shares to be awarded under employee incentive plans and those that have been awarded but have yet ta vest uncendibionally are held at
cost by an employee share ownership trust and shown as a deducton from equity in the Baltance Sheet

In addion to the purchase of shares by the vanous emplayee share ownership trusts for specific awards, the Group also from time to tme
acquires own shares Lo be held as treasury shares These shares are accasionally bul not exclusively used to sausfy awards under vanous
share option schemes Treasury shares are held at cost and shown as a deduction fram total equity in the Balance Sheet

Consideration received for the sale of such shares 1s 2'so recogmised in equity, with any difference between the proceeds from sate znd the
onginal cost being taken Lo revenue reserves No gam or loss 1s recogrised in the pedformance statements on the purchase, sale, 1ssue or
cancellation of treasury shares

Dmwidends
Dwdends recommended by the Board but unpaid at the year end are not recognised in the financial statements unul they are paid (in the
case af the intenm divdend) or approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting (n the case of the final dmdend)

fFmancial Guarantee Contracts

Where the Company enters into contracis to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within the Group, the Company considers
these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them 2s such In this respect the Company treats the guarantee contract as a
contingent hiability until such time as ¢ becomes probable that the Company wifl be required to make a payment under the guaraniee

The Company’s Investments in Subsidaries
The Company recogfises its nvestments in subsidianes at cast Distnbutons recerved are recognised 1n the Income Statement The cost of
the investment held is subject to annual impairment review

New Standards and Interpretations Issued But Not Yet Applied

The 1ASE and IFRIC have issued the following standards and nterpretations with an efiectve date for penods starung on or after the date
on which these financial statements start The Directors do not antictpate that the adoption of any of these standards and interpretations,
wherever relevant to Fuller's, will have a sigmficant impact on the Group's results or assets and labilities in the penod of sit:a} application
and are not expected to require significant addiional disclosure
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Notes to the Financial Statements conunued

1 Authonsatien of Financial Statements and Accounung Polictes continued

International Accounting Standards Effective date
- 1AS 1 Financigl Statement Presentation - Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive income 1 juty 2012
«IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011) 1 January 2013
- IAS 28 Investment n Associales and jont Ventures (as revised n 2011} 1 January 2013
- 1AS 32 Offseting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilives - Amendments 1o IAS 32 1 January 2014
« IFRS 1 Government Loans - Amendments to IFRS 1 1 January 2013
« [FRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetung Financia! Assets and Financial Liabiites - Amendments to [FRS 7 1 January 2013
* IFRS 9 Financial instruments Classification and Measurement 1 January 2015
+ IFRS 10 Consohdation Financial Statements 1 january 2014
«IFRS 10 IFRS 12 and IAS 27 investiments Enlities - Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 1 January 2014’
«IFRS 11 Jaint Arrangements 1 January 2014
« IFRS 12 Disclosure of Involvement with Other Entites 1 January 2014
= |FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013
« Improvements to IFRS 2009-2011 cycle 1 january 2013
" Latest date of adophion

The following change i standard has not been early adopted but it 15 believed by the Directors that 1t wll have an impact on the Group s
resulls, assets and labilives

* 1AS 19 Employee Benelits (Amendment) 1 January 2013

1AS 19 (Amendment) requrres the Graup to replace nterest cost on defined benefit obligations and expected return on plan assets with 2
netinterest amount that is catculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit kability/asset The future impact of tiis change
to the Group's reparted profit in the penod 1s set out in note 23

Significant Accounting Estimates and judgements
The judgements, estimates and assumplions which are considered to be sigrificant are as follows

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired on an annual basis and this requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating uruts to which the goodwilhis allocated This involves estimation of future cash flows and cheosing a sutable discount rate Full
details are supphed in note 11, together with an analysis of the key assumptions

The Group reviews for impairment all property, plant and equipment at cash generating unit level where there s any indication of impairment
This requires an esumation of the value in use and volves estimation of future cash flows and choosing 2 sutable discount rate See note 12,
which describes the assumptions used together wath an analysis of the key assumplions

Measurement of defined benefit pension obhigations requires estimauon of future changes in salanes and inflatton, as well as mortality rates,
the expected return on assets and the selection of a suitable discount rate These have been determined on 3dwice from the Group's
qualified actuary The estimates used and the key assumptions are provided n note 23

Judgement is required when determining the provision for 1axes as the tax treatment of some transacuons cnnot be finally determmed untl
a lormal resolution has been reached with the tax authorimies Tax benelits are not recogrused unless o s probable that the benefit will be
obtained Tax pravisions are made i 1 1s possible that a liabihty will anse The Group reviews each significant tax Liatulity or benefit to assess
the appropnate accountng treatment See notes 8 and 25

The assessment of fair values for the assets and kabibues recognised in the financial statements on the acquisition of a business requires
significant judgement Management assesses far values, particularly for property plant and equipment, wilh reference to current market
pnces See noie 17 for the business combinations made i the year
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Notes to the Financial Statements conunued

2 Segmental Analysis
Operating Segments
For management purposes. the Group's operaung segments are

- Managed Pubs and Holels, which compnses managed pubs and managed hotels,
« Tenanted Inns, which compnses pubs operated by third parties under tenancy or lease agreements, and
+ The Fuller's Beer Company, which compnses the brewang and distnbution of beer, wines and spints

The Group's busmess 15 verucally integrated The most important measure used to evaluale the performance of the business is adjusted
profit, which 1s the profit before Lax, adyusted for exceptional items The operatng segments are orgaised and managed separately
according to the nature of the products and services provided, with each segment represenung 3 strategic operating unit More detalls
of these segments are given in the Group Managing Director s Review on pages 6to 15 of thisreport Segment performance 1s evaluated
based on operating profit before exceptional items and 1s measured consistently with the operaung profit before exceptional tems in the
consolidated financial statements

Transfer pnces between operating segments are set on an arm's length basis i 3 manner stmilar to transactions with third parties Segment
revenue, segment expense and segment result include transiers between operaung segments  Thase ransfers are elminated on
consohdation Group financing, ncluding finance costs and revenwe, and taxation are managed on 3 Group basis

As segment assels and hiabilites are not regufarly prowided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker, the Group has elected, as provided
under IFRS & Operating Segments (amended) not to disclose a measure of segment assets and habilives

Manzged Pubs The Fuller's

and Hotels Tenanwed tnns ~ Beer Company Unall d' Toul
52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 £m Lm £m £m £Em
Revenue . _ _ o L o )
Segmentrevenue 1701 308 1136 - 345
Inter-segment sales - - (430) - {43 0)
Revenue from third parties 1701 308 704 - 2715
Segmenl result 194 122 87 {33) 370
Operating exceplional stems (15)
Operating profit. o . _ o 355
Eoﬁt on disposal of properties o i o . o 50
Nel finance costs - (53)
Profit before tax 352
Other segment information o o . _
Capital expenditure . i _ ___-__. e _

_ Property, plant and equipment _ 141 22 19 - _ 182
:_ Business combinatiens . 15 39 _ - - 1n4
Depreciation and amorusation . 3 96 16 30 . BT 2
Impairment of property _ ) 87 L - i . 18
Reversal of tmpairment on property {08) - - s " (08)

1 Uinalocated expenses represent prmanly the salary and costs of central management
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Notes to the Financial Statements conunued

2 Segmental Analysis continued

Managed Pubs The Fuller s

and Hotels Tenanted Inns Beer Company Unallecated! Tonal
§2 weeks ended 31 March 2012 £m im ILm £m &m
Revenue G —— = _— e . — ——
Segment revenue . |- I 275 10%1 - . 2923
inler-segment sales . - (393) - (393)
Revenue from third parues 155 7 2715 698 - 2530
Segmentresult — o183 w3 90 en 39
Operating exceptional itlems (19
Operatng profit. . . o o 330
Prafit on disposal of pEQcmeé o i . e - _ 0s
Net finance costs {4 8}
Proful before tax 288
Other segment infarmation — - o _
Capital expenditure o ) . R ) _

_F_'r;pgrty. plant and equipment ) 134 ) 15 ?_?) _ - ...y
__ Business combinations _ - 215 B3y - ) - 528
Deprecation and amortisation _ _ &5 1€ 21 - ms
Impaement of property i 02 01 " .z .9
Reversal of impairment on property i (23) - - - (23)
"Unaflocated expenses represent pnmanty the salary and costs of central management
Geographical Information
The majonty of the Group's business 15 within the UK and the Group dentifies two distinct geographik markets

Restof
uK the World Tols!
52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 £ £m £m
Revenwe i L . o .
Sales (0 external customers 26590 65 2715
Rest of
ux the Worid Tols
52 weeks ended 31 March 2012 £m Em £m
Revenye . : . - L .
Sales 1o externat customers 2473 57 2530

Sales o external customers disclosed in geographical informauon are based on the peographical location of its customers Al of the

Group's assets, habiliies and capital expendiure relate to the UK only

3 Revenue

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
30 March 31 March
2013 2012
im £m

Revenue disclosed m the Income Statement is analysed as follows _ _ } R .
Sale of goods and services — —_ 2621 450
Rental income 94 80
2715 2530
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Notes to the Financial Statements contnued

4 Qperating Costs

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended

30 March 31 March

1013 2

£m &m

Producton costs and cost of goods used in retaling o 957 864
Change in slocks of f:mshed ed goods and beerm CEr I Progress i L L {09 17
Staff costs B 673 625
Repairs to properues - 71 638
Depreciation of property plant and equipment _ _ e 137 125
Amortisation of intangibles . . . . ) s 03
Operating Iease rentals - m|n|mum lease payments’ i - 12 64
_ - contingent rents? ’ ___:_ o _ . _.as _om

Exceptonal iiems (note 5) . o . s 19
Other 419 404
2360 2200

1 included wathan myemim Jease payments ace sublease payments of £0 7 mofion (2012 £0 7 mihon) T Contmgent rents are dependent on [umover fevels

Details of income and direct expenses relating to rental income from ivestement properties are shownmnote 13

52 weeksended 52 weeks ended

30 March 31 March

2013 2012

a) Auditors’ Remuneration £m £m
Fee payable to Company's auditors _ _ _ . i o L )

Slalulory audit fees of Group financial statements 01 o1

01 01

Fees for tax compliance work of £16,000 (2012 £16,000) 2nd other non audst service fees relating to XBRL conversion and covenants

review of £6,000 (2012 £6,000) were charged in the year

b} Staff Costs £m &m
Wages and salanes™__ i . o 60 6 568
Socwl secunty costs . ) 48 40
Pension benefits 19 17
673 625
“inciudes Directors  “includes share based paymient expense
¢) Average Number of Employees* Number Numbey
The average monthty number of persons employed by the Group (including part-ume staff) was as follows i
Fuller s Inns . _ o 3166 3095
The Fuller's Bcer Company . o . il 283
Centrat Services 14 14
3477 3,392
*inchudes Dwectors

d) Directors’ Emoluments

Full details are prowded in the Directors’ Remuneraton Report and tables on pages 41, 43 and 51 Two Drreciors had benefits accruing
under defined benefit pension schemes al the end of the year {2012 three) Two Directors had benefits accrumg under the Company's
defined contnbulion scheme at the end of the year (2012 two) One Director had beneliis accruing under a non Company defined

contnbution pension (2012 one)
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Notes to the Financial Statements contrwed

5 Exceptional llems

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended

30 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Amounts included m operating profit. . . i o i
Acquswoncosts B R _ e oy 30
impairment of property (18) (03}
Reversal of impairment on property _ o . L . _bs 23
Onerous lease charges (note 25) T - (0 9}
Total exceptional items included in operating profit (15) (19
Proht on disposal of properties 50 06
Excepuonal finance costs L .. _ o .
Movement in fair value of financial instruments - _ T (02)
Total exceptional finance ¢osts - 02
Total exceptional items before tax 35 (15)
Excepuonaltax - . o o ) . .
Change 1n corporation tax rate {see nate 8) ) . } o 12 25
Profit on disposal of properties R ) o o {01} on
Other items 07 04
Total exceptional tax 18 28
Yotal exceptional items 53 13

Acquisiton costs of £0 5 mulbon dunng the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 (2012 £3 0 muthon) relae to transaction costs on pub
acquisiiens Of these amounts £0 § milkion dunng the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 (2012 £2 6 mullon}relates to the purchase of pubs
which qualify as business combinations The additional costs of £0 4 milion dunng the 52 weeks ended 31 March 2012 were abortive
transaction costs incurred dunng a proposed acquision bid

The property impaement charge of £1 8 million dunng 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 (2012 £0 3 mvlon) represents & wnte down of
hicensed properttes to their recoverable value The reversal of impairment credd of £0 8 milion dunng, the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013
(2012 £2 3 milkon) relates to the wnie back ol previousty impaired kcensed properties 1o therr recoverable value

The aet onerous lease charge of £0 9 mdlion duning the 52 weeks ended 31 March 2012 related 1o prowsions made in respect of leasehotd
properties which are currently trading at a loss and which the Directors do not expect to become profitable in the future

The profit on disposal of properties of £5 0 milhon dunng the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 (2012 £0 & mllion) relates to the disposal
of five licensed and unficensed properties (2012 sog

The movement i fair value of financial instruments of £0 2 mullion for the 52 weeks ended 31 March 2012 related to interest rate swaps
and caps which, although considered effective in managing the interest rate nsk of the Group's borrowings, do not meet the definition of an
effective hedge for hedge accounting purposes

The cash impact of operaung exceptional tems before tax for the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 was £15 million cash outflow {2012
£2 0 muhon cash outflow)
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Notes to the Financial Statements conunued

6 Finance Revenue

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
30 march 31 March
2013 202
£m im
Interest recesvable fram o o . e e
Finance (ncome on net pensmn  liabihites 06 03
06 03
1 Finance Costs
52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
30 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m Em
Interest expense ansing on
E‘I@l]CI_NEbImICS at ggg_n_lfed cost - Icans s and debentures . _ ___ 58 46
Financial rabdites at amortised cost - preference shares 01 01
Total interest expense for [l_n_:gn_t:lal habibties L . ) 58 47
Unwinding of discounts on prows:on‘s. i 03 02
Total finance costs befare excepuional ems o . 589 A%
Movement in farr value of financial instruments (note 5) - 02
55 51
8 Taxabon
a) Tax on Profit on Ordinary Activitres
52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
30 March 31 March
2013 2
Group £m Im
Tax charged in the Income Statement - L _
alrrerﬁ Income tax ) L L . . _
Corporallon tax : . i _ o 86 82
Amounis over prt;wded n prewous years i - 02 -
Total current income (ax 84 82
Deferred tax . .
Ongmauon and revetsal of temporary dnflcrences . _ e (3w _ {os)
Change i corporatian tax rate (note 5) (12) {25)
Total deferred tax (25) {31
Total tax charged tn the Income Statement 59 51
Tax relating to rtems charged/credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income .
Deferred tax - N ~ -
Change i carporation tax tax rate o . . 03 02
Net losses on valuation oi financial assets and habhves o L 02 (e
Net actuanal gamsf(iosses) on pension ‘scheme EE) (33)
Tax charge/(credit) included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 12 (37
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Notes to the Financial Statements contnved

8 Taxauien continued

a) Tax on Profit on Ordinary Actvities contimued

52weeks ended 52 weeks ended
30 March 31 March
2013 2012
Tax relauing lo ilems charged directly to equity £m £&m
Oelerred tax
Reducuon in deferred tax hability due to indexation 05) {0 5)
Share-based payments e 01 A
Qurenttx . . - .
Share based payments (03) 02)
Tax credit included in the Statement of Changes n Equity (07) (0 6)
Deferced tax in the Income Statement o . L o o
Decelersted tax depreciation } o N (33) 09
Rolled over gains i o o . o ) 04 {09)
Retrement benefit obligations o . __ _ 02 02
Tax losses car—njed forward — - . _— A -
Employee share schemes Lo R o L o2 -
Others T 01 (0 5)
{25) (31)

Dunng the penod the Finance Act 2012 has recewved Royal Assent The mawn impact is that the rate of UK corporation tax reduced from
24% to 23% from 1 Apnl 2013 7o the extent that this rate change will affect the amount of future cash tax payments to be made by the
Group, this has reduced the size of both the Group's Balance Sheet deferred tax iability and deferred tax asset The impactin the 52 weeks
10 30 March 2013 s an exceptional credit to the Income Statement of £1 2 mullion, and a charge to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income of £0 3 midlion The impact of previous rate changes in the 52 weeks ended 31 March 2012 was an exceptional credil to the
Income Statement of £2 5 million, and a charge to the Statemen of Comprehensive Income of £0 2 mitkon

Funher reductions have been proposed, lo reduce the rate to 21% and 20% on 1 Aprl 2014 2nd 2015 respectively, however these
changes have not yet been substantively enacted and the financial effects will only be recorded in future penods as legsslation is introduced
The combined effect of these proposals on the net deferred tax liabiity at 30 March 2013 would be to reduce the hability by £2 7 mulhon

b) Recanciliation of the Total Tax Charge

The 1ax expense in the Income Statement for the year s lower than the standard rate of carporation 1axn the UK of 24% (2012 26%)
The differences are reconciled below

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
30 March 31 Mareh
2013 2012
Group Em £m
Profit from conunuing operations before 1axation 152 288
Accounting profit multiplied by the UK standard rate of corporation tax of 24% (2012 26%) 84 75
ltems ot deducuble for tax purposes . o o 01 01
Current and deferred tax overprowided in previous years _ B _ 2y -
Change in Corporauion Taxrate . o _ha @2s)
indexation on disposal of propertes (12 -
Total tax charEed i the Income Statement 59 51
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Notes to the Financial Statements conunved

9 Earnings Per Share

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
30 March 11 Marth
2013 2012
£m £m
Profit attnbulable to cquity shareholders i 293 237
Excepllona] items net of tax i (53) (13)
Adjusted earmngs attnbutable to equity shareholders 240 22 4
MNumber Nymber
Wetghted average share copital o e o 55,717,000  56.250,000
Dilutive outsianding options and share awards 534,000 695,000
Diluted we ﬂed average share capnal 56,251,000 56,945,000
Pence Pence
40p *A” 2nd 'C’ ordinary share - . o i
Basnc?arnmgs per share } o 5259 4213
Drluted earmings per share o o L 5209 _ 41 62
;d]usgg_t{e_ammggggs_m"e o o L i 4307 39 82
Oiluted adjusted earnngs per share 4267 3934
4p 'B' ordinary share
Bastc earmings per share - —— . R ... 526 K4
Diluted earrungs per share i B 521 416
Adjusted earmings per share o e . A 3o
Dhluted adjusted earmngs per share ) ) 427 393

For the purposes of calcutating the number of shares to be used above, ‘B’ shares have been treated as one tenth of an A’ or °C" share
The earrungs per share catculation 15 based on eamings from continuing operations and on the weighted average ordinary share capital
which excludes shares held by trusis relating to employee share ophions and shares held in treasury of 1,267,808 (2012 734,626)

Diluted earmings per share are cakulated using the same earnings figure as for basic earnings per share dvided by the weighted average
aumber of ordinary shares outstanding duning the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be 1ssued on
the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares

Adjusted earmngs per share are calculated on profit before tax excluding exceptional lems and on the same weighted average ardinary
share capital as for the basic and dituled earrings per share An adjusted earnings per share measure has been included as the Directors
consider that ttus measure better reflects the undertying eamings of the Group

10 Dwidends
52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
30 March 31 March
2013 2002
£m Im
Declared and paid dunng the year o . L
Equny ity dvidends on ordmary shares . L _ T
Finat dmdend for 2012 7 60p (2011 7 05p) _ - . a2 40
Inmtenm dwidend for 2013 5 35p (2012 5 05p) i 30 28
Equity dividends pard 72 68
Dvidends on cumulative preference shares (note 7) 01 01
Proposed for appraval at the AGM
Final ddend for 2013 B 35p (2012 7 60p) 47 42
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10 Dmidends continued

The pence figures above are for the 40p "A’ ordinary shares and 40p 'C ordinary shares The 4p *B’ ordinary shares carry dmvdend nghts
of ane tenth of those applicable to the 40p ‘A’ ordinary shares Own shares held in the employee share trusts do not qualify for dvdends
as the trustees have waved their nghts Dmdends are also not paid on own shares held as treasury shares

11 Intangible Assets

Group and
Company Lease
Group ssmignment Group Company
Goodwall premums Tots! Total
£m £m £m &m
Cost . _ o 3 . L i
AL 2 Apnl 2011 245 T 245 -
Acquisiions - 70 70 70
AL131 March 2012 245 70 315 70
At 30 March 2013 245 70 315 70
Amorttisation and impairment - o ~ )
At2 Apnl 2011 06 - 06 -
Prowded dunng the year - 03 03 03
At 31 March 2012 06 03 09 03
Prowided duning the year - as 05 05
At 30 March 2013 06 08 14 08
Net book value at 30 March 2013 239 62 301 62
Net book value a1 31 March 2012 239 67 06 67
Net book value at 2 Apnl 2011 239 - 239 -

Lease assignment premiyms

Amounts paid to acquire leasehold praperty (“lease assignment premiums”) are amortised on 3 straight iine basis over the remaning
useful fe of the lease The amortisation 15 charged in the Income Statement in the hne item “Operating cosis™ (see note 4}

There are three pubs on which we carry lease assignment premiums at 30 March 2013 (2012 three)
Goodwill

2013 2012

Goodwill 1s allocated 1o cash generating units as follows £m £m
Galesestate L o Lo 227 227
Jacomb Guinness estate 12 12
239 239

Of the £22 7 mdlion of goodwill relating to the Gales estate, £9 1 nullion relates to Managed Pubs and Hotels dmwsion and £13 6 milion
relates to the Tenanted Inns dvision All of the Jacomb Guinness goadwll relates to the Managed Pubs and Hotel dmsion

Key assumptions used in value in use calculations

Long term growth rate - Managed — —- - - 25%  25%
Long term growth rate - Tenanted L L L 15% i . 15%
Pre tax discount rate - Freehold . _ _ 72% 6 5%
Pre-tax discounted rate - Leasehold 5 7% 9 5%
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11_Intangible Assets continued
Goodwill conbnued

Goodwill acquired through business combmanions has been allocated for impairment testing on an estate and dwisional cash-generating
uritleved This represents the lowest level within the Group at which goodwll 1s monitared for ntzmal management purposes Recoverable
amound 1s based on 3 calcutaion of value In use based upon the budget for the forthcoming financial year approved by semor
management Cashflows beyond the budget penod are extrapolated in perpetuity on the assumpton that the growth rate does rot exceed
the average long term growth rale for the relevani markets The pre-1ax discount rate applied to cash flow projections 1s based on the
Direciors' assessment of the Group’s weighted average cost of capital and current market conditons

The catculavon af value in use 15 most sensitrve 1o tie assumplions in respect of growsh rate and discount rate The calculation of value
in use 1 also dependent upon the followsng assumpbions sales volume, gross margin in managed premises barrelage and rent projections
in tenanted premises, and wage cost tn managed premises Gross margins are based on histoncal performance levels It has been assumed
that any tncrease in excise duty will be reflected in an increase in sales price and hence will have no effect on cash margins

All of the key assumptions above have thew assigned values based on management knowledge and histoncal information

Sensitivity to Changes in Assumpuons

Management have considered reasonable changes in key assumpuons used in therr calculations of value in use They have concluded
that such changes will nat resultin an impairment to either the Jacomb Guenness or the Gales cash-generaling units at 30 March 2013

12 Property, Plant and Equipment

Lnd &  Plant, y c s

buddings & vetncles  fidtures & Mungs Total
Group £m £m £m £m
Cost . . Lo ) o I _
AL 2 Apnl 2011 - 3247 286 94 6 4479
Additions L _ 76 45 16 237
Acqustions — L M7 on 07 455
Disposals ey ©9 27 G3)
Al 31 March 2012 3749 3217 104 2 5118
Addwons _ - 49 10 117 176
ECQUISJ!I_OI‘_IS (note 17) L : ws - _0s 114
Disposals _ o _ 0y (@D (B (35
Transfer to/from imvestment propertes 04 - - 04
At 30 March 2013 3908 335 113 4 5377
Depreciatron and impairment _ _ . .
At 2 Apnl 2011 228 179 44 1051
Provided dunng the year _ — 20 1 88 125
Imparment reversals net of loss L o Qo _ - - Qo
Disposals (13) (05 (25) {43)
At 31 March 2012 215 191 707 1113
Prowded dunng the year . 22 20 95 137
i_gpa[_rrﬂent loss net of reversals o o e - - 10
Drsposals - (02 29 B
AL 30 March 2013 247 209 7713 1229
Net book value at 30 March 2013 366 1 126 361 414 8
Met book value a1 31 March 2012 353 4 136 335§ 4005
Net book value at 2 Apnl 2011 3019 107 302 3428
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12 Property, Plant and Equipment continued

tand & Plant machunery Contawners

buddings & vehictes  fortures & fitngs Total
Company £m £m £m £m
Cost_ e _ i .
AL 2 Apnl 2011 T 3246 285 931 4462
Addiions 76 45 116 237
Acquisitons 447 01 07 455
Disposals (21) (05) 27) (53)
AL31 March 2012 3748 326 1027 5101
Addwons . o _ L _ 49 10 mnz 176
}_\_équg_lyons (note 17) o s o w8 - 06 114
Drisposals o - . 0y (01 __ (31) (39}
Transfer 10/{rom investment propery 04 - - 04
Al 30 March 2013 3907 334 LLLE 5360
Depreciation and impairment _ . _ L o _
Al 2 Apnl 2011 227 179 628 103 4
Prowided duning the year 20 17 88 125
Impairment reversals net of l0ss L o L ey - - (o)
Disposals (13) (09 (2 5) {43)
At 31 March 2012 274 191 691 1096
Provided during the year _ L i o 22 20 95 137
Eqpanfmem loss net of reversals L i L 10 - - 10
Disposals - {02) {29} (31
Al 30 March 2013 246 209 757 1212
Net boak vatue at 30 March 2013 3661 125 362 414 8
Nei book value at 31 March 2012 3534 138 336 4005
Net book value at 2 Apnl 2011 3019 106 303 3428

Group and Company

Interest Capitalised

The amount of interest capnalised 1o date 1s £100.,000 (2012 £100,000)

Assels under canstruction

Included in the cost of property, plant and equipment at 30 March 2013 was an amount of £0 4 mithen {2012 £2 2 million) relating 1o
three (2012 two) property developments in the course of construction

Imparment

The Group considers each trading outlet to be 3 cash-generating unit ("CGU") and each CGU 1s reviewed annualy for indicators of impamrment
In assessing whether an asset has been impaired, the carmying amount of the CGU 15 compared to its recoverable amount The recoverable
amount s the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and ds value 1n use In the absence of any infermation about the fair value of a CGUY,
\he recoverable amount 15 deemed to be its value inuse

Dunng the 52 weeks ended 3¢ March 2013, the Group recogrused an impairment loss of £1 8 midlon {2012 £0 3 mdkon) in respect of
the write down of licensed properties purchased in recent years where their asset values exceeded exther far value less costs to sell or therr
value in use The impairment fosses were driven pnncipally by changes i (he local competitive ervironment i whuch the pubs are situated
Fallowtng an improvement in trading performance and an increase i the amounts of esumated future cash flows of certain previousty
impaired sites, reversals of £0 8 milhon were recognised dunng the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 {2012 £2 3 million)

The key assumptions used in the value in use calculauons are those detailed m note 11
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12 Property, Plant 2nd Equipment continued

Sensivity to Changes in Assumptions

The value m use calculations are sensitve to the assumptions used The Directors consider 3 mavement of 1% 1n the discount rate and
0 5% in the growth rate to be reasonable with reference Lo market yield curves and the current economic condiions The impact is set

out 3s follows
52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
30 March 31 March
2013 22
Impact on imparment of assets at nsk - increase/(decrease) Em £m
Increase discount rate by 1% R ) . o _ 16 o7
Decrease discount rale by 1% . _ o _tog) {03)
Increase growth rate by 0 5% [ 1) 02
Decrease growth rate by 0 5% 05 03
13 Investment Properties
Group Company
Freehold Freehold
& teasehold & leasehold
propertits properiics
£m £m
Cost o _ o L - e
AL 2 Apnl 2011 11 58
Additions L . i . o o 01
Acquisitions ) - i . o o . . _:(_)_-E_l___ 083
Dlspos_'als ) . o2 {02
Transfer to assets held for sale (53) -
Al 31 March 2012 60 60
Addiuons L o . o 10 10
Disposals (10) (10
Transfer to/lrom property, plant and equipment L (04) {0 4}
Transfer to assets held for sale T T ©6) {0 6)
Al 30 March 2013 50 50
Depreciation and imparment ) o o L
ALZ Apnl 2011 11
Al 31 March 2012 11
Prowded dunng the year . . L - -
Dusposals (03} (03
At 30 March 2013 0B 08
Net book value at 30 March 2013 42 42
Net book valye at 31 March 2012 49 49
Net book value at 2 Apnl 2011 100 47
Fair value at 30 March 2013 82 82
Fair vatue at 31 March 2012 84 84
Fair value at 2 Apnl 2011 142 89
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13 Investment Properties continued

The fair value of investment properties has been estimated by the Directors, based on the rental income eamed on the propertigs dunng
the year and average yelds earned on comparable properties fram publicly available informanon  An mdependent valuation of the
properties has not been performed

imparment

The Group considers each property to be acash generatng unit (“CGU") and each CGU s reviewed annually for indicators of impairment
In assessmg whether an asset has been impaired, the camying amount of the CGU 1s compared (0 its recoverable amount The recoverable
amount s the higher of its far value less costs 1o sell and uts value in use

Duning the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013, the Group did not impar any investment properties (2012 nil)

Investment Property Income

The properues are ket on both landlord and tenant repainng leases Amounts recogrised in the profit for the iinancial year relating to
rental income from rvestment properues are as follows

Group Growp Company Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Em £Em £m £m
Remal income o o 04 04 04 04
Direct operating expenses (01 (02} {0 1) ¢1)
All direct operating expenses relate lo properties that generate rental income
14 Denvative Financial Instruments
013 202
Group and Company £m £m
Interest rate swaps (24) (14)
Total financeal iabihties wathin current labilties {2 4) (14}
Deltails of the interest rate swaps and cap are prowided in note 26
15 Other Non-Curreat Assets
2013 012
Group and Company £m Em
Loans lo cusiomers due after one year i . 03 02
Other 01 01
04 03
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16 tnvestments in Subsidianes

Cost Prowsian  Net book value
Company £m £m £m
At 2 April 2011, 31 March 2012 aad 30 March 2013 920 (02) 918
Prncpal subsidary uadenalangs Holding Proporton held Nature of busmness
Gnffin Catenng Senvices Limited £1 ordinary shares 100% (indirect) Managed houses serace company
George Gale & Co Limited £1 ordinary shares 100% Property holding company
- . __ 25p A ordinaryshares __100% . L

£10 preference shares 100%

The above companies are registered and operate i England and Wales

17 Business Combinations

Dunng the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 the Company has acquired four new pubs for a combined tonsideration of £11 4 ullion, all
of which have been treated as business combinations as they were operating as a business at the point the Company acquired them

The acquisitions were made as part of the Group's continuing strategy to expand the managed and tenanted portfolio wia setective
quality acquisibons

Number
Number of pubs purchased 4
£m
Fair value o - .
I;operty. plant and equ:pmenl- E;:qunred T ’ - ’ 114
Goodwill i ) i -
Consideration 114
Sausfied by . o ) . L B L i
Cash ) 114

Cosls associsled with the acquismons of £0 5 million have been charged to operating exceptional tems 1 the Consohidated Income
Statement for the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 (see note 5) These compnse pnmanly stamp duly and other property fees

The acquisitions have contnbuted the following operating profit to the Group in the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 from the date
of acquisiion

£m
Operaung profit 03

It 15 not practical to idenufy the relted cash flows, revenue and profit on an annualised basis as the months for which the pubs have
been owned are not representative of the annualised figures The pre acquisition trading results are not ndicative of the trad ing expected
gomng forwards followaing the significant redevelopment by the Company. thertfore proforma trading results have not been included

Dunng the prior penod the Company acquired 28 pubs throughout the year, five from Marston’'s PLC on 1 November 2011 for
£16 0 million, 16 from Enterpnse inns plc on 9 March 2012 for £25 3 mdlion and the remaining seven pubs were bought indmdually
through the year for 3 total of £11 5 milbon From the date of acquisiton the sites acquired contnbuted £0 € mullion operating profit in
the 52 weeks ended 31 March 2012
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18 Inventories

2013 2012
Group and Company £m £m
Raw malerals, beer in progress o - L 3 13 14
Beer, wines and spints_ o - . 63 70
Stock at retail outlets 25 21
10 1 105
The difference between purchase pnce or preduction cost and therr replacement cost is not matenal
19 Trade and Other Recewables
2013 2012
Group and Company £m £m
Trade recevables ) ) R ) 137 134
Other recevables . S o 1 14
Prepayments and accrued income ] 35 s
183 183

The trade receivables balance above 15 shown net of the provision for bad debts As 2 general rule the Group prowides fully against all
trade recevables which are over six months overdue In addition to this there are sndivdual specific prowsions against balances which
are considered by management to be at nsk of defauft

The movements an this bad debl provision dunng the year are summansed below

2013 2012
Group and Company £m £m
Trade recewables prowsion 21 31 March 2012 o o 13 13
Increase in prowiston recogiised n profit andloss o o 02 01
Amounts wrtten off dunng the year 01 (0 1)
Trade recervables provision al 30 March 2013 14 13

The provision for irade recewvables is recorded in the accounts separately from the gross receivable The contractual ageng of the trade
recevables balance s as follows

2013 2012
Group and Company £m £m
Current . . . o L 145 142
Overdueupto30days o o o AN 02
Overdue between 30 and 60 days . - L - -
Overdue more than 60 days 05 03
Trade recevables before provision 151 147
Less prowision (14) (13)
Trade recervables net of provision 137 13 4

included in the Group's trade recevables balance are trade recevables wilh a carmying value of £0 2 milion (2012 £0 3 mitlion) which
are overdue 3l the Balance Sheet date for which the Group has not provided as the Group considers these amounts to be recoverable

tn addition, there are loans to customers included n other recervables of £0 3 million (2012 £0 3 millon) due within one year and
£0 5 rmlkon (2012 £0 4 mithon} due in more than one year, aganst which there is a provision of £0 Imillion (2012 £0 3 million)
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20 Assets Classified as Held for Sale

Group Group (¥ Company

2013 2012 2013 2092

&m £m £m £m

Investment property 06 53 06 -
06 53 06 -

The movements i assels classified as held for sale dunng the year are summansed below

Graup Growp Company Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m Im £m Im

Assets held for sale at the start of the year 53 02 - 02
Assets disposed dunng the year (s3) __ (02 - 02
Transier rom investment property 06 53 06 -
Assets held for sale at the end of the year 06 53 06 -

At 30 March 2013 three properues (2012 one) were transfered to assets held for sale, as they were in the advanced stages of the sales
process and are expected to complete in 2013 Al of the properues shown above are expected to or have resulted in 2 profit on sale

21 Trade and Other Payables

Group Growp Company Caomgpany
2013 2012 2013 2012
&m £m £m £m

Due wrthin one year o o L } o )
Trade payables o i . 187 180 157 180
Amounts due to subsidiary undenakings o - - 923 : 851
Other tax and social secunty ) o _ ) 83 93 B3 923
Other payables L o 67 72 67 72
Accruals 102 127 102 127
409 472 133 2 1323

Company amaunts due lo subsidiary undertakings of £92 3 milion (2012 £85 1 million) have no lixed repayment date Interest 13
payable on the balance at 3% above the Bank of England base rate All ather significant trade and other recevables and trade and other
payables are due within one year and are at ml rate of mterest
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22 Cash, Borrowings and Net Debt

Cash and Short Term Deposits 2013 2012
Group and Company £m £m
Cash at bank and i hand 43 39

For the purposes of the consohdated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compnse cash al bank and in hand, as above Cash
at bank earns interest at floating rates

Borrowings 2013 2012
Group and Company £m £m
Bank loans i o o 1125 1147
Debenture stock o X oo 258 258
Prelerence shares 16 16
Total borrowings 139 9 1421
Analysed as . . )
Borrowings within non-current liabrlties 1399 1421
1399 1421

All borrowings at both year ends are denommated in sterling and where appropnate 2re stated net of issue costs Further information
on borrowings 1s given In note 26

Bank Loans
Group and Company

Dunng the 52 weeks ended 31 March 2012 the Company increased its loan facibties by £50 million in total Two new facilities of
£30 milhon each, which expire in May 2015 and have no amarusation requirements, were entered into on 5 August 2011 and 30 March
2012 respectively and the existing facility was recuced by £10 mifion At 30 March 2013 £37 0 milkon (2012 £34 5 million) of thus
committed |oan faciity was available and undrawn

The bank loans al 30 March 2013 are unsecured, and are repayable as shown in the table below Interest s payable at LIBOR plus 3
margn, which vanes dependant on the ratio of net debt to EBITDA The vanable rate interest paymenis under the loans have been parually
swapped for fixed interest payments and a propartion of the remaining vanable interest payments have also been capped Detatls of the
swap and cap arrangements are given in note 26

The bank loans are repayable as follows

013 2012

£m &m

I the third to fifth years inclusive _ ) o o R ~ ___M"3e 155
Less bank loan arrangement lees (0 5) " (08
Non current liabilibes 1125 114 7

Debenture Stock
Group and Company

The debenture stocks are secured on speaified fixed and floating assets of the Company and are redeemable on matunty

2013 2012
£m Lin

Debenture stock repayable after fveyears . _ . ____ . ___ __ _
10 70% 1st Morigage Debenture Stock 2023 o &0 60
6 875% Debenture Stock 2028 (15t floaung charge) S T N T
Less 2028 debenture issue costs 0y (o
Non-current habihies 258 258
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22 Cash, Borrowings and Net Debt continued

Preference shares

The Company's preference shares are classified as debt The shares are not redeemable and are included in borrowings within non-

current habilibes See note 24 for further detalls of the preference shares

Anatysis of Net Debt
At 31 Mych At 30 March
2012 Cash flows Mon cash! 2013
Group Im Em £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents o R . o _
Cash and short term deposits 39 04 - 43
39 04 - 43
Debt I L o o i o
Bank loans . . _ {114 7! 27 _(9_5) (11?_5)
Debenture stock A -, B .. 59
Preference shares (186) - - {16}
{(1421) 27 (05) {139 9}
Net debt {138 2) 31 (0 5) (135 6)
! Nori cash movements relate 1o the amorisabion of arrangement fees offsel by armangement fees accrved
ALZ Apnd A1 31 March
o Cash flows Non cash’ 2012
Group £m &m Im £m
Cash and cash equivalents . R e R
Cash and short term deposits 17 02 - 39
37 02 - 39
Debt o A L _ o .
Bank loans ) (64 8) (49 8} {04) (114 7)
Debenturestock . R 1 ) - - _f{258)
Preference shares i {1 6) - - (1.6)
(92 2) (49 8) 01} (142 1)
Net debt (88 5) (49 6} 1) (138 2)
23 Pensions

3) Reurement Benefit Plans - Group and Company

The Group operates one funded defined beneht pension scheme, the Fuller Smith & Turner Penston Pian The plan 1s Defined Benefit
w0 nature, with assets held n separate professionally managed. trustee admunistered funds The pension cost relating to the position of
the plan is assessed with the adwice of an independent actuary The plan s closed to new entrants

The Group also operates three defined contnbuton stakeholder pension plans for its employees The Fuller's Stakeholder Pensson Plan
was set up for new employees of the Parent Company after the closure of the Fuller, Srth & Turner Pension Plan to new entrants on
1 August 2005 The Gnifin Stakeholder Pension Plan operates for those employees of a Group subsidiary The Gales 2001 scheme was

set up following the closure of the Gales defined benefit scheme m 2001
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23 Pensions continved

The Group also pays benefds to a number of former employees which are unfunded The Directors consider these benefits to be defined

benetit in nature and the full defired benefit kabiity 1s recognised on the Batance Sheet
52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended

30 March 31 March

2013 012

Total amounts charged in respect of pensions in the perod £m £m

Charged to income statement L . ) i}

Defined benefit scheme - operatng profit be[ore exceptional items 16 14

Defined benefit scheme - net finance income (0s)  (03)

Defined contrbution schemes - total operaling cha;ge 03 3
13 14

Credi/charge to equity

Defined benefit scheme - net actuanal (gains)/losses (50) 139

Yotal penston (credit)/charge @n 153

The total contributions to the defined benelfit plans in the next financial year are expected to be £2 2 million for the Group and
the Company

An amendment to IAS19 - Emptoyee Benefits s effective for the 52 weeks ending 29 March 2014 Were the amendment to be apphed
for the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013, the effect would be a reduction in the expected returm on pension scheme assets of £1 5 mullion
resulting in an overall finance charge on net pension habilities of £0 9 million for the penod and a corresponding effect on Other
Comprehensive income

For the 52 weeks ending 29 March 2014 the effect will be a reduction in the expected return on pension scheme assets of £1 5 milhon
resulung 1n an overall finance charge on net pension habiities of £0 6 milkon for the penod

b) Defined Contnbution Stakeholder Pension Plans - Group and Company

The total cost charged to income in respect of the defined contnbubion stakeholder schemes 1s shown above

¢) Defined Benefit Plan - Group and Company

The defined benefit plan was actuanially assessed as at 30 March 2013, using the projected unit credit method

The pension plan has nod nvested in any of the Group's own financial instruments nor m properties or ather assels used by the Group

Key Assumptions
The monality assumptions used 1n the 2013 valuation of the plan are set out below
2013 2042
Years Years
Current pensioners (a1 65) - maless .m0 210
Current pensioners (at 65) - females — - .. ___ns __ 25
Future pensioners (at 65) - males - L _ 0o 220
Future pensioners (at 65) - females 244 24 4

The assumptions for future penstoners are based on the average current age of the active population, whichis 54 years for male members
of the scheme (2012 53) and 48 years for female members (2012 47)
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Notes to the Financial Statements contnyed

23 Pensions continued

Al Al
Key financial assumptions used in the valuation of the scheme 30 March 2013 31 March 2012
Rate of increase i salanies _ - L 380% 370%
Rale of increase in pensions 1n payment o ~ o 330% 30% _320%
Discount rate. o o _ 4% 460%
Inflation assumpuon RPI ] 3I30% 320%
Inflation assuinption - CPI 260% 270%
The present value of the scheme hiabiiies 15 sensitve to the assumptions used, as follows
2013 2012
Impact on scheme habiities - increase/(decrease) £m Im
Increase rate of salanes by 0 5% o 20 18
Increase rale of pensions in paymens by 0 5% o o _42 33
Increase discount rate by 1 0% _ R o {152) 14 8)
Increase inflation ass assumplion by 05% 13 14
Long term Long term
rote of retum Atz af retien
Valye at expected al Value st expected 2
30 March 2013 30March 2003 31 March 2012 31 March 2012
Assets in the scheme and the expected rate of return Lm % Im %
Corporate Bonds o _ 181 A10% _ 163 4 60%
Equites __ R ‘ 407 7 00% 349 700%
Absolute retusn fund o _ 277 700%_ 256 7 00%
Property } b 7 00% 07 700%
Cash L _ o 06 _ 200% 05 200%
Annuitses 12 460% 11 260%
Total market value of assets 889 6 34% 791 6 44%
The amount inctuded i the Balance Sheet ansing
from the Group's obligations w respect 2013 2012 0n 2000 2009
of its defined benefit retirement plan im im im £m Im
Fair value of plan assets 889 Rt A Y A __ 521
Present value of scheme biabiities (101 9) (98 2) {835} (83 8) (60 5)
Deficit in the scheme {13 0) {19 1) (64) (127 (84)

included within the tolal present value of Group and Company scheme habihites of £101 9 mulhon (2012 £98 2 million) are habilves of
£3 1 mullion (2012 £3 5 milhon) which are entirely unfunded
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21 Pensions continued

2013 2012
Group and Company £m £m
Analysis of the amount charged to operating profit _ R _
Current senice cast of defined benefit scheme ’ T T R 14
Votal operating charge 16 14
Analysts of the amount charged to other finance expense
Expected retum on pension scheme assets (51) (49
Interest on pension scheme habilities 45 46
Net tncome (0 6) {0 3)
Movements in the fair value of scheme assets dunng theyear L o
Far value at beginning of the year LTI CodA_ T
Expected return on scheme assets . — ’ . . i ’ 51 ’ 49
Actuanal ganns/(losses) i o B : _—i : " 54 _(25)
Employer contnbutions ) ':_' ) ) ) _?4 16
Employer spe:nzil gpfli_r]guuons ) __:_ - _ . __ — _" 07 07
Employee cantnbutons _ . e - e 05
Benefits paid 32y 32)
Fair vatue at the end of the year 889 791
Movements in the present value of defined  benefit obligations during the year . ) .
Ergs_egt_vglue of obhgaton a1 al begmmng of the year L S _ (98 2) (835)
Service cost o . L “_:_ (1 5 (4
I_Et_eélcosl . o L ) o (4_5) {46
Employee contnbutions ) o i (04) 058
Benefits pald . _ R ) . i _:_!l_ 32
Actuanal losses ) 7 - {0 4) (114)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year (101 9) (98 2)
The analysis of the acluanal gans/(losses) in the Statement of Comprehensive Income .
A_mgi_ return less expecled relumn on pension 5¢ scheme assets - 54 25)
Expenence gaxns/(!osses) ansing on the scheme habilies ) o - T ’ 08
Changes In assumptions underying the presem sent value of the scheme liabiliues ’ e (10 6)
Actuanal gains/(losses) 50 (13 9}
History of Expenence Gains and Losses
A five year history (s presented befow
Group and Company 2013 2012 201 2010 2009
Oifference between actuat and expected retums
on assets (£ miton) _ o 54 (25) o7 155 (a3an
% of scheme assets 61% (2% 224 218% (26 2%)
Expenence gains/(losses) on liabiktes (€ milkon) 06 (08 ___ a3 _ 02 03
% of scheme habiliies . 06% ©% __ (15% 02% 0 6%
To_la!_ac'luial gams/(lo_sses) (Emlkon) 50 (139) 60 {4 5) (3 5)
% of scheme iabiliies 4% (14 2%) 72% (S4%) (57w
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Notes to the Financial Statements contnued

23 Pensions continwed

History of Expenence Gains and Lasses contnued

The cumulawve amount of actuanal losses recogrised since 28 March 2004 in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income s
£7 8 milhon {2012 losses of £12 8 milhion) The cumulative amount of actuanat fosses recogused since 28 March 2004 in the Company
Statement of Comprehensive Incame 15 £10 1 eiflion (2012 losses of £15 1 milhon)

The expecled return on assets 1s the product of the weighted average rate of return on assets and the fair value of scheme assets at the
stan of the year, adjusted for expected contnbutions less benefits paid

24 Preference Share Capital

Frrit 6% Second 8%

cumulatve cumtatrve

preference share  preference share
Group and Company of £1 e1ch of £1 each Tota)
Number Number Number
Authonsed, 1ssued and fully paid share capital 0005 000s 0003
Number authonsed and in issue . _ Lo ;
At 2 Apnl 2011, 31 March 2012 and 30 March 2013 400 1,200 1,600
Monetary amount £m £m £m
AL 2 Apnl 2011, 31 March 2012 and 30 March 2013 04 12 16

The first 6% cumulative preference shares of £1 each are entibed 1o first payment of a fixed cumulative dividend and on winding up to
a return of paid capital plus arrears of dwdends The second 8% cumulative preference shares of £1 each are entitled 1o second payment
of a fixed cumulabve dnidend and on wanding up a return of capitat paid up (plus a premum catculated by reference to an average quoted
pnce on the Stock Exchange for the previous six months} plus arrears of dwidends

Preference shareholders may only vote in hmited circumstances pnncipally on winding up, alteration of class nghts or on unpaid
preference dmdends Preference shares cannot be redeemed by the holders, other than on windmg up

25 Provisions

a) Onerous lease provision

2013 2012
Group and Company £m &m
Onerous lease prowsion i L _ . . o
A1 31 March 2012 ) 30 24
Ansing dunng the year _ - - S 04 16
Released dunng the year . . o {04) on
Utlised _ o o — e oy s
Unwinding of discount 03 02
At 30 March 2013 28 30
Analysed as
Due within one year o o . 10 05
Due in more than one year 1 25

28 30

The onerous lease prowision 1s recogmised in respect of leasehold properties where the lease contracts are deemed to be onerous
Provision 15 made for the discounted value of the lower of the unavardable lease costs or the losses expected to be incurred by
the Group
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Notes to the Financial Statements conunued

25 Provisions continued

b) Deferred Tax Prowision

The deferred tax included in the Balance Sheet s as follows

Asset Liabilay Net Assel Liabedty Net
2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
Group im £m Em £m &m £m
Deferred tax
Retrement benefit obligations 30 - 30 46 - 46
Tax losses camed forward . bs _ ____: 06 07 - _ 07
Employee share schemes 09 09 212 - 12
Financial habnhlres/(asse!s) 05 [CR]) 1) 04 0 3 1) 02
Accelerated tax depreciation _ - 1) (16 1) - (19.4) __(1s 5 4)
Rolled aver capital gains - (1_0__5_)_ (JO 5_) - (106) (106
Others 11 - 11 10 - 10
61 (26 7) (20 6) 738 {30 1) (22 3)
Asset Leabulity Net Asset Luability Net
2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2042
Company £m £m £m £m £m Em
Deferred tax L L )
Renrement nt benefi ¢ oblsgatlons 1 ; ::! 0 46 _ - 46
Tax losses camed iorward _ 05 - ¢S 04 - 04
Employee share sghemes 03 i = 0y 12 - 12
Flnancml habllmes_/ggs.ggt_s)“ 05 (1} 04 03 01 02
Accelerated tax depreciation. - _61) (161 - (182 (182)
Rolled over capital gans. - 05) ey - (106 _(oe
Others 11 T 11 10 - 10
60 {26 7) {(207) 75 (28 9} (21 4)

26 Financial Instruments

Oetails of the Group's Ireasury function are nduded 1n the Financial Review's discussion of financial nisks and treasury policies on page 25

The accounting treatmen of the Group's financial instruments 15 detaled in note

a) Capital Management = Group and Campany

As descabed in note 1 the Group consrders its capital to compnse the following

Group Growp Company Compary

2013 2012 2013 2012

Capntal £m im £m £m
Ordinary share capital . o 228 228 228 228
Share premwm . . 438 B 48 48 Y
Capital redempion reserve _ _ L 31 3 31 31

Hedging reserve _ — Kk ) as [}
Retained earnings T _ 2392 2140 2147 1924
Preference shares 16 16 16 16
2697 2452 24512 2236
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Notes to the Financial Statements conunved

26 Financial tnstruments continued

a) Caprtal Management - Group and Company continued

In managing s capital the pnmary objectve 15 to ensure that the Group 15 able to continue (o operate as 2 going concern and to mawmise
return to sharcholders through a combination of capital growth, distnbutions and the paymeni of preference dmidends to its preference
shareholders The Group seeks 1o maintain a rato of debt and equity thal balances nsks and retums at an acceptable level and maintains
sufficient funds to meel working capital targets, investment requirements and comply with lending covenants The Group bought back
£4 0 million shares in the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 (2012 £8 5 arulhon), of which £1 1 mullion related to purchases made by or
on behall of employee share ownershup trusts (2012 £0 8 million) As a minimum, the Board reviews the Group's dwidend pohey twice

yearly and reviews the treasury posstion every Board meebng,

b) Categones of Financial Assets and Lizbiliies

The Group's financial assets and habiities as recognised al the Balance Sheet date may also be categonsed as follows

Group Group Company Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Em £m £m £m

Non-current assets } L o L o
Loans and other receivables i scope of IAS 39 03 02 03 02
Total non-current assets 03 02 03 02
Current assets o ) o . o
Loans and other recewab!es - N . o )
Trade and other recevables i scape uf IAS 39 39 - : 139 136 133 136
Cash and short term deposﬂs 43 39 43 39
Total current assets 182 175 182 175
Total financial assets 185 1717 185 177
Current habidines R . e o _
Carned atgmortsed cost '
Trade and other payables in scope ol 1AS 39 269 312 192 1163
Total current hatuhitres 269 K14 192 163
Non-current liabihties o o ) . _
Derwatve financral hiabilites hedge accounted 24 14 24 14
Carned a1 amortised cost o _ L L o
01her payables in scope of IAS 39 e . i8 25 18 25
Loans and borrowangs L _ _ 1383 1405 1383 1405
Preference shares B 16 16 16 16
Total carned at amortised cost 1417 144 6 1417 1446
Total non-current habiities 144 1 14617 1441 14640
Total hinancial iabikties 17110 1772 2633 2623
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26 Financial Instruments continued

¢) financial Risks - Group and Company

The main nsks associated with the Group's financial assets and habiites are set out below, as are the Group’s policies for thewr managemerit
Desvative instruments are used to change the economic charactenstics of financial instruments in accordance with Group polcy

)} interest Rate Risk

The Group manages its cost of borrowings using 3 mudure of fixed rates, vanable rates and interest rate caps The cusrent Group policy 1s
that a mumimum of 50% of tatal outstanding borrowtngs should be at a fixed or capped rate of interest This s achueved by bath taking out
nterest rale swaps and caps with thurd parties and by loan mstruments that require us to pay a fixed rate Fixed rates do not expose the
Group (o cash flow interest rate nsk, but da not enjay a reduchion in borrowing costs mn markets where rates are faling Interest rate caps
limis the maximum rate payable but require payment of a lump sum premium  The fair value nsk inherent in fixed rate borrowings means
that the Group 1s exposed to unplanned costs if debt 1s pard off earlier than anucipated Floating rate bofrowings, although not exposed to
changes in fair value, expose the Group to cash flow sk following nses in interest rates and cost

The debentures totalling £25 8 million (2012 £25 8 million} are al fixed rates The bank loans totaling £112 5 miltion (2012 £114 7
million), net of arrangement fees, are at floating rates AL the year end, after Laking account of interest rate swaps and caps, 76% (2012
74%) of the Group s bank foans and 80% (2012 79%) of pross borrowings were at fixed or capped rates

Interest Rate Swap - Group and Company

The Group has entered into interest rate swap agreements, where the Group pays a fixed rate and recerves 1 month or 3 month LIBOR,
in order 10 hedge the nsk of vanation in interest cash flows on its borrowangs At the Balance Sheet date £65 0 mullion of the Group's
borrowings (2012 £65 0 millon) were hedged by interest rate swaps at a blended fixed rate of 1 75% {2012 1 75%) Of the swaps
held at 30 March 2013, £40 0 mulion expire n 2015 and £25 0 muflion expire n 2017 in December 2012 the Group also eatered into
an interest rale swap agreement to hedge the nsk of interest rate vanation on £20 mithon of the Group's borrowings at a rate of 2 25%
This agreement commences in 2015 and expires n 2022

Interest Rate Cap - Group and Company

The Group has entered into interest rate cap agreements in order to hedge the nsk of vanation in interest cash flows on its borrowings
Atthe Balance Sheet date £20 0 million (2012 £20 0 rmilkon) of the Group's borrowings were hedged by an interest rate cap at a fixed
rale of 4 00% (2012 4 Q0%) The cap held at 30 March 2013 expires in 2015

The interest rale swaps and cap are expected lo impact the Income Statement n hine with the hquidity nsk table shown in section (v)
below The interest rate swap cashilow hedges were assessed as being highly effectrve at 30 March 2013 and a net unrealised loss of
£0 9 milhon (2012 £2 6 mifton) has been recorded in Other Comprehensive Income The wtterest rate cap cashflow hedge 1s not
designated as a cashflow hedge for hedge accounung purposes and no net unrealised gan/loss (2012 netunreahsed loss of £0 2 mdlion)
was recorded in the Income Statement as an “exceptional item”

Sensiuvity - Group and Company

The Group barrows in Sterfing a1 market rates 3 month Stering LIBOR rate dunng the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 ranged between
0 49% and 1 06% The Oirectors consider 1% (o be a reasonable possible increase in rates and 0 5% 1o be a reasonable possible decrease
in rates with reference to market yield curves and the current economic conditions

The annuahised effect of these changes to interest rates on the floaung rate debt at the Balance Sheel date, all other vanables being
constant, are 3s follows

Group Growp Company’ Company’

2013 2012 2013 1012

Impact on post-lax proft and net equity - increase/(decrease) im Im £m £m
Decrease interest rate by 0 5% . o 62 = 02 05 05
Increase interest rate by 1 0% (0 4) (04) (10) 00

“The Company has sutx 1 beanng payables due [0 subsidiary companees (note 21)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

26 Financial Instruments continued

{u) Fareign Currency Risk

The Group buys and sells goods and services denominated in non sterling currencies principally the US dallar, Euro and Austrahan dollar
As a result, movements in exchange rates can affect the value of the Group’s revenues and purchases

The Group policy on covenng foreign currency exposure 1s Included in the Financial Review's discussion of financial nsks and treasury
polictes on page 25 As a minimum i buys or sells forward the net known value of all committed purchase or sales orders In addition,
the Group will usually buy or sell a proportion of the esttmaled sale or buy orders for the remaining part of the year to mintmise its
transachonal currency exposures in non stering currencies Forward currency conlracts must be in the same currency as the hedged
items The Group does not trade in forward currency hedges

At 30 March 2013 the Group and Company had open forward contracts to buy €2 6 milhon (2012 buy €1 5 mullion) These have a
Sterhing equvalent of £2 1 milkon (2012 £33 milhon) and 3 net gan of il (2012 net gain of ml) when companng the contractual rates
with the year-end exchange rates

At 30 March 2013 the only sigrificant foreign currency assets or habilites were the followang

Cash deposits Cash depouits  Trade recevables  Trade recervables  Trade payables Trade payables

013 1012 213 2 2013 2012
Group and Company £m £m £m £m Em £m
Euro assets/(Labilities) ... 06 02 - _ - wny (04
US dollar assets/{labilines) 02 01 04 03 (02) o9

Austrahian dollar assets - - - - - -

(i} Credit Risk

The nsk of financial loss due to a counter party’s falure to honour its obhgations anses pnncipally i relation to transactions where the
Group provides goods and services on deferred payment terms, deposits surplus cash and enters into denvative contracts

Group policies are aimed at mimmising losses and deferred terms are only granted to customers who demonstrate an apprapnate payment
history and satisfy credit worthiness procedures Indmidual customers are subject to credit imits to control debt exposure Credit insurance
15 12ken oul where appropnate for wholesale customers and goods may also be sold on a cash with order basis

Cash deposits with financial instituttons for shont penods and dervatve transactions are onty permitted with financial institutions approved
by the Board There 2re no sigmificant concentratons of credit nsk within the Group The maximum creditnsk exposure relating to financial
assets 15 represenied by their carmng value as at ihe Balance Sheet date

Trade and other recervables

The Group records mpairment losses on its trade recesvables separately from gross recevables Further detailis included n note 19

(V) Liquidity Rusk

The Group mimimises hquidity nsk by managing cash generation applying debtor collection targets, momitonng daily cash receipts and
payments and setung rolling cash forecasts {nvestments have cash payback penods applied as part of a tightly controlled investment
apprassal process

The Group has a mxture of long and short term borrowsngs and overdraft faclities 20% (2012 19%) of the Group’s borrowngs are repayable
after more than five years, and 80% (2012 81%) withun the thrd to fifth year inclusive
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26 Financial instruments continued

The tables below summanse the malunity profile of the Group's financial hiabitities at 30 March 2013 based on undiscounted contractual
cash flows, including interest payable Floating rate tnterest 1s esbmated using the prevaihng interest rate al the Balance Sheel date

On Less than Jw12 1105 More than 5

demand 1 months moniths yean years Totdd
Group at 30 March 2013 Em Em Lm £Em £m Em
Interest beanng loans and borrowings' - 13 490 1280 430 1763
Preference shares? - - 01 05 34 40
Trade and other payables L 1% w82 04 13 24 302
’Bankloama.reux.mdedifmukmgmmwrhelolbwnxcashrhwsmrgbmnmlrvemrerwmcswaparvdaphddmrcspedollhﬁebmmmgs _
Interes! rate swaps and cap - g3 09 19 - 31
Group at 31 March 2012 im £m £m £m £m Em
Interest bearing loans and borrowings' - _la 41 1318 450 1823
Preferenc_c  shares? L - - o6 05 34 40
Trade 2nd other payables 51 242 04 1634 347
’ﬂankloammwﬂ;deda!:ertamgmwm‘lefowcashbwsmrvfarmmmcms:meswwmdaph:ﬁnrcspmnffftscborrmgs .
Intesest rate swaps and cap - 03 29 31 - 43

2 [he preference shares have no contractual repayment dite For the purposes of the tzbie abave interesi payments Rave been shawn for 20 yeears from the Balance Sheet
date but no further

The Company figures are as for the Group, except as follows

On Less than J1012 1§ More than 5
dermand 3 months months yean years Total
Company at 30 March 2013 £&m &m £m Lo £m Em
Amounts due to subsidiary underiakings! 923 - - - - 923
Company at 31 March 2012 _ £m _ &m D . R . £m im
Amounts due to substidiary undertakings? 851 - - - - 851

3 Amounts due to subsidiary undertzkings have no lized repayment date interest 1s payable on the balznce 3t 3% above the Bank of fngland base rate

Secunty - Group and Company

The 10 7% debentures 2023 are secured on property, plant and equipment with a net book vatue of £12 6 million (2012 £12 7 million)
The 6 875% debentures 2028 are secured by a floating charge over the assets of the Company

Covenants - Group and Company

The Group and Company are subject to a number of covenants i relation to their borrawing facitites which, if contravened, would result
in its loans becoming immedhately repayable These covenants wter afia specily maximum net debt to earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisauon, 2nd minimum earnings befare interest, tax, depreciation angd amorusabon lo interest
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26 Financizl Instruments continued

d) Fair Value

Fair Values of Financial Assets and Leabilies

Set out below 15 3 companson by category of carrying amaunts and farr values of all the iinancial instruments that are camed in the

financial statements

Book vakue Book vatue faur value Faur value
2013 2012 2013 2012
Group £m Im £m &m
Fmancial assets . _ _ _ B i
Cash o a3 39 43 39
Trade and olher recewables due within one ycar In scope of IAS39 o139 139 139 139
Loans and other recervables due in more than one year in scope of IAS 39 03 02 03 02
Financial habilihes i
Trade and other payables in scope of IAS 39 _ @87 _ (337 287) (37
Fixed rale borrowings _ A L 58 258 (3 (19
Floating rate borrowings o _ ~ 25y Qun (29 T (1347)
Preference shares B o . . { 62 i . (1 § __ (8) 18
interest rate swaps (24) G4 (24) {14)
The Company figures are as for the Group, except as follows
Book value Book value Fair value Fair value
013 20m 2013 2012
Company £m £m Em £m
Finzncial habilities . L . _ N L
Trade and other payables in scope of IAS 39 (121 0) (118 8 (121 0) {118 8}

The fair values of barrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates The far
values of preference shares have been calculated using the market interest rates Denvatwve fair values are obtained from quoted market
pnces in actve markets and are classed as Level 2 fair values for both years The Group distnguishes Level 2 fair values as being valuation
techmiques for which a1l inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded far value are observable, exther directly or indirectly, but

where these are not denved dectly from quoted pnces in active markets

27 Share Capital and Reserves

a) Share Capttal
‘A ordinary C’ ardinary ‘B ordwary
shares of shares of shares of
40p each A0p each 4p each Total
Number Number Number Number
Issued and fully pad Number in 1ssue 000s 000 0001 0005
At 2 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and 30 March 2013 33,424 14,657 89,052 137,133
Proportian of total equity shares at 30 March 2013 24 4% 10 7% 64 9% 100%
issued and fully paid_Monetary amount £m £m £m &m
AL 2 Apnl 2011, 31 March 2012 and 30 March 2013 133 59 36 228

Share capinal represents the nominal value proceeds receved on the 1ssue of the Company’s equity share capnial, compnsing 40p and
4p ordinary shares The Company's preference shares are classified as non-current liabilities in accordance with IFRS (see note 24)
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27 Share Capital and Reserves continued

The ordinary shareholders are enttled to be paid a dmdend out of any surplus profits and (o participate in surplus assets on winding up
in proportion to the nomnal value of each class of share ( B shares have one tenth of the nominal value of ‘A’ and 'C’ shares)

All equity shares in the Company camy one vote per share, save that shares held in treasury have thew voung nghts suspended The “A’
and *C shares have 3 40p nominal value and the B’ shares have a 4p nominal value so that a ‘8’ share dwdend wili be paid at 10% of
the rate applying 1o ‘A’ and 'C’ shares The ‘A’ shares are hsted on the London Stock Exchange The C' shares carry a nght for the holder
1o convert them 1o A’ shares by wnitten notice in the 30 day peniod followang the half year and prelimnary announcements The B’
shares are not listed and have no conversion nghts In most circumstances the value af a 'B’ share 1s deemed to be 10% of the vatue of
the listed "A’ shares The Trustee holding shares for parucipants of the LTIP currently waives dividends for shares held dunng the initial
three year penod Dividends are not paid on shares held i treasury

The Articles include prowisons relating to the Company s ‘B and 'C’ shares which provide that shareholders who wash to Iransfer their
shares may only do so If the transfer 15 to another ‘B’ or ‘C’ shareholder, or if the transfer 1s to certain of thal shareholder’s family members
or their executors or administratars or, where shares are held by trustees, lo new truslees, or to the trustees of any employee share
scheme, or 1If the Company 15 unable to identfy anather shareholder of that class wilhng to purchase the shares within the specified
penod, to any persan

b) Own Shares

Own shares relate 1o shares held by independently managed employee share ownership trusts (*ESOTs’) together wath the Company's
holding of treasury shares Shares are purchased by the ESOTs in order to satisfy potential awards under the Long Term Incentive Plan
(“LTIP") and Share Incentive Scheme ("SIP™) Treasury shares are used, mier ahia, to sausfy options under the Company's share options
schemes The LTIP ESOT has waived its nghts to dmdends on the shares it holds Treasury shares have voting and dwidend nghts
suspended All own shares held, as below, are excluded from earnings and nel assets per share calculations

Treasury shares 131P ESOT IP ESOT LIip £50T SIP ESOF Total Tota} Total
‘A ordinary ‘A ordinary B’ ordinary  C'ordmary ‘A ordmery ‘A wdinyry B ordnary  ‘C ardmary
40p shares  40p shares dp shares  40p shares  40p shares 40p shares 4p shares  40p shares

Number 000s 0003 000s a00s gags 000s 000s 000s
At 2 Apni 2011 583 35 KKY| - 2 620 3N -
Shares purchased 109 - 338 - 86 1,182 338 -
Shares transferred (204) 204 - - j - - - -
Shares released (276) (239) (98) - (86) (601) {98) -
At 31 March 2012 1,199 - 571 - 2 1,201 571 -
Shares purchased L - 697 5 & 498 697 5
§j;rés trantsfpvr;ed __ o (260) 260 - - - - - -
Shares released {144) (260) {(575) - (87 (491) (575) -
At 30 March 2013 1,206 - 693 5 2 1,208 693 5
Monetary amount £m £m £m £m £m £m Em Em
AL2 Apil 2011 ) 27 02 _ 02 - - 29 02 -
Shares purchased 11 - 02 - 06 83 o2 -
Shares transferred _ o 10 = - - - - -
Shares released (14 (12 1) - {06) (32) {01) -
Al 31 March 2012 80 - 03 - - 80 03 -
Shares purchased 29 - 05 - 06 35 _ 05 -
Shares transferred Can. 7 - - - - - -
Shares refeased (10) (17 {03) - (06) {3 3) (03) -
Al 30 March 2013 82 - 05 - - §2 05 -
Market value a1 30 March 2013 99 - (1] - - 99 06 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements contnued

27 Share Capital and Reserves contnued
¢) Other Capital Reserves

Share Premium Account

The balance m the share premiym account represents the proceeds recewved above the nomenal value on the issve of the Company’s
equity share capital

Capital Redemption Reserve

The capital redemption reserve balance anses from the buyback of the Company's own equity share capital

Hedgng Reserve

The hedging reserve contans the effective poruon of the cash flow hedge relauonships mcurred a1 the Balance Sheet date, net of tax

28 Share Oplions and Share Schemes

The key pownts of each of the Group's share schernes for grants up to 30 March 2013 are summansed below All schemes are equity
setiled All disclosure relates to both Group and Company For the purpose of apuon and LTIP schemes, “Adjusted EPS" will normally
be consistent with the post-tax earnings per share excluding exceptional items as presented m the financial statements However, Lhe
Remuneration Commuttee are authonsed to make appropnate adustments to Adjusted EPS as apphed to these schemes

Savings Related Share Option Scheme (“SAYE")

Yhus scheme grants oplions over shares at a discount of 20% on the average market pnce over the three days immediately pnor to the
date of grant Employees must save 3 regular amount each month Sawvings are made over three or five years, at the parucipant s chorce
The nght to buy shares at the discounted pnce lasts for six months after the end of the savings contract There are no performance
conditions, other than continued employment

Senior Executive Share Option Scheme

This 1s an unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme If growth in Adjusted EPS exceeds growth in the Retail Pnce Index (“RPI™) by 9%
over the performance penad of the opuan, then 40% of the award will vest Vesting levels are then on ashding scale, with 100% vesting
occurning if growth in Adjusied EPS exceeds growth in RPI by more than 21% The performance penod for grants under this scheme 1S
three years Optians must be exercised within seven years of the end of the performance penod

Executive Share Option Scheme

This 1s an approved Executive Share Option Scheme The options vest  growth in Adjusted EPS exceeds the growth in RPI by 9% or
more, over the three year performance penod of the option The options must then be exercised within seven years after the end of the
performance penod

Lme

This plan awards free shares Vestng is conditional on growth in Adjusted EPS exceeding growth in RPI by 9% or more aver Lhe three
year inttial performance peniod of the award Vestng levels are on 3 siding scale from 40% up to 160%. f growth in Adjusted EPS exceeds
growth in RPI by 24% of more Anindependent firm of adwisors veniy the vesting level each year The mitial vesting penod is three years
After this ime the shares may be passed to the plan participants, as long as vestng condiions are met For granis up to and including
that made in 2006, parbcipants could choose to redepesa their shares for a further three year penod if paricipants chose to redeposn,
then the Company matched the redeposited shares at a ratio of 1 1 at the end of the matching penod The last grant of matching shares
vested dunng the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013

sip

This plan awards free shares The number of shares awarded up to a maxamum value of £3.000 per person per year 1s based on length
of sernce and salary The hfe of each plan (s five years, after which shares are released to paruapants There are no performance condibons
as1n almost all circumstances participants can retain the shares awarded (although there may be tax consequences)
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28 Share Options and Share Schemes continued

Share-Based Payment Expense Recogmised m the Year

The expense recognised for share-based payments in respect of employee services recerved dunng the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2013
15 £1 9 mallion (2012 £1 9 miflon) The whole of that expense anses from equity setled share based payment transactions

Movements in the Year

The fallowing tables dlustrate the number and weighted average exercise pnces ("WAEP"™) of, and movements tn each category of share
mnstrument dunng the year The significance of opuions ranted before 7 November 2002 1s that they have been excluded from the IFRS
2 share based payment charge on the basis of their date of grant There are no outstanding option/share awards granted before
7 November 2002, except for those detailed in the Executive Approved Scheme, at b} below

Market Value

The market value of the shares 3t 30 March 2013 was £8 20 (2012 £715)

a) SAYE
2013 2012
Number 2013 Nymber 02
000s WAEP 000s WAEP
Qutstanding at beginning of the year 543 £4 45 616 £393
Granted ) 102 £563 135 £547
Lapsed (35) £503 (30) £411
Exercised {112) £4 35 (178} £3 49
Outstanding at end of the year 498 £4 69 543 £4 45
Exercisable at end of the year - nfe - n/a
Weghted average share price for options exercised n the year £718 £6 56
Weighted average contractual hfe remaining for share options
outstanding at the year end 214 years 2 46 years
Weighted average share prce for aptiens granted in the year £723 £6 55
Weighted average fair value of options granted dunng the year £174 £112
Range of exercise pnces for options outstanding at the year end - from £31 £33 _
~to £563 T Tg604
Outstanding share options granted to employees under the Saving Related Share Option Scheme are as follows
Number of ‘A Numberof A
ordinary shares  ordinary shares
Exercise pnce under oplion under opuon
40p shares 2013 2012
Exercisable at L 000s 000s
September 2012 . ) o su - 24
spemberziz T Tam_ T T T
%.plemberﬁ)w - o L _ 331 " 98 " 100
September20t3 46 64 65
Seplember2014 - __ 3w s e
September2014 L T Tsar s 100
Seplember 2015 _ — L 46t 65 7
Seplember 2015 T ) 583 o -
September 2016 o T ) 541 31 EE
September 2016 - 7 563 24 T
498 543
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Notes to the Financial Statements conunued

28 Share Options and Share Schemes continued

b) Share Option Schemes
203 2012
Number 2013 Number 2012
Senior Executive Share Option Scheme 000s WAEP 000s WAEP
Quistanding at begmnning of the year . . _ 167  £538 150 _ &500
Granted 35 £705 32 £709
Lapsed o ) - . - - 8B  &£558
Exercised - - (7) £4 98
Outstanding at end of the year 202 £5 67 167 £5 38
Exercisable at end of the year 100 £4 66 68 £4 60
Weighted average share pnce lor options exercised in the year n/a £615
Weighted average contractual hfe remaining for share options
outstanding a1 the year end 6 50 years 6 91 years
Weighted average share price for options granted in the year £7 06 £702
Weighted average fair value of options granted dunng the year £125 £0 99
Range of exercise pnces for options mﬁslandmg at th_ey?r end - from £367 £3 67
i -0 £751 £7 51
3 2012
Number 2013 Number 2012
Executive Share Option Scheme 0008 WAEP 000s WAEP
Quistanding at beginning of the year L - o 188 £556 __248 £4 84
Granted o o a2~ £705 T3 g709
Lapsed _ . - _ )y  £2% _ (2 £6 32
Exercised (32) £304 (50) £414
Outstanding at end of the year 185 £S5 58 185 £5 56
Exercisable at end of the year 72 £547 91 £5 00
Number of options in the opening balance that were granted
before 7 November 2002 - 1
Weighted average share price {or opions exercised in the year E7 38 £6 94
Weighted average contractual hfe remaining for share options
autstanding at the year end 7 80 years 6 44 years
Weighted average share pnce for options pgranted in the year £706 £7 02
\anl_\led average fair value of options granted dunng the year £112 £0 74
Range of exertise pnces for opttons outstanding at the year end - from _ K262 £212 _
-1lo £751 £7 51
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28 Share Options and Share Schemes continued

Ouistanding options which are capable of being exercised between three and ten years from date of issue (five and ten years in the case

of the 2008 to 2013 scheme noted below) and thetr exercise pnces are shown in the table below

Senor Executive Scheme E Approved Sch
Number of 'A’ Number of A Number of ‘A Number of A
ocdinary shares  ordinary shares ordinary shares  ordinary shares
Exercise pnce under opton under opion Exeraise pre under oplion under opbon
40p shares 2013 2012 40p thares 2013 2012
Exercisable between £ 0003 000s £ 0003 000s
2008 and 2013 I - - 212 - 14
2007 and 2014 I - 282 10 L)
2008 and2015 -1 i 21 367 - -
2009 and 2016 498 12 N 12 498 _ 6 10
2010end 2017 715 10 "0 15t e 36
2011 and2018 . 405 25 25 405 14 19
2012 and 2019 480 Y 3 480 T4 T2
2013 and 2020 L R 578 _‘.‘ﬁw 32 sm _3s :_ 35
2013and2020 30 4 4 I - -
2014 and 2021 709 Y] 32 709 35 38
2015 and 2022 705 35 - 708 a2 -
202 167 185 185
cLne
3 2013 2012 2012
A shares ‘B shares A shares B shares
Number Number Number Number
Shares 000s a0t 000s 000s
Outstanding at begwmneng of the year . o 718 1,795 n 1,852
Ganed T T T w9 6 271 529
Lapsed (9 (48) (35) (88)
Vested _ . o (260) __ (575) 1239) (98)
‘A shares issued in heu of ‘B’ shares 6 (61) 40 (400)
Outstanding a1 end of the year 694 1,733 718 1,795
tn addition 1o the above, there are shares held by the LTIP Trust in respect of vesied shares redeposited for matching, as follows
Redeposited shares at end of the year - - 34 86
Weighted average share price for shares vesied in the year £7 06 0N £6 63 £D 66
For shares outstanding at the year end,
the weighted average contractual hfe TEM3ININg 15 132 years 132 years 122 years 122 years
Welghted average share prce for shares gr:anied in the year £7 05 £0N £7 02 £070
Wenghled average fair value of shares g,ranted in the year £6 62 £0 66 £6 47 £0 65

All LTIPs have a vesting pnce of nid LTIP shares do not recerve dmadends unti vested
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Notes to the Financial Statements conunued

28 Share Opuons and Share Schemes continued

d) Stp
2013 2012
Number Number
Shares 0003 000s
Outstanding 3t begnung of theyear o o .- 345
Granted T 88 86
Lapsed () -
Released (73) (76)
Outstanding at end of the year 369 355
Weighted average share price for shares reteased in the year £7 40 £6 88
For shares outstanding at the year end, the weighled average contractual Uife remaining 1s 283 years 243 years
Weighted average share pnce of shares granted in the year B £7 54 £710
Weighted average lair value of shares granted in the year £7 54 £210

Outstanding SIP shares represent shares allocated and held by the SIF Trustees on behalf of employees which remain in the trust for
between three and five vears Al SIPs have 2 vesting pace of ml SIP shares recenve dvidends once allocated

¢) Fair Value of Grants

(1} Equity-Setiled Options and LTIPs

The fair value of equity seitled share options and LTIPs granted 1s esbmated as at the date of grant, taking into account the tecms and
conditions upon which the awards were granted The following tables bist the inputs to the model used for the 52 weeks ended 30 March

2013 and 52 weeks ended 31 March 2012, excepl for exercrse pnce and the weighted average share pnce for grants in the year, which
are disclosed 1n sections a) to d) above

Executive and

L¥IP Scheme Save As You Eam Scheme Semor Exccutive Option Schernes

Fair value inputs 3 2002 2013 20012 2013 2012
Dividend yeld (%) 18% 18% 18% 1 8% 18% 1 8%
Expecled sharepnce volathty %) ~—~ ofa  nfa 28 1% _ 2% 1%
Risk free interest rate (%0} 03% 12% 021006% 0%015% 05t007% 161023%
Expected hfe of option/award (years) __3years 3years  3to5years 3toSyears 4toSyears 406 years
Model used Black Scholes Black Scholes Black Scholes  Black Scholes  Black Scholes  Black Scholes

The expected hife of the opuions/shares 15 based on fustoncal data and 1s not necessanly indicative of exercise patierns that may occur
The expected volatlity reflects the assumption that the histoncal volatility 15 indicative of future trends, which may also not necessanly
be the actual outcome No other features of aptions grant were incorporated into the measurement of farr vafue

(n) SIPs Granted

The fair value of SIPs 15 the share price at the date of allocaton The value of SIPs awarded is 2 fixed rate based on the Group's performance
in the preceding financial year The number of shares awarded 1s therefore dependent on the share pace at the date of the award
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29 Guarantees and Commutments

a) Operating Lease Commitments

Opersting Leases Where the Group s the Lessee

Future minimum rentals payable under non canceltable operating leases are due as follows

2013 2012

Group and Company Lm £m
within one year - ... B2 -_7_?
Between one year and five years o o o _ _ E 253
Afer five years 195 412
730 74 2

Commercial operating leases are typically for 20 to 25 years, afthough certain leases have lease penods extending up to 40 years

Operating Leases Where the Group 1s the Lessor

The Group earns rental income from two sources Licenced property included within property, plant and equipment i1s rented under
agreements where lessees must also purchase goods from the Group Addiuonally there are a smaller number of agreements in respect
of mvestment properties where there 1s no requirement for the lessee to purchase goods

Investment properues are let to third paries on leases that have remaining terms of between one and 11 years

Al 30 March 2013 future mummum rentals recewvable by the Group are as follows

Property plant

{nvestment properues and equipment
2013 2012 203 2012
Group and Company £m £m £m £m
within ane year L . ) 04 02 78 75
Between one year and five years i i . 05 05 179 166
After Iive years 02 03 "7 120
11 10 374 361

The Group 5 commercial leases on property are principally for licensed outlets The temmns of the leases are narmally for edher three, five
of ten years with the maximum being 30 years The agreements allow for annual inflationary increases and full rental reviews occur on
renewal of the lease or every five years for a len year lease

Al 30 March 2013 future mimmim rentals receivable under non-cancellable sub leases included i the ligures above were £5 6 million
(2012 £4 7 mifhion)

b) Other Commitments

2013 2012
Group and Company £m £m
Capital commitments — authonsed, contracted but not prowded lor 20 16

The Company has accepted vanous duty deferment bonds in connection with HM Revenue and Customs The total ouistanding
commitment at 30 March 2013 was £720,000 (2012 £720,000) for the Group and Company
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Notes to the Financial Statements conunyed

30 Related Party Transactions
Group and Company

Dunng the current angd prior years the Company prowded vanous administrative services to the Fuller, Smith & Turner Pension Plan free
of charge In addition, the Company seitled costs totalling £145,000 (2012 £178,000) relating to the provision of actuanal, consulting
and admumstrative services by thurd partes to the Fuller, Smith & Turner Pension Plan

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended

30 March 31 March
2013 2012
Compensation of Key Management Personnel (including Directors) Em £m
Short term employee benefits o ) . _ 40 37
Post-employment benefits . ) .. 04 D4
Share-based payments 12 12
56 53
Company Only
Dunng the year the Company entered into the following related party transactions
Sales Purchases Net interest Amounts
10 related from retated due to owed to
parties parues related porties related parbes
52 weeks ended 30 March 2013 m £m im £m
Subsidianes - 400 31 (92 3)
Sates Purchases Net interest Amounts
o related from retated due 10 awed 1o
parles parues related parties related partes
52 weeks ended 31 March 2012 £Em £m £m £m
Subsidianes - 322 27 (851)

tnterest 15 payable on the majenty of the amounts due to subsidianes at 3% above the Bank of England base rate All amounts outstanding
are unsecured and repayable on demand

Dunng the year there has been a change in the legistation relating to audit requirements for UK companies The new legislation provides
an exemption for the subsidianes of parent compames established within the European Economic Area il 2 guarantee 15 provided by the
parent for the subsidizry habihies and the sharehalders of the subsidiary are in unanimous agreement The Group will be exemping the
following companies from an audst for the penod encing 30 March 2013 under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006, all of which
are fully cansolidated » these financial statements

Gniffin Catenng Services Lid 01577632
Jacomb Guinness Ltd 02934979
George Gale & Co Lid 00026330
45 Woodfield Ltd 04279254

The Group will be exempting the following companies from the preparation and delivenng of accounts to Comparues House under secton
394A of the Compames Act 2008, all of whuch are fully consolidated in these financial statements

Gnifin Inns Ltd 00495934
Ringwaods Ltd 00178536
FST Trustee Ltd 03163480

Fuller Smith & Turner Estate Ltd 01831674
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31 Post Balance Sheet Events
Purchase of freehold

On 2 May 2013 the Group gave nolice to exercise a3n ophion 1o purchase the freehold of a licensed property a1 an estimated cost of
£6 9 milhon in October 2013

Acquisibon of Cornish Orchards Limited

On 4 June 2013 the Group purchased 100% of the share capital and obtaned control of Corish Orchards Limted The company acquired
produces alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages The Group paid £2 4 mithion as considerauon in cash, which s fair value, and recognised
habiiies for £0 3 million for a conbingent consideration payable in cash at a future date, subject to the achievement of annualised
producton targets, and £0 5 millon of assumed habiites The maximum payment of deferred considerationis £1 2 million Acquisition
related costs amounted to £0 1 milion

Due to the uming ol the transaction it has not been possible to complete the accounting for the acquisiion 2nd determine the fair value
of assets and habiliies acquired (including recervables), the value of Goodwill ansing on the acquisition and the revenue and profits
expecied to be realised from the acquired company Based on accounting records the acquired comgany has net assets with a carrying
value of £1 1 million and has no conlingent habidities
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Directors and Advisers
as at 7 June 2013

Directors

Michael Turner, FCA, Charman
Simon Emeny, Group Managing Director
James Douglas, ACA

Richard Fuller

lan Bray

Jonathon Swaine

John Dunsmore”

Suir James Fuller”

Lynn Fordham, e’

Alastair Kerr

“Non Executae

President
Anthony Fuller, cBe

Chairman from 1982-2007, Anthony
Fuller reured from the Board m 2010
after a long career wath Fuller's and
continues 3s President

Secretary and Registered Office
Marie Gracie, FCIS

Griffin Brewery

Chiswick Lane South

Chiswick

London W4 2QB

Tel 020 £996 2105
Registered Number 241882
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Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP

1 More London Place
London SE1 2AF

Stockbrokers *

Numis Secunties Limited
10 Paternoster Square
tondon EC4M 71T

Registrars

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions, Bndgwater Road
Bnstol B399 62Z

Tel 0870889 4096

Please note you can now advise
Computershare of changes to your address
or sei up 3 dvdend mandale ontae a
www compuiershare com/investor/uk




Shareholders' Information

2013 Diary
Fnday, 28 june
Record Date

Monday, 1 July
Preference dwidends pad

11a m Thursday, 25 July
Annual General Meeung
Hock Cellar, Gnffin Brewery

Monday, 29 July
Final dvidend paid

Frday, 22 November
Hall year results announcement

2014 Diary

January

Preference dividends paid
Intenm dwidend pad

June
Prelmunary results announcement

Shareholder Privileges

Shareholders owning more than 250 ‘A" or *C shares or 2,500 ‘B’ shares can buy beer, wine and spints from the Brewery Store in
Chiswick at preferential pnces These sharehalders are also entitled to certain discounts in Fuller's Hotels For details contact Company
Secretanat on (20 8996 2105

Redesignation of 'C” Shares
‘C ordinary shares ¢an be redesignated as ‘A’ ordinary shares within 30 days of the prelminary and half year announcements by sending
in your certificates and 3 wntten instrucuon to redesignate prior or dunng the penod to the Company’s Registrars

Computershare lnvestor Services PLC
The Pavions, Bndgwater Road
Bnstol BSSY 627

Sharegift

The Orr Mackintosh Foundaton operates a chanty share donation scheme for shareholders with sma!l parcels of shares whose value
makes it uneconamec Lo sell them I you have a small number of shares and would ke to donate them to chanty, details of the scheme
can be found on the Sharegifl website www sharegift org. ar by contacting the Company Secretanat on 020 8936 2105
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Glossary

» Adjusted earmings per share - this is earmings per share, adjusted for exceptional items The Directors believe that this measure prowdes
usefu! information for shareholders as 10 the internal measures of the performance of the Group

« Adpusted profits - this is profit before tax, adjusted for exceptional items
« Beer volumes - this 1s the volume of beer sold, i number of barrels, a brewing term representing 288 pints

« EBITDA - this 1s the eamings before interest tax depreciation, loss on dispasal of plant and equipment and amortsation, adjusted for
exceptional iems

- Foreign Beer - this 1s sales made by the Company of beer produced by other brewers, the majonty of which 15 lager

* Managed Pubs and Hotels invested hike for like sales growth — thus 15 the sales growth cakulated to exclude those pubs which have
not been trading throughout the two years for the corresponding penod in both years The pnncipal exclusions from this measure are
pubs purchased or soid wn the last twelve months, sites which are closed, and pubs which are transferred to tenancy

* Wet, food and accommodation ke for ke sales growth - this 1s measured on the same basis as “Managed Pubs and Hotels invested
like for ke sales growth”

= Like for like barrels sold - this 1s measured on the same basis as “Tenanted hke for tike profit growth®
* LTIP - Long Term tncentrve Plan

* Market capitalisation - only the Company's 40p ‘A’ ordinary shares are isted The Company calculates is market capitahsation as the
sum total of all classes of ordinary shares, 1€ lsted 40p ‘A ordmnary shares. unhsted 4p 8 ordinary shares and unlisted 40p *C’
ordnary shares plus all potentially awardable share options and LTIP awards less any shares held n treasury For the purposes of the
calculation of markel capitalisation a 4p ‘8" ordinary share is treated as having 10% of the market value of a quoted 40p ‘A ordinary
share and 3 40p C’ ordinary share 15 treated as hawing an equivalenl value 1o 3 40p ‘A ordinary share

+ Net debt - this compnses cash, bank loans, debenture stock and preference shares
+ Own Beer - this is sales of own brand beer brewed by the Company in Chiswick
+ SIP - Share Incentive Plan

«Tenanted hike for ke profit growth - this 15 the profits growth of Tenanted inns calculated to exclude from both years those
pubs which have not been trading througheut the two years The pnncipal exclusions from this measure are  pubs purchased or sold
pubs which have closed, and pubs transfested to or from our Managed business Bad debt expense is included but head affice costs
are excluded

» Tota! annual drvidend - the tota! annual dwdend for a financial year compnses intenm dmdends paid dunng the financial year and the
final dradend proposed for approval by sharehalders 3t the Annual General Meeting after the completion of the financial year
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Five Years’ Progress

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Income Statement £m im £m Em £m
Revenue 2715 2530 2419 2277 2190
Operating profit before exceptional items 370 349 341 320 290
Net finance costs (53 (46) (4 8) {5 a) (62)
Adjusted profit nz 303 291 266 228
Exceptional tems a5 (15 17 02 (8 4)
Profit before tax a52 288 310 268 14 4
Taxation (59 (51) (62 (76 (59)
Profit attnbutable to equity shareholders
of the Parent Company 293 237 248 192 89
EBITDA 512 47 8 466 436 402
Assets employed
Nan current assets 4556 4441 3827 3879 3569
Inventones 101 105 g8 76 61
Trade and other recevables 183 183 188 156 160
Assels classified as held for sale 06 53 02 06 -
Cash and short term deposits 43 39 37 11 09
4889 4821 4142 4128 3799
Current borrowings - - - (81 4) (8 8)
Cther current habiliues (45 7) (516) (43 6) {44 5) (379)
4432 4305 3706 2869 3332
Non current borrowings (139 9) (1421) (922 (27 9) (86 3)
Other non-curvent liabilises {43 9) (53 1) (422) {52 3) (49 9)
Net assets 259 4 2353 2362 207 2 1970
2013 2012 20m 2010 2009
Per 40p 'A’ ordinary share
Adjusted eamings 43 07 3982p 3736p 3419 2912p
Basic earmings 5259 4213p 4412p 34 37p 16 00p
Dmdends (intenm and proposed final) 13 70p 12 65p 11 80p 11 00p 9 85p
Net assels £4 66 £4 22 £419 £368 £354
Net debt (£ million) (135 6) (1382) (88 5) (07 7 (94 2)
Net debt/EBITDA 26 27 19 25 23
Gross capital expenditure (£ million) 311 763 120 441 242
Average number of employees 3,477 3.392 3,363 3.263 2923

FULLER SMITH & TURNER PLC

Gniflin Brewery, Chiswick Lane South Chiswick, London W4 2Q8
Telephone +44 (0)20 8996 2000 Fax +44 (0)20 8995 0230
E mal Fullers@fullers co uk Web address www fullers co uk
Registered number 241882
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